Public Document Pack

Development Control B
Committee
Agenda
Date: Wednesday, 6 April 2022
Time: 6.00 pm
Venue: The Council Chamber - City Hall, College
Green, Bristol, BS1 5TR
Distribution:
Councillors: Ani Stafford-Townsend (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Lesley Alexander,
Fabian Breckels, Andrew Brown, Amirah Cole, Katja Hornchen, Paula O'Rourke, Guy Poultney and
Richard Eddy
Copies to: Zoe Willcox (Director: Development of Place), Gary Collins, Matthew Cockburn, Norman
Cornthwaite, Allison Taylor (Democratic Services Officer), Jeremy Livitt, Claudette Campbell
(Democratic Services Officer), Rachael Dando, David Fowler (Members' Office Manager
(Conservative)), Stephen Fulham, Paul Shanks and Stephen Peacock (Executive Director for Growth
and Regeneration)

Issued by: Norman Cornthwaite, Democratic Services
City Hall, PO Box 3399, Bristol, BS1 9NE
Tel: 0117 9222390 or 07824354271
E-mail: democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Date: Tuesday, 29 March 2022

Development Control B Committee – Agenda

Agenda
1.

Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information

2.00 pm
(Pages 5 - 8)

2.

Apologies for Absence

3.

Declarations of Interest

To note any interests relevant to the consideration of items on the agenda.
Any declarations of interest made at the meeting which are not on the register of
interests should be notified to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion.

4.

Minutes of the previous meeting

To agree the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record.

5.

Action Sheet

The Committee is requested to note any outstanding actions listed on the rolling
Action Sheet for DCB Committee.

6.

(Pages 9 - 12)

(Page 13)

Appeals

To note appeals lodged, imminent public inquiries and appeals awaiting decision.

(Pages 14 - 24)

Development Control B Committee – Agenda

7.

Enforcement

To note enforcement notices.

8.

(Page 25)

Public forum
Any member of the public or councillor may participate in public forum. The
detailed arrangements for so doing are set out in the Public Information Sheet
at the back of this agenda. Please note that the following deadlines will apply
in relation to this meeting:
Questions:
Written questions must be received three clear working days prior to the
meeting. For this meeting, this means that your question(s) must be received
at the latest by 5pm on Thursday 31st March 2022.
Petitions and statements:
Petitions and statements must be received by noon on the working day prior
to the meeting. For this meeting, this means that your submission must be
received at the latest by 12.00 noon on Tuesday 5th April 2022.
The statement should be addressed to the Service Director, Legal Services, c/o
The Democratic Services Team, City Hall, 3rd Floor Deanery Wing, College
Green,
P O Box 3176, Bristol, BS3 9FS or email - democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk
Members of the public who wish to present their public forum statement,
question or petition at the meeting must register their interest by giving at
least two clear working days’ notice prior to the meeting by 2pm on Friday 1st
April 2022.
PLEASE NOTE THAT IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE NEW STANDING ORDERS
AGREED BY BRISTOL CITY COUNCIL, YOU MUST SUBMIT EITHER A
STATEMENT, PETITION OR QUESTION TO ACCOMPANY YOUR REGISTER TO
SPEAK.
In accordance with previous practice adopted for people wishing to speak at
Development Control Committees, please note that you may only be allowed
1 minute subject to the number of requests received for the meeting.

9.

Planning and Development

To consider the following applications for Development Control Committee B -

(Page 26)

Development Control B Committee – Agenda

a)

20/04125/F - The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3
2AW

(Pages 27 - 107)

Full planning application for demolition of all existing buildings,
erection of 40 No. C3 dwellinghouses and commercial floorspace with
associated car parking, cycle parking, refuse storage and
landscaping.

b)

21/00843/F - 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury
Road Bristol BS3 5LD - WITHDRAWN FROM THE AGENDA

(Pages 108 - 134)

Demolition of 149A Marksbury Road and erection of 5no. single storey
dwellings on land to the rear.

c)

21/06762/F - Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd
Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ
Demolition of existing public toilet block and construction of single
storey building comprising café (use class E), education booth (use
class F1[a]) and replacement public toilets (resubmission of planning
permission 18/04727/F).

10. Date of Next Meeting
18th May 2022 at 2.00 pm.

(Pages 135 - 202)

Agenda Item 1
www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Information Sheet
Inspection of Papers - Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
You can find papers for all our meetings on our website at www.bristol.gov.uk.
Public meetings
Public meetings including Cabinet, Full Council, regulatory meetings (where planning and licensing
decisions are made) and scrutiny will now be held at City Hall.
Members of the press and public who plan to attend City Hall are advised that you may be asked to
watch the meeting on a screen in another room should the numbers attending exceed the maximum
occupancy of the meeting venue.
COVID-19 Prevention Measures at City Hall (from March 2022)
When attending a meeting at City Hall, the following COVID-19 prevention guidance is advised:
 promotion of good hand hygiene: washing and disinfecting hands frequently
 while face coverings are no longer mandatory, we will continue to recommend their use in
venues and workplaces with limited ventilation or large groups of people.
 although legal restrictions have been removed, we should continue to be mindful of others as
we navigate this next phase of the pandemic.
COVID-19 Safety Measures for Attendance at Council Meetings (from March 2022)
Government advice remains that anyone testing positive for COVID-19 should self-isolate for 10 days
(unless they receive two negative lateral flow tests on consecutive days from day five).
We therefore request that no one attends a Council Meeting if they:
 are suffering from symptoms of COVID-19 or
 have tested positive for COVID-19
Other formats and languages and assistance for those with hearing impairment
Other o check with and
You can get committee papers in other formats (e.g. large print, audio tape, braille etc) or in
community languages by contacting the Democratic Services Officer. Please give as much notice as
possible. We cannot guarantee re-formatting or translation of papers before the date of a particular
meeting.
Committee rooms are fitted with induction loops to assist people with hearing impairment. If you
require any assistance with this please speak to the Democratic Services Officer.

Page 5

www.bristol.gov.uk

Public Forum
Members of the public may make a written statement ask a question or present a petition to most
meetings. Your statement or question will be sent to the Committee Members and will be published
on the Council’s website before the meeting. Please send it to democratic.services@bristol.gov.uk.
The following requirements apply:



The statement is received no later than 12.00 noon on the working day before the meeting and is
about a matter which is the responsibility of the committee concerned.
The question is received no later than 5pm three clear working days before the meeting.

Any statement submitted should be no longer than one side of A4 paper. If the statement is longer
than this, then for reasons of cost, it may be that only the first sheet will be copied and made available
at the meeting. For copyright reasons, we are unable to reproduce or publish newspaper or magazine
articles that may be attached to statements.
By participating in public forum business, we will assume that you have consented to your name and
the details of your submission being recorded and circulated to the Committee and published within
the minutes. Your statement or question will also be made available to the public via publication on
the Council’s website and may be provided upon request in response to Freedom of Information Act
requests in the future.
We will try to remove personal and identifiable information. However, because of time constraints we
cannot guarantee this, and you may therefore wish to consider if your statement contains information
that you would prefer not to be in the public domain. Other committee papers may be placed on the
council’s website and information within them may be searchable on the internet.
During the meeting:









Public Forum is normally one of the first items on the agenda, although statements and petitions
that relate to specific items on the agenda may be taken just before the item concerned.
There will be no debate on statements or petitions.
The Chair will call each submission in turn. When you are invited to speak, please make sure that
your presentation focuses on the key issues that you would like Members to consider. This will
have the greatest impact.
Your time allocation may have to be strictly limited if there are a lot of submissions. This may be as
short as one minute.
If there are a large number of submissions on one matter a representative may be requested to
speak on the groups behalf.
If you do not attend or speak at the meeting at which your public forum submission is being taken
your statement will be noted by Members.
Under our security arrangements, please note that members of the public (and bags) may be
searched. This may apply in the interests of helping to ensure a safe meeting environment for all
attending.

Page 6

www.bristol.gov.uk



As part of the drive to reduce single-use plastics in council-owned buildings, please bring your own
water bottle in order to fill up from the water dispenser.

For further information about procedure rules please refer to our Constitution
https://www.bristol.gov.uk/how-council-decisions-are-made/constitution

Webcasting/ Recording of meetings
Members of the public attending meetings or taking part in Public forum are advised that all Full
Council and Cabinet meetings and some other committee meetings are now filmed for live or
subsequent broadcast via the council's webcasting pages. The whole of the meeting is filmed (except
where there are confidential or exempt items). If you ask a question or make a representation, then
you are likely to be filmed and will be deemed to have given your consent to this. If you do not wish to
be filmed you need to make yourself known to the webcasting staff. However, the Openness of Local
Government Bodies Regulations 2014 now means that persons attending meetings may take
photographs, film and audio record the proceedings and report on the meeting (Oral commentary is
not permitted during the meeting as it would be disruptive). Members of the public should therefore
be aware that they may be filmed by others attending and that is not within the council’s control.
The privacy notice for Democratic Services can be viewed at www.bristol.gov.uk/about-ourwebsite/privacy-and-processing-notices-for-resource-services

Page 7

Development Control Committee Debate and Decision Process
PUBLIC PARTICIPATION
Stage 1:
Public Forum
Statements

OFFICER PRESENTATION

MEMBER QUESTIONS AND DEBATE
Stage 3:
Member Questions and
Clarifications of the
Proposal.
Officer Responses

Stage 2:
Officer Report &
Recommendation

Stage 4:
Member Debate

MAKING THE DECISION

Page 8

Stage 5:
CHAIR will either move a MOTION in accordance with the
Recommendation (to test if this is what Committee want to
do) or seek another Member of the Committee to do this.
If SECONDED1 go to stages 6 to 8.

Stage 6:
Any
AMENDMENT
Moved &
Seconded2

Stage 7:
VOTE on
successful
AMENDMENT
(if required)

Stage 8:
VOTE on
MOTION
(either original
Motion or as
amended)

IF CARRIED = DECISION
IF LOST = NO DECISION &
go back to Stage 5

If MOTION to APPROVE is not seconded or carried the CHAIR
will move a MOTION to DEFER a decision (allowing more time
for Members to propose grounds for refusal if needed) and
request that Officers bring back a report to the next meeting
of the Committee with detailed advice on these grounds,
supporting Members to make a final decision.
If the Chair’s MOTION is not seconded or not carried
the Chair will seek an alternative MOTION
from the Committee

1

A Motion must be Seconded in order to be formally
accepted. If a Motion is not Seconded, the debate
continues

2

An Amendment can occur on any formally approved Motion (ie. one that has been Seconded)
prior to Voting. An Amendment must itself be Seconded to be valid and cannot have the effect
of negating the original Motion. If Vote carried at Stage7, then this becomes the Motion which
is voted on at Stage 8

Agenda Item 4
Bristol City Council
Minutes of the Development Control B Committee
23 February 2022 at 2pm

Members Present:Councillors: Ani Stafford-Townsend (Chair), Chris Windows (Vice-Chair), Lesley Alexander,
Fabian Breckels, Andrew Brown, Amirah Cole, Katja Hornchen, Paula O'Rourke and Guy Poultney
Officers in Attendance:Peter Westbury –Team Manager, Development Management and Allison Taylor – Democratic Services

1 Welcome, Introduction and Safety Information
The Chair welcomed everyone to the meeting and issued the safety information.
2 Apologies for Absence
There were none.
3 Declarations of Interest
There were none.
4 Minutes of the previous meeting
RESOLVED – that the minutes of 12 January 2022 be agreed as a correct record and signed by the Chair.
5 Appeals
These were noted without discussion.

Page 9

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

6 Enforcement.
These were noted without discussion.

7 Public forum
Members of the Committee received Public Forum Statements in advance of the meeting.
The Statements were heard before the application they related to and were taken fully into consideration
by the Committee prior to reaching a decision.
8 Planning and Development
The Committee considered the following applications.
9 21/05971/F - 18 Talbot Road Bristol
The Case Officer presented the report and highlighted the following:1. This was an application which sought to amend a previous planning permission for the demolition
of garages and the construction of a two story dwelling with parking, bike spaces and refuse
storage;
2. It requested the variation of Condition 14, namely, to substitute approved plans with as built plans
and to delete Conditions 2 and 3 which dealt with visibility and boundary wall respectively;
3. The grant of planning permission will regularise the breach of planning control and was a process
advocated by the government in its guidance on discretionary process of taking action following
planning enforcement investigation;
4. As a result of consultation 8 separate addresses had made comments, 3 were in support of the
application and 4 objected to it;
5. It was noted that there was a drafting error between the recommendation made to highways and
what was shown on the Notice of Decision in the original consent;
6. For private accesses guidance on visibility splays was less clear than for new junctions. However,
Transport Development Management’s view was that they did not think the proposal caused
undue risk and that it should be accepted;
7. The issue of encroachment on to land as referenced in a Public Forum Statement was not a matter
for the Planning Authority and was a civil matter;
8. In summary, the planning application was valid, had been properly submitted, subjected to
planning regulations and consulted upon and was recommended for approval subject to
conditions.
The following points arose from questions:-

Page 10

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

1. There was no difference in the height of the wall next to the pavement but there was an increase
in the height of the wall as it abounds the forecourt;
2. It was confirmed that Conditions 2 & 3 of the original permission were incompatible and this
application regularised the situation;
3. The current application provided no detriment or betterment in terms of visibility;
4. This breach of planning was assessed and it was concluded that it did not warrant enforcement
action but instead regularisation;
5. If the previous proposal had not been policy compliant it would not be possible to recommend this
application for approval;
6. If the Committee refused the application officers would have to test the reasons for refusal and
assess harm. A refusal did not dictate enforcement action;
7. The wall was 2.4m high and would have to be 0.6m in places to meet the standard condition on
visibility.
8. Transport Development Management would recommend a 0.6m height for a new build as it
allowed the driver to see above a wall. For this application there was a neutral affect as there had
been no objections;
9. It was possible to attach an advice note to the permission recommending not reversing out onto
the road but not to attach a planning condition.
The following points arose from debate:1. The white-washed wall, although not material, was a visual distraction;
2. It was unusual to receive a Public Forum Statement from a Police Inspector stating that the
arrangement was not safe;
3. There were no grounds to refuse but there was concern about the message this would send out
concerning over scaling, coming back for retrospective permission and obtaining approval;
4. There was a suggestion for a site visit which was supported though a member questioned what
benefit this would have;
5. There was no further debate so the Chair moved the officer recommendation and it was not
seconded so it fell;
6. Councillor Poultney moved that the application be deferred pending a site visit and this was
seconded and on being put to the vote it was:Resolved (Unanimously) – that the application be deferred pending a site visit.

10. 21/05824/H – 217, Canford Lane, Westbury-on Trym, Bristol.
The Case Officer presented the report and highlighted the following:1. The application was before the Committee as the applicant was a Councillor of Bristol City Council;
2. The application was for a single story full width rear extension;
3. There were no responses to consultation;

Page 11

democractic.services@bristol.gov.uk

4. The proposed development was of an appropriate design which officers consider would not cause
harm to the character or appearance of the dwelling, street scene or wider area. Furthermore, the
proposed development would not cause harm to the amenity of current of future neighbours.
There were no questions or discussion and the officer recommendation was moved and seconded and on
being put to the vote it was:Resolved (Unanimously) – that the application be granted subject to conditions.

11. The next meeting of Development Control B Committee is on 6 April 2022 at 6pm in City Hall.

The meeting ended at 3.05pm.
CHAIR __________________

Page 12

Action Sheet – Development Control Committee B
Date of
Meeting
23.02.22

Item/report

Action

Responsible
officer(s)/Councillor

Action taken / progress

No Actions

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

Agenda Item 6

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B
6th April 2022
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE
LIST OF CURRENT APPEALS
Householder appeal
Item

Ward

Address, description and appeal type

Text0:
1
St George
Troopers Hill

42 Nicholas Lane Bristol BS5 8TL
A single storey extension is proposed to the rear of the
property with a roof terrace accessed from the rear bedroom.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
2
Windmill Hill

10 New Walls Bristol BS4 3TA
Erect a porch to the front elevation.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
3
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

85 Dakota Drive Bristol BS14 0TD
Two storey front extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
4
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

1 Myrtle Cottages Pembroke Road Shirehampton Bristol
BS11 9SE
New dormer window to rear and reinstatement of chimney to
rear.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
5
Redland

28 March 2022

7 Glentworth Road Redland Bristol BS6 7EG
Demolition and rebuilding of front boundary wall to
accommodate 1no. off-street parking space.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 14

Date lodged

12/10/2020

03/08/2021

14/02/2022

14/02/2022

11/03/2022

Page 1 of 11

Informal hearing
Item

Ward

Text0:
6
Brislington West

Text0:
7
Brislington West

Text0:
8
Bedminster

Text0:
9
Bedminster

Text0:
10
Bedminster

28 March 2022

Address, description and appeal type
515 - 517 Stockwood Road Brislington Bristol BS4 5LR
Outline application for the erection of a five-storey building
comprising 9no. self-contained flats, with Access, Layout and
Scale to be considered at part of the outline application.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
515 - 517 Stockwood Road Brislington Bristol BS4 5LR
Outline application seeking matters of Access, Layout, and
Scale for the erection of a care complex (Use Class C2).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Bridge And Land To North Of South Liberty Lane Ashton Vale
Bristol BS3 2TJ
Application for approval of details reserved by condition 3
(Site Access Scheme) of appeal decision
APP/Z0116/W/18/3214893, which granted planning
permission for the demolition of existing bridge and
construction of residential housing and flats (Use Class C3)
with associated new access road, car parking, landscaping
and ground works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land And Bridge To North Of South Liberty Lane Bristol
Application to approve details in relation to condition 16
(external lighting) of appeal APP/Z0116/W/18/3213893
permission 15/06617/F Demolition of existing bridge and
construction of residential housing and flats (Use Class C3)
with associated new access road, car parking, landscaping
and ground works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land And Bridge To North Of South Liberty Lane Bristol
Application to approve details in relation to condition 16
(external lighting) of appeal APP/Z0116/W/18/3213893
permission 15/06617/F Demolition of existing bridge and
construction of residential housing and flats (Use Class C3)
with associated new access road, car parking, landscaping
and ground works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 15

Date of hearing

27/04/2022

27/04/2022

22/03/2022

22/03/2022

22/03/2022

Page 2 of 11

Text0:
11
Bedminster

Text0:
12
Lawrence Hill

Bridge And Land To The North Of South Liberty Lane Bristol
Application to approve details in relation to condition 3 4 5 6 7
8 13 14 and 17 of APP/Z0116/W/18/3214893 permission
15/06617/F Demolition of existing bridge and construction of
residential housing and flats (Use Class C3) with associated
new access road, car parking, landscaping and ground works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
11 - 17 Wade Street Bristol BS2 9DR
Outline application for the demolition of buildings and erection
of student accommodation, with access, layout and scale to
be considered.
Appeal against non-determination

22/03/2022

04/05/2022

Public inquiry
Item

Ward

Text0:
13
Lawrence Hill

Address, description and appeal type
Land And Buildings On The South Side Of Silverthorne Lane
Bristol BS2 0QD
Phased development of the following: site wide remediation,
including demolition; (Plot 1) outline planning permission with
all matters reserved aside from access for up to 23,543m2
GIA of floor space to include offices (B1a), research and
development (B1b), non-residential institution (D1) and up to
350m2 GIA floor space for cafe (A3); (Plots 2 and 3) erection
of buildings (full details) to provide 371 dwelling houses (C3),
offices (B1a), restaurants and cafes (A3); (Plot 4),
redevelopment of 'Erecting Sheds 1A and 1B' (full details) to
provide offices (B1a); (Plot 5) erection of buildings and
redevelopment of 'The Boiler Shop' (full details) to provide a
1,600 pupil secondary school (D1); (Plot 6) erection of
buildings (full details) to provide 693 student bed spaces (Sui
generis); infrastructure, including a new canal side walkway
and associated works.

Date of inquiry

11/05/2021

Committee

28 March 2022

Page 16

Page 3 of 11

Text0:
14
Lawrence Hill

Land And Buildings On The South Side Of Silverthorne Lane
Bristol BS2 0QD
Redevelopment of the site for: (Plot 1) Removal of the Shed
4 western gable wall; (Plot 2) Removal of Shed 4 (excluding
wall to canal), insertion of opening into boundary wall and
lowering/removal of material; (Plot 3) Removal of Shed 3,
removal of Sheds 2a-c; (Plot 4) Insertion of pedestrian
access opening into the northern boundary wall of shed 1b,
alterations to the South wall of Shed 1b/north wall of Shed 2b,
Restoration/rebuild of Shed 1a; (Plot 5) Reduction in height of
the walls attached to the North Gateway, removal of western
Hammer Forge Wall, reduction of Northern Hammer Forge
Wall, demolition and rebuild of Eastern Hammer Forge wall.
Works to the Boiler Shop, including new openings in the
Western gable end, replacement of asbestos cement roof,
removal of post-war cladding and glazing between piers,
internal works including new floor level; (Plots 2-5) Potential
stabilisation to the early 19th century Feeder Canal rubble
stone wall.

11/05/2021

Committee

Written representation
Item

Ward

Text0:
15
Henbury & Brentry

Text0:
16
Southville

Text0:
17
Ashley

Text0:
18
Lawrence Hill

28 March 2022

Address, description and appeal type
The Lodge Carriage Drive Bristol BS10 6TE
Sycamore Tree T3 - Crown reduce canopy by a maximum of
30%. TPO 1148
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Telecomunications Mast Corner Of Victoria Grove And
Princess Street Bedminster Bristol BS3 4AG
Proposed 15m Phase 8 Monopole C/W, wrapround Cabinet
at base and associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
123 Chesterfield Road Bristol BS6 5DU
Construction of a detached single storey 1 bedroom dwelling
within site curtilage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land To The Rear Of 232-234 Stapleton Road Easton
Bristol BS5 0NT
Demolition of single storey Victorian store building to the rear
and replacement with 2 storey block of flats containing 3 no.
flats, shop storage and including refuse, recycling and cycle
storage for both shops and flats.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 17

Date lodged

07/09/2020

22/07/2021

13/08/2021

14/09/2021

Page 4 of 11

Text0:
19
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

29 Westover Road Bristol BS9 3LY
Erection of a two storey, 2no. bedroom semi-detached single
dwelling.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
20
Lawrence Hill

Swift House Albert Crescent Bristol BS2 0UD
Erection and operation of a waste transfer station and
ancillary structures, including a trailer shelter, a weighbridge
and weighbridge office.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Text0:
21
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

334 Canford Lane Bristol BS9 3PW
Demolition of existing dwelling and construction of proposed
2No dwelling Houses. (Self Build).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
22
Clifton Down

69 Alma Vale Road Bristol BS8 2HR
Change of use from a single 4 bedroom residential dwelling
to a 4 person HMO.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
23
Windmill Hill

Text0:
24
Lockleaze

Text0:
25
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

28 March 2022

2 Winton Lane Totterdown Bristol BS4 2AB
Convert existing integral garage for use as 'home office'.
Appeal against non-determination

249 Muller Road Bristol BS7 9NE
Construction of two storey side extension to provide 2 No twobed flats, and erection of single storey building (provding
ancillary accommodation) to rear of 249 Muller Road
following demolition of shed. (Retrospective Application).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land Adjoining Access To St Augustines Park From East
Dundry Road (opposite 89 & 91) Whitchurch Bristol BS14
0LN
Application to determine if prior approval is required for a
proposed 18.0m Phase 8 monopole, C/W wrapround cabinet
at base and associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 18

14/09/2021

30/12/2021

30/12/2021

05/01/2022

05/01/2022

13/01/2022

18/01/2022

Page 5 of 11

Text0:
26
Windmill Hill

Text0:
27
Filwood

Pavement To West Of BT Mast South Side Roundabout St
Johns Lane Bristol
Application to determine if prior approval is required for a
proposed - Proposed 15.0m Phase 8 Monopole C/W
wrapround cabinet at base and associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Telecoms Mast Outside Oasis Academy Connaught Melvin
Square Bristol BS4 1AT
Application to determine if prior approval is required for a
proposed 15.0m Phase 8 Monopole C/W wrapround Cabinet
at base and associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
28
Hartcliffe &
Withywood

Land Rear Of 56 To 58 Mellent Avenue Bristol BS13 0NS
Construction of 1no. two bedroom bungalow. (Resubmission
of withdrawn application)
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
29
Hillfields

11 The Greenway Bristol BS16 4EZ
Double storey side extension together with change of use
from C3 dwelling house to Sui Generis HMO.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
30
Windmill Hill

The Windmill 14 Windmill Hill & 3 Eldon Terrace Bristol BS3
4LU
First-floor and raised single storey rear extensions. Change
of use of The Windmill Public House and conversion into 5
flats (Use Class C3). Reinstatement of the basement
beneath 3 Eldon Terrace to residential use (retrospective).
Minor external alterations and sub-division of the rear garden
area.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Text0:
31
Westbury-on-Trym
& Henleaze

Public Conveniences High Street Westbury Bristol BS9 3ED
T1 Yew - Fell TPO 1406.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
32
Knowle

26 Bayham Road Bristol BS4 2DR
Enlargement of existing detached garage to create a
habitable granny annexe plus a bicycle storeroom.
Appeal against non-determination

28 March 2022

Page 19

18/01/2022

18/01/2022

18/01/2022

27/01/2022

11/02/2022

11/02/2022

14/02/2022

Page 6 of 11

Text0:
33
Southville

Text0:
34
Horfield

Text0:
35
Central

Text0:
36
Central

Text0:
37
Clifton Down

Text0:
38
Clifton Down

Text0:
39
Horfield

28 March 2022

20 Mount Pleasant Terrace Bristol BS3 1LF
Proposed change of use from C3 to C4.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Flats A And B 260 Southmead Road Bristol BS10 5EN
Demolition of existing extensions and construction of a 2storey side and rear extension. Provision of refuse and cycle
storage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
45 High Street City Centre Bristol BS1 2AZ
Change of use of upper floors and rear ground floor room
from a retail use (Class E) to a House in Multiple Occupation
(HMO) (Class C4). External alterations at roof level.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
45 High Street City Centre Bristol BS1 2AZ
Internal and external alterations associated with the change
of use of the upper floors and rear ground floor room from a
retail use (Class E) to a House in Multiple Occupation (HMO)
(Class C4).
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
23 Burlington Road Bristol BS6 6TJ
Replacement of 3no. windows at mansard roof level, to the
front of the property.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
23 Burlington Road Bristol BS6 6TJ
Replacement of 3no. windows at mansard roof level, to the
front of the property.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Land To Rear Of 382, 384 And 386 Southmead Road Bristol
BS10 5LP
Application for Outline Planning Permission With Some
Matters Reserved - Erection of dwelling. Approval sought for
Access with all other matters reserved.
Appeal against non-determination

Page 20

14/02/2022

24/02/2022

09/03/2022

09/03/2022

09/03/2022

09/03/2022

21/03/2022

Page 7 of 11

List of appeal decisions
Item

Ward

Text0:
40
Bedminster

Address, description and appeal type
Police Dog & Horse Training Centre Clanage Road Bristol
BS3 2JY
Proposed change of use from training centre (Use Class D1)
to touring caravan site (Use Class D2), consisting of 62
pitches and associated buildings and works.

Decision and
date decided
Appeal dismissed
17/03/2022

Committee
Text0:
41
Bedminster

5 Prospect Terrace Bristol BS3 3BQ
Replacement of existing roof with a mansard style roof, to
provide a new bedroom and bathroom at second floor.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
42
Lawrence Hill

10 Feeder Road Bristol BS2 0SB
Demolition of existing buildings and development of 4
buildings - a 5 storey building comprising flexible commercial
floorspace (Use B1 and B8) and a part 7, part 8 and part 14
storey building interlinked to provide a communal area at
ground floor level and student bedspaces (sui generis) at the
upper levels, incubator space (B1 use class) at ground floor
level, shared social and study spaces, roof terrace and
associated car parking (for the commercial use), cycle
parking.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
43
Stoke Bishop

4 Ivywell Road Bristol BS9 1NX
Window replacement, new lower ground floor light well and
alterations to lower floor ground rooms.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
44
Stoke Bishop

Text0:
45
Cotham

28 March 2022

4 Ivywell Road Bristol BS9 1NX
Window replacement, new lower ground floor light well and
alterations to lower floor ground rooms.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision
Garages Adjacent To 2 Elliston Road Bristol BS6 6QE
Demolition of existing garages and erection of a two storey
house, with one floor set below ground level.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Page 21

Appeal dismissed
23/02/2022

Appeal allowed
09/03/2022

Appeal dismissed
28/03/2022
Costs not awarded

Appeal dismissed
28/03/2022
Costs not awarded

Appeal dismissed
21/02/2022

Page 8 of 11

Text0:
46
Knowle

277 Redcatch Road Bristol BS3 5DY
Application for a Lawful Development Certificate for an
Existing use or operation - Incidental outbuilding.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
47
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

1 Maidenhead Road Bristol BS13 0PS
Application for a lawful development certificate for a
proposed new detached garage.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
18/02/2022

Text0:
48
Southville

17 Friezewood Road Bristol BS3 2AD
A garden Design to include a wrap around balcony area
attached to the back of the house which comes out from
existing height of the back door.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
02/03/2022

Text0:
49
Windmill Hill

45 Somerset Terrace Bristol BS3 4LJ
Renovation with new Mansard Roof.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
02/03/2022

Text0:
50
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

46 Ridingleaze Bristol BS11 0QE
Change of use from currently vacant former bookmakers (Sui
Generis) to a Hot Food Takeaway (Sui Generis) together with
new shopfront and roller shutters to the front elevation and
wall mounted extract and boiler flues, fresh air intake grill and
condenser to the rear elevation.
Appeal against refusal
Committee

Text0:
51
Bedminster

Land On Corner Of North Street And South Street
Advertising Hoarding North Street Bedminster Bristol BS3
Development of 2No. class C3 apartments with associated
works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed

8 Chandos Road Bristol BS6 6PE
Demolition of single storey extension. Construction of two
new residential dwellings.
Appeal against non-determination

Appeal dismissed
17/03/2022

Text0:
52
Cotham

28 March 2022

Page 22

Appeal allowed
25/02/2022

Appeal allowed
24/02/2022

16/03/2022

Costs not awarded

Page 9 of 11

Text0:
53
Eastville

Land To Rear Of 40 Park Road Stapleton Bristol BS16 1AT
Enforcement notice appeal for the erection of platform
structure over land.
Appeal against an enforcement notice

Appeal allowed
10/03/2022

Text0:
54
Ashley

66 Bath Buildings Bristol BS6 5PU
An application to determine if prior approval is required for a
proposed change of use from retail (formerly Use Class A1)
to cafe(formerly Use Class A3) with an extraction flue to the
rear.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
28/02/2022

Text0:
55
Windmill Hill

25 St Johns Crescent Bristol BS3 5EP
Adding a roof dormer to provide space for an upstairs
bathroom. Rear extension to provide more kitchen space
and utility room.
Appeal against conditions imposed
Delegated decision

Appeal allowed
02/03/2022

Text0:
56
Bishopsworth

60 Lewis Road Bristol BS13 7JB
Single storey rear extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal allowed
17/03/2022

Text0:
57
Clifton

1 Albermarle Terrace Bristol BS8 4NA
Glass roof and enclosure to light well to front.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed
18/03/2022

Text0:
58
Stoke Bishop

Telecoms Equipment Edge Of Green Shirehampton Road
Sea Mills Bristol BS9 2EQ
Application to determine if prior approval is required Proposed 15.0m Phase 8 Monopole C/W wrap around
Cabinet at base and associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed

Osprey Court Hawkfield Way Bristol
Outline application for the erection of a care complex (Use
Class C2), with Access, Layout and Scale to be
considered - (Major Application).
Appeal against non-determination
Delegated decision

Appeal withdrawn
28/03/2022

Text0:
59
Hengrove &
Whitchurch Park

28 March 2022

Page 23

23/03/2022

Page 10 of 11

Text0:
60
Brislington East

Text0:
61
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

Text0:
62
Avonmouth &
Lawrence Weston

Pavement Adjoining Wick Library Allison Road Brislington
Bristol
Removal of 15m high T-Range column incorporating 6no.
antennas (brown), 3no. cabinets (1no. 770 x 618 x 1940mm;
2no. 770 x 750 x 1925mm), 1no. meter cabinet (355 x 185 x
1250mm) and all ancillary development. Installation of a
17.5m Apollo pole (brown) with 6no. antennas; 2no. cabinets
(1898 x 798 x 1645mm) & 1no. meter cabinet (655 x 255 x
1015mm) (RAL6009 Fir Green); and all ancillary
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal allowed

Land At Rear Of 2 Woodwell Cottages Woodwell Road
Bristol BS11 9UP
Erection of three residential dwellings including access road
and ancillary buildings.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Appeal dismissed

Telecommunication Mast Opposite 3 Portview Road Bristol
BS11 9GQ
Application to determine if prior approval is required for a
proposed 20.0m Phase 8 Monopole C/W wraparound cabinet
at base and associated ancillary works.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
63
Eastville

27 Baileys Mead Road Bristol BS16 1AE
The erection of a two storey rear extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

Text0:
64
St George
Troopers Hill

31A Marion Walk Bristol BS5 8LL
Proposed first floor extension.
Appeal against refusal
Delegated decision

28 March 2022

Page 24

21/03/2022

23/03/2022

Appeal allowed
23/03/2022

Appeal dismissed
10/03/2022

Appeal allowed
01/03/2022

Page 11 of 11

Agenda Item 7

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE B
6th April 2022
REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR: DEVELOPMENT OF PLACE
LIST OF ENFORCEMENT NOTICES SERVED

Item Ward
1

Bedminster

Address, description and enforcement type
52 Smyth Road Bristol BS3 2DS

Date issued
22/02/2022

Formation of enclosed roof terrace area on flat roof.
Enforcement notice

2

Brislington West

Wyevale Garden Centre Bath Road Brislington
Bristol BS31 2AD
Development outside site covered by LDC 19/02102/CE and laying of hard surfacing.

19/01/2022

Enforcement notice
3

Brislington West

Keynsham Garden Centre Bath Road Brislington
Bristol BS31 2AD
Earth moving and regrading of the land, including
the formation of bunds and storage of construction
plant and equipment and portable buuildings on the
land.
Enforcement notice

28 March 2022

Page 25

19/01/2022

Agenda Item 9
Development Control Committee B
6 April 2022
Report of the Director: Development of Place
Index
Planning Applications
Item

Ward

Officer
Recommendation

Application No/Address/Description

1

Southville

Grant subject to
Legal Agreement

20/04125/F - The Old Dairy Durnford Street
Bristol BS3 2AW
Full planning application for demolition of all
existing buildings, erection of 40 No. C3
dwellinghouses and commercial floorspace with
associated car parking, cycle parking, refuse
storage and landscaping.

2

Filwood

Grant

21/00843/F - 149/149A & Land To Rear Of
Marksbury Road Bristol BS3 5LD
Demolition of 149A Marksbury Road and
erection of 5no. single storey dwellings on land
to the rear.

3

Stoke Bishop

Grant

21/06762/F - Public Conveniences Circular Road
Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ
Demolition of existing public toilet block and
construction of single storey building comprising
café (use class E), education booth (use class
F1[a]) and replacement public toilets
(resubmission of planning permission
18/04727/F).

index
v5.0514

Page 26
E:\Bristol\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\8\5\AI00027587\$odgguocc.docx

29/03/2022 10:06

Agenda Item 9a
ITEM NO. 1

Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
WARD:

Southville

SITE ADDRESS:

The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

APPLICATION NO:

20/04125/F

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
14 January 2022
DEADLINE:
Full planning application for demolition of all existing buildings, erection of 40 No. C3
dwellinghouses and commercial floorspace with associated car parking, cycle parking, refuse
storage and landscaping.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

CSJ Planning Consultants Ltd
1 Host Street
Bristol
BS1 5BU

APPLICANT:

Prelon Homes
C/O Agent

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

28/03/22 09:50

Page 27

Committee report

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

SCOPE OF THIS REPORT
This addendum relates only to issues raised by members at Planning Committee on 12th January
2022 that led to the deferral of the decision on this application. For consideration of other key issues
relating to the scheme, please refer to the previous officer report for the full detailed assessment.

SITE DESCRIPTION AND APPLICATION
The application relates to an L-shaped site in Ashton, set between Durnford Street to the south-east
and Baynton Road to the north-west. The site is currently occupied by industrial/commercial buildings
of one and two-storeys in height, along with associated external yard space. The site is located
amongst a mixture of commercial and residential buildings, with commercial/industrial buildings set to
the north/north-east and south-west, and residential properties beyond, as well as to the south-east
and north-west. A residential development has been recently approved on an adjoining site to the
north/north-east at the ‘Old Brewery’.
The application proposes the redevelopment of the site for predominantly residential use, but also
retaining a commercial unit at ground floor level fronting Durnford Street. The proposal comprises a
six-storey block of 33 flats set between Baynton Road and Durnford Street; a terrace of 7 three-storey
town houses fronting Durnford Street, and; private and communal garden areas, parking and
servicing.
See plans and supporting documents for full details.

REASONS FOR DEFERRAL
This scheme was previously considered by Members at January 12th 2022 committee. The scheme
was deferred to enable the developer to address concerns raised by members. Principle concerns
related to the affordable housing (AH) provision, with members considering that the AH should be
better integrated into the wider scheme and the available facilities for the AH improved. Key points
can be summarised as follows:
•
•
•

•
•

Lift access should be provided for the AH units
Car parking (including accessible parking) should be provided for AH units
Entrances to affordable units to be of equal standing to the market units, or all units accessed
by the same shared entrance(es) – concerns were raised regarding the provision of a ‘poor
door’
All residents should have access to the communal garden
A private balcony could be provided for the AH unit that is currently shown without one

Other points of raised by members:
•

Increased parking provision should be investigated

Page 28

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
•
•
•

Additional shared landscaped areas should be explored within the square to the rear of the
site
Concerns of impact upon affordable units due to servicing from rear courtyard
Permitted servicing hours for the commercial unit should align with the loading/unloading TRO

SUMMARY OF AMENDMENTS MADE TO THE SCHEME FOLLOWING DEFERRAL
Amendments were made to the scheme in response to points raised by members.
Responses/amendments can be summarised as follows:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

A lift is now proposed to serve the affordable units
Core B lobby has been enlarged
Two accessible parking spaces are allocated to affordable units
Entrance revised – the two entrances are of equal standing and similar design
All residents have access to the communal garden
Balcony not possible to the one AH unit without, due to oversailing of highway land
Parking provision remains at 18 spaces (45%) – unable to accommodate more on site
• 7 for the town houses (1 per house = 100% provision)
• 2 for AH units (25% provision)
• 9 for open market flats (29% provision)
Landscaping to rear square not possible due to rights of access across it
Proposed TRO/conditions are amended so that permitted servicing of the commercial units
aligns with the TRO hours

RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
Following deferral of the decision at January 12th 2022 committee, and following receipt of further
amendments to address the issues raised by members, a further neighbour consultation exercise was
undertaken, via press and site notices, along with individual letters sent to surrounding properties and
all previous contributors. 6 written responses were received, raising concerns that can be
summarised as follows:
Principle
•

The Old Dairy should remain as a commercial area

Highways
•

Inadequate on-site parking / Increased pressure for parking locally

Design
•
•

Proposed height is out of keeping for the area
Design out of character for the area

Residential Amenity

Page 29

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

•
•

Overlooking of neighbouring properties/gardens
Overshadowing impacts

Equality
•

Equality concerns due to segregation of market and affordable homes

Issues relating to principle, design and residential amenity have already been considered by members
and did not constitute reasons for the deferral of the application. Please refer to the previous Officer
report for detailed assessment of these issues.
The points raised in relation to highways and equalities issues will be discussed below.

The Bristol City Council Highways Officer has made the following comment regarding the
Traffic Regulation Order (TRO):
8-8 would be acceptable in TRO legality terms and TDM would raise no objection. To note it would
still be required to go through the statutory TRO process which involves public consultation.

KEY ISSUES
EQUALITIES
In response to equalities concerns raised by Members at planning committee in January 2022, a
number of amendments have been made to the proposal in order to address the concerns raised. As
previously set out within this report, the alterations in this regard comprise:
• The provision of a lift within core B to serve the affordable units
• The enlargement of the lobby to Core B
• Two parking spaces are allocated to the affordable units, both of which are accessible spaces
• The design of the core B entrance has been revised – the two entrances are of equal standing
and similar design
• All residents have access to the communal garden
It is considered that the amendments made in this regard address the concerns raised by members
that led to the deferral of the application.
The layout would remain where the affordable units would be accessed via a separate entrance, and
whilst there may be concerns in terms of whether the development is ‘tenure blind’, such a layout
does have benefits in terms of operational issues for the affordable housing provider that would take
the units on, and as such is considered acceptable on balance, and helps ensure that affordable
housing can be provided on site. Since the deferred scheme, the entrance core to the affordable units
has been amended so that externally it is of visually equal standing to the other entrance to the flatted
block, with a large opening, generous glazed area, and signage of equal proportions to the other
entrance. Internally, the lobby has been enlarged and a lift provided.

Page 30

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Consideration has been given to the provision of a balcony to the affordable unit that would not have
one. This however is not possible due to oversailing of the highway below. A Juliette balcony is
therefore proposed in this instance. It should be noted that all other affordable units would have
private external balconies. It should also be noted that of the 25 open market flats, 3 would not have
balconies, which is a comparable proportion in relation to the affordable units. All residents would
also have access to the communal garden within the development, and Greville Smyth Park is located
less than 100m from the application site.
It was queried by Members at January 2022 committee, whether servicing of surrounding buildings via
the yard off Baynton Road (to the north-west of the site) would disadvantage occupiers of the
affordable units located on that side of the site. There are rights of access for surrounding buildings
across the aforementioned open yard, with neighbouring commercial uses comprising a tree services
company and a gymnasium, as well as access to residential properties. Employees, patrons and
vehicles associated with deliveries/collections to/from these units would therefore cross this shared
yard. The undercroft parking at the development site would also access from this space, as would
residential parking associated with the approved neighbouring development at 1-3 Ashton Road. One
of the refuse/recycling stores associated with the proposed development would also be accessed
from this yard.
There are also a range of businesses and residential properties that would be accessed and serviced
from Durnford Street to the south-east of the site. The open-air parking area as part of the proposed
development would be accessed via Durnford Street. The other refuse/recycling store within the
development would also be serviced via Durnford Street, as would the proposed commercial unit.
Kerbside refuse/recycling collections for the proposed houses would also be undertaken from
Durnford Street. Durnford Street also provides access to neighbouring businesses, including a
furniture warehouse, upholsterer’s, and a brewery, as well as providing residential and servicing
access to existing surrounding residential development.
The nature of servicing and access to either side of the application site is considered comparable, and
as such it is considered that no particular individuals would be disproportionately affected by access
and servicing arrangements associated with the application site or that of surrounding development.
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is no indication or
evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups have or would have
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular proposed development.
Overall, it is considered that this application would not have any significant adverse impact upon
different groups or implications for the Equality Act 2010.

HIGHWAYS
Issues relating to servicing of the site and surrounding developments has been discussed within the
equalities section above, given that Member queries in this regard were from an equalities angle.

Page 31

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
The proposal incorporates 18 car parking spaces for residents, with one each for the proposed
houses (7 in total) and a further 11 to serve the flats, including two accessible parking bays, both of
which would be allocated for use by affordable housing units. The 18 parking spaces proposed
represents 45% provision, which accords with current policy requirements and this level of provision is
supported by BCC Highways Officers. Whilst an additional parking space has been created on site,
one space was removed in order to accommodate a lift/enlarged lobby to the affordable housing units.
4 spaces would feature electric vehicle charge points, with ducting to be provided to enable
straightforward additional provision in the future as required. The level of parking provision is also
considered appropriate given the sustainable location of the site, with good access to shops, services
and sustainable transport alternatives to the private car.
Cycle parking would comprise a mixture of enclosed Sheffield stands; double stacked racks; enclosed
cycle storage boxes, and; non-enclosed Sheffield stands, with a total of 100 spaces provided. This
represents a reduction of 4 spaces from the scheme when compared with the earlier revision, with the
number of visitor spaces reduced from 18 to 12 in order to accommodate an additional accessible car
parking bay, however the level of provision exceeds current policy minimum requirements by 18
spaces.
Servicing of the commercial unit would be from Durnford Street (as would servicing of much of the
residential accommodation), with a single yellow line and associated plate provided to enable
loading/unloading during 08.00-20.00 Monday to Saturday and be available for parking at all other
times.
On the basis of the above, and given the imposition of relevant planning conditions, the proposal is
considered to be acceptable in relation to highways and servicing matters.

ALTERATIONS TO RECOMMENDED CONDITIONS
Previously proposed conditions are as set out within the previous Officer report, and these are to be
replicated with two exceptions (conditions 13 and 48) where amendments are made to reflect revised
plan numbers following the submission of amended plans to address the reasons for deferral of the
previous application.

CONCLUSION
The amendments made to the scheme following Member deferral are considered to represent positive
improvements to the proposal in consideration of equalities and highways matters, and are
considered to adequately address the concerns raised.

RECOMMENDATION
The application is recommended for approval, subject to (i) a Section 106 legal agreement securing
affordable housing provision; district heat network connection, and; a financial contribution for cycle
infrastructure improvements and a TRO, and (ii) the provision of relevant planning conditions, as set
out below.

Page 32

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2.

Site Specific Construction Environmental Management Plan
No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to
throughout the demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for:
.
A construction programme including phasing of works;
.
24 hour emergency contact number;
.
Procedures for maintaining good public relations including complaint management,
public consultation and liaison
.
Arrangements for liaison with the Council's Pollution Control Team
.
All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such
other place as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out only
between the following hours:
.
08 00 Hours and 18 00 Hours on Mondays to Fridays and 08 00 and 13 00 Hours on
Saturdays, Sundays, and Bank Holidays.
.
Deliveries to and removal of plant, equipment, machinery and waste from the site must
only take place within the permitted hours detailed above.
.
Mitigation measures as defined in BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2 : 2009 Noise and Vibration
Control on Construction and Open Sites shall be used to minimise noise disturbance from
construction works.
.
Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours.
.
Bristol City Council encourages all contractors to be 'Considerate Contractors' when
working in the city by being aware of the needs of neighbours and the environment.
.
Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants. This must also take into
account the need to protect any local resident who may have a particular susceptibility to airborne pollutants.
.
Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for
security purposes.
.
Expected number and type of vehicles accessing the site:
o
Deliveries, waste, cranes, equipment, plant, works, visitors;
o
Size of construction vehicles;
o
The use of a consolidation operation or scheme for the delivery of materials and goods;
o
Phasing of works;
.
Means by which a reduction in the number of movements and parking on nearby
streets can be achieved (including measures taken to ensure satisfactory access and
movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during construction):
o
Programming;

Page 33

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
o
Waste management;
o
Construction methodology;
o
Shared deliveries;
o
Car sharing;
o
Travel planning;
o
Local workforce;
o
Parking facilities for staff and visitors;
o
On-site facilities;
o
A scheme to encourage the use of public transport and cycling;
.
Routes for construction traffic, avoiding weight and size restrictions to reduce
unsuitable traffic on residential roads;
.
Locations for loading/unloading, waiting/holding areas and means of communication for
delivery vehicles if space is unavailable within or near the site;
.
Locations for storage of plant/waste/construction materials;
.
Arrangements for the turning of vehicles, to be within the site unless completely
unavoidable;
.
Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;
.
Swept paths showing access for the largest vehicles regularly accessing the site and
measures to ensure adequate space is available;
.
Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;
.
Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians);
.
Arrangements for temporary facilities for any bus stops or routes;
.
Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;
.
Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses.
Reason: In the interests of surrounding amenity and safe operation of the adopted highway
during the demolition and construction phase of the development.
3.

B1B Highway works - General Arrangement Plan
No development shall take place until general arrangement plan(s) to a scale of 1:200 showing
the following works to the adopted highway has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
o Reinstatement of redundant accessways
o Installation of dropped kerbs
o Resurfacing of footway along Durnford Street frontage
o The widening of the footway along Baynton Road to the Ashton Road junction to a minimum
of 2m
o Introduction of a 2m footway along the Baynton Road frontage
o Works to the Baynton Road/Ashton Road junction to improve pedestrian and vehicular
visibility. This will be achieved via kerb realignment.
o Street lining (removal and introduction) and resurfacing of carriageway where necessary
Where applicable indicating proposals for:
o Existing levels of the finished highway tying into building threshold levels
o Alterations to waiting restrictions or other Traffic Regulation Orders to enable the works
o Signing, street furniture, street trees and pits
o Structures on or adjacent to the highway
o Extent of any stopping up, diversion or dedication of new highway (including all public rights
of way shown on the definitive map and statement)
Prior to occupation these works shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of public safety and to ensure that all road works associated with the
proposed development are: planned; approved in good time (including any statutory

Page 34

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
processes); undertaken to a standard approved by the Local Planning Authority and are
completed before occupation.

4.

Highway Condition Survey
No development shall take place until a survey of the condition of the adopted highway has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The extent of the
area to be surveyed must be agreed by the Highways Authority prior to the survey being
undertaken. The survey must consist of:
o
A plan to a scale of 1:1000 showing the location of all defects identified;
o
A written and photographic record of all defects with corresponding location references
accompanied by a description of the extent of the assessed area and a record of the date, time
and weather conditions at the time of the survey.
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until any
damage to the adopted highway has been made good to the satisfaction of the Highway
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any damage to the adopted highway sustained throughout the
development process can be identified and subsequently remedied at the expense of the
developer.

5.

Highway to be adopted
No development shall take place until plans to a scale of 1:200 showing the following
information has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
o
Long sections
o
General arrangement
o
Threshold levels to buildings
o
Drainage
o
Structures
o
Swept path for two directional movement of a 11.4m long refuse vehicle passing a
4.98m long large saloon car
Prior to occupation detailed technical plans to a scale of 1:200 setting out how the internal
access road(s) will be constructed to the Highway Authority's adoptable standard shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These works shall then be completed to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the internal roads are planned and approved in good time to a satisfactory
standard for use by the public and are completed prior to occupation.

6.

Unexploded Ordnance Risk Assessment
Prior to the commencement of works on site a detailed Unexploded Ordnance Threat and Risk
Assessment shall be undertaken in relation to the site, and shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby approved must then be
implemented in accordance with the mitigation measures outlined in the Detailed Unexploded
Ordnance Threat and Risk Assessment agreed.

Page 35

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

Reason: To ensure that development can take place without unacceptable risk to workers and
neighbours including any unacceptable major disruption to the wider public on and off site that
may arise as a result of evacuation/s associated with the mitigation of UXO.
7.

Coal Mining Legacy
No development shall commence (excluding the demolition of existing structures) until;
a)
a scheme of intrusive investigations has been carried out on site to establish the risks
posed to the development by past shallow coal mining activity; and
b)
any remediation works and/or mitigation measures to address land instability arising
from coal mining legacy, as may be necessary, have been implemented on site in full in order
to ensure that the site is made safe and stable for the development proposed.
The intrusive site investigations and remedial works shall be carried out in accordance with
authoritative UK guidance.
Reason: In the interests of land stability and public safety.

8.

Contamination - Site Characterisation
Following demolition no construction shall take place until an intrusive investigation and risk
assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning application, has been
completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination
on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme shall be
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and
risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings
must be produced.
This must be conducted in accordance with the Environment Agency's 'Land Contamination:
risk management' and BS 10175:2011 + A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated
Sites - Code of Practice.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

9.

Submission of Remediation Scheme
Following demolition no construction shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to
human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must
include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria,
timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site
will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990
in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

Page 36

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
10.

Implementation of approved remediation scheme
In the event that contamination is found, no occupation of the development shall take place
until the approved remediation scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The
Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the
remediation scheme works.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (otherwise known as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness
of the remediation carried out must be produced, and be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

11.

Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
No construction works shall take place until
(i)
a detailed design of the Sustainable Drainage system set out within the approved
Drainage Strategy, and;
(ii)
an associated management and maintenance plan
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable Drainage
Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and maintained thereafter for the lifetime
of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory
means of surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the
principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the
lifetime of the proposal

12.

Bio-diverse roof specification and provision
Prior to the commencement of the bio-diverse roofs hereby approved, detailed specifications
of their construction and planting proposed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The bio-diverse roofs shall then be completed in accordance with
the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, and
retained and maintained as such thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of sustainability, flood risk and biodiversity

13.

Privacy screens
Prior to the commencement of the relevant elements, full details of privacy screens to the
south-western end of the balconies to flats 1.4, 2.4, 2.9, and 3.8 (as set out on accommodation
schedule plan 2599-P011-C) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall then be completed in accordance with the
approved details prior to the occupation of the development, and the privacy screens retained
and maintained as such thereafter.
Reason: To safeguard against overlooking and loss of privacy.

Page 37

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
14.

Site safety and security management plan
Prior to the commencement of the relevant elements, a site safety and security management
plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The plans
shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, full details of the following:
o
The provision of CCTV with an identification quality image in situ at communal
entrances, the public route through the site, and the cycle and bin stores;
o
external lighting around entrances;
o
secure gates/railings to the ground floor parking/servicing areas to meet LPS1175 ;
o
ground floor doors and windows to LPS 1175 SR2 or equivalent and glazing laminated
to BS EN356 2000 P1A;
o
access controlled doors;
o
building compartmentalisation to prevent unauthorised free movement through;
o
localised alarm sounders to access controlled doors and fire exit doors;
o
Cycle store to have access controlled doors to LPS 1175 SR2
The development shall then be completed in full accordance with the approved details prior to
first occupation, and retained and maintained as such thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of safety and security.

15.

Public Art
Prior to the commencement of the relevant element, a Public Art Plan shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Plan should be written by an
external Public Art Producer and should include information on the commissioning, integration
of public art within the development, and environs (where appropriate), timetable for those
works and details of the future maintenance responsibilities and requirements. All public art
works shall be completed in accordance with the agreed scheme and thereafter retained as
part of the development, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the delivery of meaningful Public Art as part of the development.

16.

Sample Panels before specified elements started
Sample panels of all external finishing materials are to be erected on site and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant parts of the work are commenced.
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details before the
building is occupied.
Reason: To ensure an appropriate finished appearance within the context.

17.

Broadband
Prior to commencement, evidence of the provision of 'next generation broadband' shall be
provided by providing evidence that the development has been registered with BT on the BT
Openreach website, with Virgin Media on the Virgin Media website, or an alternative provider.
Registration should show the speed rating/specification of the connection.
Prior to occupation, the development shall be connected to the broadband infrastructure in
accordance with the details agreed.
Reason: To show that residents and businesses will have access to ultrafast broadband from
occupation.

Page 38

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

Pre occupation condition(s)
18.

Coal Mining Legacy - Verification
Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken into beneficial use, a signed
statement or declaration prepared by a suitably competent person confirming that the site is, or
has been made, safe and stable for the approved development shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval in writing. This document shall confirm the methods and
findings of the intrusive site investigations and the completion of any remedial works and/or
mitigation necessary to address the risks posed by past coal mining activity.
Reason: In the interests of land stability and public safety.

19.

Flood Evacuation Plan - Residential Property
No building or use herby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the applicant
has submitted to and had approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a Flood Warning
and Evacuation Plan (FEP). This Plan shall include the following information:
During Demolition/Construction Process
command & control (decision making process and communications to ensure activation
of FEP);
training and exercising of personnel on site (H& S records of to whom and when);
flood warning procedures (in terms of receipt and transmission of information and to whom);
site evacuation procedures and routes; and,
provision for identified safe refuges (who goes there and resources to sustain them).
During Occupation of Development
Direct'.

occupant awareness of the likely frequency and duration of flood events;
safe access to and from the development;
subscription details to Environment Agency flood warning system, 'Flood Warning

Reason: To limit the risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of flood
management on the site
20.

Bat and Bird Boxes
Prior to occupation of the development details provided by a qualified ecological consultant
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority providing the
specification, orientation, height and location for built-in bird nesting and bat roosting
opportunities integrated within buildings and shown on a site plan with compass directions
marked on it. This shall include four built-in swift and two built-in bat boxes. Bird boxes shall
be installed to face between north and east to avoid direct sunlight and heavy rain. Swift
boxes or bricks shall be provided in pairs or groups (e.g. at least two or three on a building,
avoiding windows) on north, north-east or east facing walls, at least 5 metres high, so that
there is a clear distance (drop) below the swift boxes/bricks of 5 metres or more. Swift boxes
shall be located under eaves where present. Bat boxes shall face south, between south-east
and south-west. Bat boxes shall be erected at a height of at least four metres, close to
hedges, shrubs or tree-lines and avoid well-lit locations. Bat boxes which are being placed on
buildings shall be placed as close to the eaves (if present) as possible. Development shall be
undertaken in accordance with the approved details.

Page 39

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.
21.

Submission and Approval of Landscaping Scheme
No building or use herby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until there has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed scheme
of hard and soft landscaping for the development hereby approved. This shall include on-site
tree planting to compensate for the tree to be removed from site in accordance with the Bristol
Tree Replacement Standard. The approved scheme shall be implemented so that planting is
carried out no later than the first planting season following the occupation of the building(s) or
the completion of the development whichever is the sooner. All planted materials shall be
maintained for five years and any trees or plants removed, dying, being damaged or becoming
diseased within that period shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar
size and species to those originally required to be planted unless the council gives written
consent to any variation.
Reason: To protect and enhance the character of the site and the area, and to ensure its
appearance is satisfactory.

22.

Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities - Shown on approved
plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the refuse
stores, and areas/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the
approved plans have been completed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, all
refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be stored within
these dedicated store/areas, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within the
building(s) that form part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored
or placed for collection on the public highway or pavement, except on the day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises, protect the general
environment, and prevent obstruction to pedestrian movement, and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.

23.

Completion of Pedestrians/Cyclists Access - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means
of access for pedestrians and/or cyclists have been constructed in accordance with the
approved plans and shall thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety

24.

Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle
parking provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept
free of obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking

25.

Waste Management Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a waste
management plan setting out how waste will be stored and collected has been prepared,

Page 40

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall
thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved waste management plan for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To ensure appropriate waste management facilities are provided to accommodate all
waste generated by the development.
26.

Letter of indemnity - refuse/recycling access
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved a letter of indemnity shall be
provided to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority to enable refuse/recycling
crews and vehicles to access private land for the collection of waste/recycling without being
liable for any damage that may occur to the immediate highway network as a result.
Reason: To enable access across privately owned land to facilitate refuse/recycling
collections.

27.

Installation of vehicle crossover - Shown on Approved Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until drop kerbs has
been installed at the carriageway edge and a vehicle cross-over constructed across the
footway fronting the site in accordance with the approved plans and retained in that form
thereafter for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety and accessibility

28.

Reinstatement of Redundant Accessways - Shown on Approved Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the footway
has been reinstated to full kerb height, where any vehicle crossover(s) are redundant, in
accordance with the approved plans and retained in that form thereafter for the lifetime of the
development.
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety.

29.

Completion and Maintenance of Car/Vehicle Parking - Shown on Approved Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the car/vehicle
parking area (and turning space) shown on the approved plans has been completed and
thereafter the area shall be kept free of obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles
associated with the development. Driveways/vehicle parking areas accessed from the adopted
highway must be properly consolidated and surfaced, (not loose stone, gravel or grasscrete)
and subsequently maintained in good working order at all times thereafter for the lifetime of the
development.
Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development
constructed to an acceptable standard.

30.

Permissive Route
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of how
the permissive route will be kept open, free from any obstruction, in a safe condition for use by
members of the public 364 days of the year and clearly marked to indicate that there is no
indication to dedicate as part of the adopted highway, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The publicly accessible route through the site shall be

Page 41

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
completed prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter shall
remain free from obstruction and available as a publicly accessible route through the site.
Reason: To ensure the provision of an unrestricted and safe route for the use of members of
the public.
31.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of the
total number of car parking spaces, the number/type/location/means of operation and a
programme for the installation and maintenance of Electric Vehicle Charging Points and points
of passive provision for the integration of future charging points has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to construction of the above ground
works. The Electric Vehicle Charging Points as approved shall be installed prior to occupation
and retained in that form thereafter for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To promote sustainable travel, aid in the reduction of air pollution levels and help
mitigate climate change.

32.

Delivery & Servicing Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a delivery and
servicing plan has been prepared, submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The measures shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved
delivery and servicing plan for the lifetime of the development. The delivery and servicing plan
shall include:
a)
The contact details of a suitably qualified co-ordinator;
b)
How vehicle arrivals, departures, parking, stopping and waiting will be controlled to
minimise any impact on the adopted highway;
c)
Details of any freight consolidation operation, centre and the delivery and servicing
booking and management systems;
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to minimise the impact of vehicles servicing the
development upon congestion

33.

Energy and Sustainability in accordance with statement
The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures,
renewable energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into
the design and construction of the development in full accordance with the approved
Sustainability Statement (by Melin, dated 14th April 2021) prior to occupation.
Reason
To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and can adapt
to a changing climate in accordance with policies BCS13 (Climate Change), BC14 (sustainable
energy), BCS15 (Sustainable design and construction), DM29 (Design of new buildings),
BCAP20 (Sustainable design standards), BCAP21 (connection to heat networks).

34.

Air permeability
Prior to occupation of the development evidence shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the air permeability rate of 5m3/m2.hr
@50 Pa has been achieved, including the provision of copies of the air testing certificates.

Page 42

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Reason: The air permeability will contribute to the overall efficiency, energy demand and
emissions of greenhouse gases of the scheme. To ensure that the development achieves the
level of energy efficiency specified in the Energy Statement with reference to policies BCS13
and BCS14.
35.

PV
Prior to implementation, details of the proposed PV system including location, dimensions,
design/ technical specification together with calculation of annual energy generation
(kWh/annum) and associated reduction in residual CO2 emissions shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Prior to occupation the following information shall be provided:
o
Evidence of the PV system as installed including exact location, technical
specification and projected annual energy yield (kWh/year) e.g. a copy of the MCS installer's
certificate.
o
A calculation showing that the projected annual yield of the installed system is
sufficient to reduce residual CO2 emissions by at least 20%.
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.

36.

Renewable energy (heat pumps) - where further detail is required (Block B only)
Prior to implementation, details of the renewable energy technology (including the exact
location, dimensions, design/ technical specification, GWP of refrigerant used, and any leak
detection) together with calculation of energy generation and associated CO2 emissions to
achieve 21% reduction on residual emissions from renewable energy in line with the approved
energy statement should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.
The renewable energy technology shall be installed prior to occupation of the dwellings and
thereafter retained.
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions

37.

Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time that had not previously been identified
when carrying out the approved development, it must be reported immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance
with the Environment Agency's 'Land Contamination: risk management' guidance and BS
10175:2011 + A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice.
Where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which ensures the
site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act
1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of
commencement of the remediation scheme works.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

Page 43

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
38.

Details of Extraction/Ventilation System (Ground floor commercial uses)
No equipment for the extraction and dispersal of cooking smells/fumes shall be installed until
details including odour control measures, noise levels, cleaning, maintenance and filter
replacement policies been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved scheme shall be installed before the commencement of use of any
such equipment and thereafter shall be permanently retained.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally

Post occupation management
39.

Noise from plant & equipment affecting residential
The rating level of any noise generated by plant & equipment as part of the development shall
be at least 5 dB below the pre-existing background level at any time at any residential
premises.
Any assessments to be carried out and be in accordance with BS4142: 2014 Methods for
rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally

40.

Restriction of Parking Level on site
Parking within the development site is to be restricted to the areas allocated on the approved
plans and shall not encroach onto areas allocated on the plans for other uses.
Reason: To control the level of parking on the site and to safeguard the uses of other areas.

41.

Travel Plan Statement - Submitted
The Travel Plan Statement hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the
measures set out therein.
Within three months of occupation, evidence of the implementation of the measures set out in
Travel Plan Statement shall be prepared, submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority unless alternative timescales are agreed in writing.
Reason: To support sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in single occupancy
car journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking and cycling.

42.

Use of Refuse and Recycling facilities (commercial use only)
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables and the tipping of empty bottles
into external receptacles shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00 Monday to Saturday.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby occupiers

43.

Deliveries (ground floor commercial uses only)
Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00.

Page 44

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby occupiers
44.

Opening hours (Commercial uses only)
No customers shall remain on the ground floor commercial premises outside the hours of
08.00 to 20.00 Monday to Sunday.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

45.

Vegetation Clearance
No clearance of vegetation or structures suitable for nesting birds, shall take place between
1st March and 30th September inclusive in any year without the prior written approval of the
local planning authority. The authority will require evidence provided by a suitably qualified
ecological consultant that no breeding birds would be adversely affected before giving any
approval under this condition. Where checks for nesting birds are required they shall be
undertaken by a qualified ecological consultant no more than 48 hours prior to the removal of
vegetation or the demolition of, or works to buildings.
Reason: To ensure that wild birds, building or using their nests are protected. All species of
wild birds are legally protected including their eggs, nests and chicks until the young have
fledged.

46.

Use restriction - Commercial unit - Class E
The ground floor commercial unit hereby approved shall be occupied by use(s) falling within
class E as defined by Schedule 2 Part A of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020.
Reason: In the interests of compatibility of the commercial operation with surrounding
residential uses.

List of approved plans
47.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
2599 P100 A Location plan, received 8 September 2020
2599 P011 C Accommodation schedule, received 1 February 2022
2599 P101 A Proposed site plan, received 8 September 2020
2599 P102 Existing site plan, received 8 September 2020
2599 P201 D Ground and first floor plan, received 1 February 2022
2599 P202 D Block A - second and third floor plan, received 1 February 2022
2599 P203 D Block A - Fourth and fifth floor plan, received 1 February 2022
2599 P205 B Block A - roof plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P210 B Block B - ground and first floor plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P211 B Block B - second and roof plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P300 C Block A B SE NW elevation, received 4 May 2021
2599 P301 D Block A - NE SW elevation, received 1 February 2022
2599 P302 B Block B elevation, received 4 May 2021
2599 P305 B Context elevation, received 4 May 2021

Page 45

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
2599 P306 B Context elevation 2, received 4 May 2021
2599 P400 A Block A B proposed section, received 8 September 2020
3712-2 Ground floor, received 8 September 2020
3712-3 First floor, received 8 September 2020
1966 Travel plan statement, received 8 September 2020
Acoustic assessment, received 8 September 2020
Bat survey, received 8 September 2020
Carbon emissions calculation, received 8 September 2020
Sustainability Statement rev A, received 4 May 2021
FRA01 Flood risk assessment, received 22 October 2020
Flood risk sequential test, received 8 September 2020
Ground investigation and coal mining risk assessment, received 8 September 2020
Daylight sunlight impact assessment, received 8 September 2020
The old dairy archaeological assessment, received 8 September 2020
Townscape and visual impact assessment, received 8 September 2020
Transport statement, received 8 September 2020
Drainage strategy, received 22 October 2020
2599-P110 D Proposed Site Plan, received 1 February 2022
Overheating Assessment, received 4 May 2021
TN01 Highways Technical Note 01, received 4 May 2021
2599-P402 Site context Sections and Boundary Treatment 02, received 6 October 2021
TN02 Highway Consultant Technical Note, received 6 October 2021
2599-P401 Site context Sections and Boundary Treatment 01 - 1, received 6 October 2021
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Advices
1

Works on the Public Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway.
You are advised that before undertaking work on the adopted highway you must enter into a
highway agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the council, which would
specify the works and the terms and conditions under which they are to be carried out.
Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team at
transportDM@bristol.gov.uk allowing sufficient time for the preparation and signing of the
Agreement. You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in undertaking the
following actions:
I.
II.
III.
IV.

Drafting the Agreement
A Monitoring Fee equivalent to 15% of the planning application fee
Approving the highway details
Inspecting the highway works

NB: Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured and the
Highway Authority's technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be
considered and approved.
2

Minor Works on the Public Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway.

Page 46

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted highway you must enter into
a highway agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the council.
You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in undertaking the approval and
inspection of the works. Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management
Team at transportDM@bristol.gov.uk
NB: Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured and the
Highway Authority's technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be
considered and approved.
3

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
You are advised that a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is required. You must submit a plan to a
scale of 1:1000 of an indicative scheme for a TRO, along with timescales for commencement
and completion of the development. Please be aware that the statutory TRO process is not
straightforward; involving the public advertisement of the proposal(s) and the resolution of any
objections.
You should expect a minimum of six months to elapse between the Highway Authority's TRO
Team confirming that it has all the information necessary to enable it to proceed and the TRO
being advertised. You will not be permitted to implement the TRO measures until the TRO has
been sealed, and we cannot always guarantee the outcome of the process.
We cannot begin the TRO process until the appropriate fee has been received. To arrange for
a TRO to be processed contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management
Team at transportdm@bristol.gov.uk
N.B. The cost of implementing any lining, signing or resurfacing required by the TRO is
separate to the TRO fees, which solely cover the administration required to prepare, consult,
amend and seal the TRO.

4

Highway to be Adopted
The development hereby approved includes the construction of new highway. To be
considered for adoption and ongoing maintenance at the public expense it must be
constructed to the Highway Authority's Engineering Standard Details and terms for the phasing
of the development. You are advised that you must enter into a highway agreement under
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. The development will be bound by Sections 219 to 225
(the Advance Payments Code) of the Highways Act 1980.
Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team at
DMengineering@bristol.gov.uk You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in
undertaking the following actions:
I.
II.
III.
IV.

Drafting the Agreement
Set up costs
Approving the highway details
Inspecting the highway works

To discuss the requirement for sewers contact the Highway Authority's Flood Risk
Management Team at flood.data@bristol.gov.uk You should enter into discussions with
statutory undertakers as soon as possible to co-ordinate the laying of services under any new
highways to be adopted by the Highway Authority.

Page 47

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

N.B. The Highway Authority's technical approval inspection fees must be paid before any
drawings will be considered and approved. Once technical approval has been granted a
Highway Agreement under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed and the
bond secured.
5

Public Right of Way
The property boundary of the development hereby approved abuts a Public Right of Way
PROW (No.) (SPECIFY). You are advised that before undertaking any work you must contact
the Highway Authority's Public Rights Of Way Team at rightsofway@bristol.gov.uk Whilst it
may be unlikely that the Public Right Of Way will be affected by the proposed development
(PROW) (No.) (SPECIFY):
o
Should remain open, unobstructed and safe for public use at all times;
o
No materials are to be stored or spilled on the surface of the PROW;
o
There must be no encroachment onto the width of the PROW;
o
No vehicles are to use the PROW without lawful authority of the landowner(s), unless a
private right of way is shown on property deeds. It is the applicant's responsibility to ensure
that the appropriate private right exists or has been acquired from the landowner.
o
Any scaffolding and/or skips placed over or adjacent to the PROW must not obstruct
public access or inconvenience the public in their use of the way and must be properly
licensed. Licences are available at www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences
o
Any interference of the PROW either whilst demolition/construction is in progress or on
completion, may well constitute a criminal offence.
If construction works are likely to temporarily affect the right of way, a Temporary Traffic
Regulation Order (TTRO) may be required to close or divert the PROW for the duration of the
works on the grounds of safety of the public. To discuss and/or apply for a TTRO contact the
Highway Authority's Network Management Team at traffic@bristol.gov.uk
N.B. Any damage caused to the surface of the PROW during development works must be
made good to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority.

6

Impact on the highway network during construction
The development hereby approved and any associated highway works required, is likely to
impact on the operation of the highway network during its construction (and any demolition
required). You are advised to contact the Highway Authorities Network Management Team at
traffic@bristol.gov.uk before undertaking any work, to discuss any temporary traffic
management measures required, such as footway, Public Right of Way, carriageway closures
or temporary parking restrictions a minimum of eight weeks prior to any activity on site to
enable Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders to be prepared and a programme of Temporary
Traffic Management measures to be agreed.

7

Restriction of Parking Permits - Existing Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme
You are advised that the Local Planning Authority has recommended to the Highways
Authority which administers the existing Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme
of which the development forms part that the development shall be treated as car free / lowcar and the occupiers are ineligible for resident parking permits as well as visitors parking
permits if in a Residents Parking Scheme.

8

Restriction of Parking Permits - Future Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme

Page 48

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
You are advised that the Local Planning Authority has recommended to the Highways
Authority that on the creation of any Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme area
which includes the development, that the development shall be treated as car free / low-car
and the occupiers are ineligible for resident parking permits as well as visitors parking permits
if in a Residents Parking Scheme.
9

Highway Condition Survey
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of a Highway Condition Survey.
To agree the extent of the area to be surveyed contact the Highway Authority's Transport
Development Management Team at transportDM@bristol.gov.uk

10

Excavation Works on the Adopted Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of excavation works on the
adopted highway. You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted highway
you will require a Section 171 (Excavation) Licence from the Highway Authority which is
available at www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences

11

Street Name and Numbering
You are advised that to ensure that all new properties and streets are registered with the
emergency services, Land Registry, National Street Gazetteer and National Land and Property
Gazetteer to enable them to be serviced and allow the occupants access to amenities
including but not limited to; listing on the Electoral Register, delivery services, and a registered
address on utility companies databases, details of the name and numbering of any new
house(s) and/or flats/flat conversion(s) on existing and/or newly constructed streets must be
submitted to the Highway Authority.
Any new street(s) and property naming/numbering must be agreed in accordance with the
Councils Street Naming and Property Numbering Policy and all address allocations can only
be issued under the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (Section 64 & 65) and the Public
Health Act 1925 (Section 17, 18 & 19). Please see www.bristol.gov.uk/registeraddress

12

Sustainable Drainage System (SUDS)
The development hereby approved includes the construction/provision of a sustainable
drainage system. You are advised to contact the Highway Authority's Flood Risk Management
Team at flood.data@bristol.gov.uk before any works commence.

13

Heat Pump Refrigerants
Given the very high global warming potential (GWP) of refrigerants used in heat pumps
including variable refrigerant flow (VRF) units I recommend that refrigerant leak detection
should be provided in accordance with the guidance in BREEAM (Ref: Pol 01 - Impact of
refrigerants
https://www.breeam.com/BREEAMUK2014SchemeDocument/content/12_pollution/pol01.htm )
as follows:
o
A permanent automated refrigerant leak detection system or where an inbuilt
automated diagnostic procedure for detecting leakage should be installed. In either case a
robust and tested refrigerant leak detection system must be installed and must be capable of
continuously monitoring for leaks.
o
The system must be capable of automatically isolating and containing the remaining
refrigerant(s) charge in response to a leak detection incident.

Page 49

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
14

Asbestos
The potential presence of asbestos containing materials (ACM's) on the site is noted. In order
to prevent contamination of the site, surrounding highways and to prevent harm to construction
workers, surrounding residents, receptors and future site users, we recommend the applicants
undertake an asbestos survey prior to the commencement of works. Any asbestos containing
materials present on site must be removed in accordance with the Control of Asbestos
Regulations 2012.

15

PV Advisory
The projected annual yield and technical details of the installed system will be provided by the
Micro-generation Certification Scheme (MCS) approved installer.
The impact of shading on the annual yield of the installed PV system (the Shading Factor)
should be calculated by an MCS approved installer using the Standard Estimation Method
presented in the MCS guidance.

commdelgranted
V1.0211

Page 50

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
APPENDIX: Previous Officer Report from 12th January 2022 Committee.

Page 51

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
BACKGROUND
This application has not been subject to call-in by a local Councillor, however the major nature of the
proposal combined with the level of public interest associated with the proposal are such that it is
considered appropriate that the scheme is considered by members of the planning committee.
SITE DESCRIPTION AND APPLICATION
The application relates to an L-shaped site in Ashton, set between Durnford Street to the south-east
and Baynton Road to the north-west. The site is currently occupied by industrial/commercial buildings
of one and two-storeys in height, along with associated external yard space. The site is located
amongst a mixture of commercial and residential buildings, with commercial/industrial buildings set to
the north/north-east and south-west, and residential properties beyond, as well as to the south-east
and north-west. A residential development has been recently approved on an adjoining site to the
north/north-east at the 'Old Brewery'.
The application proposes the redevelopment of the site for predominantly residential use, but also
retaining a commercial unit at ground floor level fronting Durnford Street. The proposal comprises a
six-storey block of 33 flats set between Baynton Road and Durnford Street; a terrace of 7 three-storey
town houses fronting Durnford Street, and; private and communal garden areas, parking and
servicing.
See plans and supporting documents for full details.
RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Application site:
19/01667/PREAPP - Proposal to create 48 new dwellings. CLOSED.
18/05296/COU - Notification for Prior Approval for a proposed change of use of Unit 3 from Storage or
Distribution unit (Use Class B8) to a 2 no. dwellinghouses (Use Class C3). PRIOR APPROVAL
GIVEN.
18/05295/COU - Notification for Prior Approval for a proposed change of use of Unit 2 from Storage or
Distribution unit (Use Class B8) to a 3 no. dwellinghouses (Use Class C3). PRIOR APPROVAL
GIVEN.
18/05294/COU - Notification for Prior Approval for a proposed change of use of Unit 1 from Storage or
Distribution unit (Use Class B8) to a 6 no. dwellinghouses (Use Class C3). PRIOR APPROVAL
GIVEN.
18/05293/COU - Notification for Prior Approval for a proposed change of use of Unit 4 from office use
(Class B1(a)) to a dwellinghouse (Class C3). PRIOR APPROVAL GIVEN.
18/05289/COU - Notification for Prior Approval for a proposed change of use of Unit 5 from office use
(Class B1(a)) to a 4 no. dwellinghouses (Class C3). PRIOR APPROVAL GIVEN.
17/06271/SCR - Request for a Screening Opinion as to whether an Environmental Impact
Assessment is required for a mixed use development at the Old Brewery and Brewery Court, North
Street, Southville. (Please note that this is not a planning application and therefore we are not
carrying out public consultation on the proposal at this stage).

Page 52

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Adjoining site (The Old Brewery, 1-3 Ashton Road):
18/04367/F - Partial demolition of existing buildings and structures to provide a mixed-use
development comprising 107 residential units, office workspace and flexible commercial space (Use
Classes C3, B1, B1/A1/A3/A4/C1) with associated car parking, servicing, landscaping works and
infrastructure. (Major Application). PERMISSION GRANTED.
PRE-APPLICATION COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The application is supported by a statement of pre-application community involvement (see statement
of community involvement for full details). It is expressed by the developers' team that the
extraordinary circumstances arising from COVID-19 are such that a typical community engagement
process has not been possible prior to the submission of the application. It is also expressed that the
BS3 Planning Group were invited to discuss the plans and aspirations for the site, although
unfortunately no response was received.
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
The application was advertised via site and press notices, along with letters sent to surrounding
occupiers. 10 written responses were received, raising concerns that can be summarised as follows:
Principle
The Old Dairy should remain as a commercial area
Highways
•
•
•
•
•
•

Increased pressure for on-street parking
Inadequate parking provision on site
Increased traffic congestion locally
Concerns that emergency vehicle will not be able to access due to saturated on-street parking
EV charging points should be provided
Servicing provision is required for the commercial unit

Design
•
•
•
•

Height of the proposed buildings is out of character for the area
The height of the development should be reduced
Overdevelopment of the site
The appearance of the proposal is not sympathetic to its surroundings

Residential Amenity
•
•
•

Overshadowing
Overlooking/loss of privacy (surrounding residential windows and gardens)
Noise and disturbance from increased occupancy

Following amendments to the scheme to address issues raised in relation to design, highways and
sustainability matters, a re-consultation exercise was undertaken. 29 written responses were
received, raising concerns that can be summarised as follows:

Page 53

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Principle
•
•
•

The Old Dairy should remain as a commercial area
Unsuitable location for a commercial unit
Inadequate affordable housing provision

Highways
•
•
•
•

Increased pressure for on-street parking
Inadequate parking provision on site
Increased traffic posing a highway safety risk
Future residents should not be eligible for parking permits should a future RPZ be introduced

Design
•
•
•
•
•

Height of the proposed buildings is out of character for the area
The height of the development should be reduced
Overdevelopment of the site
The appearance of the proposal is not sympathetic to its surroundings
Negative impact upon local skyline

Residential Amenity
•
•
•
•

Overshadowing
Overlooking/loss of privacy (surrounding residential windows and gardens)
Noise and disturbance from increased occupancy
Refuse storage opposite existing houses, with associated rodent and strewn rubbish problems

Other
•

Increased pressure on local schools and doctors surgeries

Bristol Civic Society has commented as follows:
Bristol Civic Society, in its response to the pre-application drawings, suggested that the properties
fronting Durnford Street should be designed as town houses with front doors opening from the street.
The Society welcomes the adoption of this approach. However, we are concerned about the height of
block A. The development of the adjoining old brewery site will result in high buildings at the boundary
between the two sites. Taken together with the proposed height of block A, this will result in the rear
amenity space being very overshadowed. We suggest that block A should be reduced by at least one
storey. This would also take some of the pressure off demand for on-street parking space.
BS3 Planning group has commented as follows:
Pro:
In favour of this development in general as it seems to currently have a good mix of property
styles/sizes
Also at an appropriate density
Good use of green roofs
Con:
Concerns about sustainability (old fashioned looking building scheme)

Page 54

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Lack of soft landscaping
Lack of amenity space
Loss of employment as businesses close
Access to/from site
The Bristol City Council Highways Officer has commented as follows (25/11/20):
Local Conditions
The application site is located on Durnford Street which connects with Duckmoor Road to the west,
Durnford Avenue to the east and Ashville Road to the south-east. Durnford Street is lit and is subject
to a speed limit of 20mph.
The application site also has access from Baynton Road to the north which is a circa 7.0 metre wide
single carriageway road with a 1.5 metre footway. Baynton Road is lit and subject to a speed limit of
20mph.
There are bus stops located on Duckmoor Road from which the 24 service to Southmead Hospital via
the City Centre operates. The 24 also operates from a number of accessible bus stops situated along
North Street. Greenway Bus Lane offers the cycling desire line towards the City Centre via the
Vauxhall Bridge. There are a number of local shops and amenities situated along North Street within
walking and cycling distance of the site. Raleigh Road has been identified within the LCWIP as the
Bristol Route 8 variant. This route offers the most accessible route northwards via the Goal Ferry
Bridge.
Trip Generation
The applicant has undertaken a trip generation study to ascertain the net trip impact of the
development upon the local highway network. In predicting the trip rates TDM note in some instances
a minimal number of site have been utilised to provide a trip output. The submitted trip information
estimates the existing uses would generate 32 AM peak, 15 PM peak and 258 daily total person trips.
The proposed development would generate 37 AM peak, 40 PM peak and 358 daily total person trips.
In calculating the modal splits of both the existing and proposed site uses the applicant has utilised
the TRICS outputs. TDM question their suitability given the Southville ward tends to have a higher
sustainable transport modal share.
Durnford Street Access
The two existing accesses from Durnford Street will be stopped up and a new vehicular/pedestrian
access will be constructed. This access will serve seven car parking spaces.
Appendix 6 of the Transport Statement provides detail of the site access arrangement. This will
involve the removal of the existing keep clear markings with double yellow lines introduced to maintain
an unobstructed access point.
TDM request swept path analysis that details the use of the proposed parking spaces for plots 1-7 as
well as swept path analysis demonstrating a vehicle accessing and egressing the parking court.
Additionally TDM require swept path analysis that demonstrates the ability for a car to wait whilst
another passes. This is required in order to ensure a vehicle is not required to reverse onto Durnford
Street.
There are also proposed gates at this access however it is unclear which direction they open given
Appendix 5 and Appendix 6 contradict one another. Clarification is required.
Baynton Road
Along Baynton Road the existing vehicular access will be modified to serve 10 car parking spaces. A

Page 55

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
second access will be provided to the east which will serve one car parking space.
TDM raise concerns regarding the lack of a footway along the sites frontage. A 2m footway is required
along the sites frontage and along Baynton Road. This will require an element of s278 highway works
and the adoption of land as highway which can be secured through an s38 adoption agreement. Plans
must be amended which demonstrate this requirement. In addition to this TDM raise concerns
regarding the overhang of the adopted footway and this must therefore be revised.
To the north of the Baynton Road carriageway there will be four car parking spaces adjacent to an
area of green space to serve the affordable housing. TDM raise concerns regarding their suitability
given the requirement for an 11.4m refuse vehicle to perform a turning manoeuvre. Swept path
analysis has been submitted for an 11.2m refuse vehicle which falls below this requirement.
Furthermore the swept path analysis demonstrates the requirement of the refuse vehicle to reverse
over what will be a footway which is considered to be unsafe and will also cause an ongoing
maintenance concern. It is likely the parking spaces will need to be reoriented.
TDM also require swept path analysis demonstrating the ability of cars to utilise this parking and the
internal site parking.
Public Access
The proposals include a publicly accessible permeable link through the site that connects Durnford
Street to Baynton Road. TDM support this link however require the gated entrances to be removed.
The use of gates will not promote the link as useable for the general public which will subsequently
not meet the aims of this link. It should be noted this link must measure at least 2m in width at all
points. TDM note a number of doors open out onto this link. Again these should be reassessed and
open inwards.
Car Parking
The applicant has proposed a total of 23 onsite parking spaces for the proposed 40 dwellings. Given
the sustainable nature of the site resulting in the ability for residents to live at this location car-free,
TDM raise no concerns however the TRO would need to be extended to cover the local junctions in
order to maintain junction safety. As a result of the stopping up of the existing accesses, the creation
of the proposed access, the removal of the 'Keep Clear' road markings and introduction of the TRO,
the net effect on on-street car parking capacity on Durnford Street will be an increase of two car
parking spaces.
The car parking management strategy is for the 23 spaces to be allocated as follows:
o
16 car parking spaces will be allocated to 16 of the 33 apartments of which 12 are located on
the ground floor within the site and 4 are located to the north of Block A, on Baynton Road. 2 of the
spaces will be accessible parking bays.
o
7 car parking spaces are provided to serve the houses (one space per house) and these are
located on the ground floor of Block B to the rear of the dwellings.
TDM are content the allocation of car parking spaces will dissuade other occupiers from car
ownership thereby reducing the overall demand for car parking. It is also noted that given the change
of use of the site from commercial use, demand for on-street parking during the day is expected
decrease. Residents will not be eligible for parking permits should a future RPZ be introduced.
Cycle Parking
TDM raise no concerns regarding the quantum of cycle parking to be provided as this is above the

Page 56

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
minimum policy requirement. The cycle parking spaces are to be provided in the following form:
56 spaces provided by secure and enclosed Sheffield stands.
20 spaces provided by high quality double stacked racks.
21 spaces provided by secure and enclosed cycle storage boxes.
12 spaces provided by non-enclosed Sheffield stands.
The design, quantity and location of the cycle parking are considered to be acceptable.
S106
A contribution of £5,913 is required in respect to the TRO. This will required for the waiting and
loading restrictions along Baynton Road, protection of junctions and parking restrictions along the
Durnford Street frontage.
Only two cycle trips are proposed to be undertaken by users of this site during the AM peak with one
undertaken in the PM peak. The submitted cycle modal share demonstrates that the facilities in this
location are inadequate in promoting cycling as a form of everyday transport. The promotion of cycling
is critical in addressing congestion and minimising vehicular parking requirements, the negative health
impacts of inactivity and the harm caused by bad air quality. TDM therefore require a contribution of
£20,000 towards the provision of signage and wayfinding measures along Route 8 of the LCWIP
including Raleigh Road. Raleigh Road has been identified as a Route 8 variant within the West of
England LCWIP and its improvement is critical in the promotion of cycling and the subsequent
reduction of reliance on the private motor vehicle.
Highway Works
TDM raise concerns with the proposed steps/obstructions onto the highway along the Durnford Street
frontage. These must be removed.
In terms of highway works the following is required:
The widening of the footway along Baynton Road to a minimum of 2m
Introduction of a 2m footway along the Baynton Road frontage
Works to the Baynton Road/Ashton Road junction to improve pedestrian and vehicular visibility. This
will be achieved via kerb realignment.
Resurfacing footway along the entire Durnford Street frontage
Upgrade/introduction of street lighting
Reinstatement of vehicular crossovers
Street lining (removal and introduction) and resurfacing of carriageway where necessary
Emergency Vehicles
Swept path analysis demonstrates that a fire tender can access the site from the Baynton Road
access. In the case of an emergency, a fire tender can also stop on Durnford Street to serve the
commercial unit and the houses. Given a fire tender can reach within 45m of the site no concerns are
raised.
Servicing
Delivery vehicles will serve the houses and the commercial unit from the Durnford Street site frontage.
TDM raise concerns regarding the obstruction of Durnford Street for deliveries to the commercial unit.
The likely timings and frequency of deliveries is unclear and a servicing strategy is therefore required.

Page 57

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Waste
There are three elements of waste storage to consider; commercial, flatted residential and the
proposed houses.
In respect to the commercial element there is a refuse storage area located within the unit. Given this
will be collected privately no concerns are raised.
The drawings for the Baynton Road waste store show several individual wheeled bins not communal
containers. The store should have an access directly onto Baynton Road as this will allow waste
operatives to collect directly from the store and prevent the need for them to enter private land and
prevent the storage of bins on the highway.
Travel Planning
No concerns are raised regarding the travel plan statement. TDM are content a condition could be
applied which requires its implementation.
Recommendation
Before TDM are able to make a positive recommendation the following issues must be addressed:
Introduction of a 2m footway along the Baynton Road sites frontage
Swept path analysis as detailed
Amendments to the public link between Durnford Street and Baynton Road
Highway works general arrangement plan
Servicing strategy for commercial element
Amendments to the waste provision
The Bristol City Council Highways Officer has commented as follows (19/08/21):
Introduction of a 2m footway along the Baynton Road sites frontage and Highway Works
Following initial comments, the applicant has agreed to provide a 2m footway along the Baynton Road
frontage. The following highway works will be provided as part of this development and this shall
subsequently be conditioned.
A 2.0 metre footway along the Baynton Road site frontage.
Resurfacing of the footway along the entire Durnford Street frontage.
Reinstatement of vehicular crossovers.
Street lining (removal and introduction) and resurfacing of carriageway where necessary.
The widening of the footway the length of Baynton Road to a minimum of 2 metres.
Works to the Baynton Road/Ashton Road junction to improve pedestrian and vehicular visibility. This
will be achieved via kerb realignment.
Upgrade to street lighting
The applicant's position is they do not believe the installation/upgrade of street lighting is applicable to
their site due to scale. TDM contest this position given the introduction of 40 dwellings will change the
nature of the area from commercial to residential. At present there is no street lighting along the sites
Baynton Road frontage and the lighting that is situated along Baynton Road is of a sub-standard
condition for a residential area. As consistent with developments of this size that change the nature of
street lighting requirements for an area TDM require a street lighting design be provided and the
street lighting upgraded/ installed. This can be provided at technical design stage however will
subsequently be conditioned.

Page 58

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
TDM welcome the provision of the 2m footway however require swept path analysis for a LWB
Sprinter Van accessing/egressing the adjacent warehouse site. This will enable TDM to assess the
safety of the splayed footway.
Swept path analysis
TDM welcome the swept path analysis which demonstrates an 11.4m refuse vehicle can perform a
turning manoeuvre. Given this is private land an indemnity letter is required. It will also be the
responsibility of the applicant to ensure this area remains free from blockage and a suitable condition
shall be applied.
In respect to the internal vehicular parking no concerns are raised.
Amendments to the public link between Durnford Street and Baynton Road
The applicant has removed the proposed gates along the proposed public link between Durnford
Street and Baynton Road. This is welcomed and a condition shall be applied that requires this link to
remain open in perpetuity and free from obstruction.
Servicing strategy for commercial element
Within TDM's initial comments concern was raised that delivery vehicles servicing the commercial unit
would cause an obstruction on Durnford Street and requests more information on likely timings and
frequency.
The applicant has proposed a single yellow line Traffic Regulation Order on the Durnford Street site
frontage to accommodate delivery vehicles and a plan has been provided within the submitted
transport technical note. A plate will be introduced which will permit loading and unloading during the
hours of 1000 and 1600 Monday to Saturday and will be available for parking at all other times.
A Delivery and Service Vehicle Management Plan will be secured by a planning condition.
Amendments to the waste provision
The Baynton Road waste storage area will have communal containers rather than individual wheeled
bins and the store will have direct access onto Baynton Road. Waste operatives will be able to collect
directly from the store from Baynton Road rather than entering the site and prevent the storage of bins
on the highway.
Contribution
The applicant has rejected the notion of providing a contribution towards cycle infrastructure
improvements.
The application proposes a low parking level (Nineteen due to revisions) and does not contribute
towards the promotion of alternative sustainable modes. Consequently, it is considered that without
improvement to the cycle routes that do exist, the development would fail to maximise the opportunity
for access to the site by non-car modes of transport in line with current policy. This would intensify the
on-street parking concerns within the area given the nature of the location adjacent to the RPS.
In respect to the calculation of future cyclist numbers this has been predicted utilising existing cycling
levels of similar developments with a scale factor subsequently applied. This does not provide for the
aspirational future level of cycling, which is required to address the climate emergency, poor air
quality or healthy neighbourhoods but reinforces the status quo of car-based development and carbased movement, as evidenced by the submitted trip statistics.

Page 59

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

TDM consider this contribution to meet the three tests as set out within the National Planning Policy
Framework. Without this contribution TDM would consider the application to be contrary to both local
and national planning policy.
The Bristol City Council Highways Officer has commented as follows (30.11.21):
Following the revised comments TDM required swept path analysis (which has been provided and
demonstrates safe access into the adjacent site), a £20k contribution towards cycle infrastructure
wayfinding improvements (which has now been accepted) and upgrade to street lighting. Whilst TDM
disagree regarding the omission of the upgrade to street lighting it is acknowledged there is existing
street lighting and the development will result in a benefit to sustainable transport.
On this basis TDM are satisfied the applicant has addressed the remaining TDM requirements and
therefore recommend approval of the application subject to s106 contributions and conditions.
The Bristol City Council Urban Design Officer has commented as follows (05/03/21):
CDG supports the proposal in principal and seeks to play a positive role in resolving the detailed
aspects of the scheme.
Layout
CDG is broadly supportive of the layout configuring the site as two development blocks and delivering
a route through the site connecting Baynton Road and Dunford Road.
CDG questions if the inner courtyard sandwiched between rear garden fences of Block-B and the Old
Brewery development is best configuration. CDG suggest options to restrict the parking area closer to
Block-A and reserving the majority of the space for private or communal outdoor space.
Landscape
CDG recommends that the applicants reconsider the diagonal design for landscaped areas,
particularly the Reworked Public Courtyard space as the constraints posed by multiple access points
don't align with diagonal pattern.
The paved area adjacent to Block-A has a potential to serve as a quality communal space.
Consideration should be given to removing the visitor parking and designing the space for the
residents and community.
Consideration should be given to removing the gate on the new access link.
The design of the boundary between the site and the neighbouring parcels needs to be clarified.
Development Blocks
The height scale and massing of the Block-B is acceptable. The accentuated height for Block-A is a
potential area of concern and needs TVIA photomontages to make the assessment.
Sections showing the relation of the proposal with the neighbouring properties/development are
needed for assessment.
The ground floor of Block-A presents car parking and blank frontage to public realm. It is
recommended to reconsider the arrangement.

Page 60

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Threshold spaces for the entrances on Block-A and Block-B need special focus with the design
resolution clarified. This can be included in the 'design intent document'.
High quality elevations will depend on adequate façade depths with appropriate facet detailing. CDG
seeks a design intent document for the detail elements of scheme to clarify this aspect. This
document should describe materials (colour/tone/texture, intended façade detailing with approximate
dimensions)
Public Art
It appears that the public art approach could be strengthened by more intensive community
engagement which would foster a sense of collective ownership. CDG recommends the design team
review this part of the public art strategy.
The Bristol City Council Urban Design Officer has commented as follows (27.09.21):
No Urban Living assessment has been presented to support the proposal. Liveability considerations
like large proportion of single aspect apartments, lack of natural light and ventilation in communal
spaces are special area of concern.
Layout
The revision partly addresses the intent of the comments. CDG recommends removal of parking 1 to
4 and moving parking 5 to 7 closer to access. This will allow for significantly larger communal/private
amenity space.
Landscape
CDG acknowledges the removal of the diagonal pattern to address the comments. The current design
and annotation gives an impression of the space primary oriented towards vehicles. While the access
rights are acknowledges, it is unclear of the Reworked Public Courtyard space will continue to serve
as a public amenity space with associated seating and activities. CDG recommends public use of the
space should be given primary importance.
CDG acknowledges the removal of visitor parking to address the comments.
Please provide sections to clarify the relation with the approved proposals.
Development Blocks
Please provide the images for TVIA.
Please provide sections to clarify the relation with the approved proposals.
Greater detail with design intention needs to be included in the design intent document.
Public Art
Public art is intended to be integral part of design development and public engagement phases of the
scheme. Engagement of artists at early stages of design offers great potential for cross fertilisation of
design ideas. It is not appropriate to wholly defer the public art component to planning condition stage.
The Bristol City Council Sustainability Officer has commented as follows (04/03/21):
This site is within a developing Heat Network area (Long Ashton) as per existing feasibility studies by
SEL. It has been confirmed that there is to be an energy centre close to this site and the proposed
route will be directly adjacent to the development. The site can benefit from a Day 1 heat network
connection. Block A (resi and commercial) would be well suited to connect to the DH network and a
S106 agreement should be sought for connection. I am happy with the 7 units in Block B using a heat

Page 61

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
pump strategy.
With regard to point 1; Information with regard to specific fabric improvements above existing Building
Regulations ~(U values) has been provided and I note proposed air tightness of the development at
5m3/h/m2. I note use of 'natural ventilation' has been proposed.
Solar PV has been mentioned within the statement and I can see an indicative area shown on the roof
plan. Revised figures following incorporation of heat network strategy should be confirmed, and an
MCS pre-assessment should be carried out to confirm the kwp required to achieve the 20% reduction
in carbon emissions required by policy, and therefore the number of solar PV panels required to
achieve the required reduction. The PVs should be shown on the plans to ensure that there is
sufficient space to site them on the roof.
With regard to the heat hierarchy, within Policy BCS14, the site is located within the Heat Network
Priority Area as per the adopted Local Plan. The site (Block A) would therefore be expected to
connect to the forthcoming Long Ashton Heat Network via S106. The Energy Statement should be
reviewed to include this.
Where heat pumps are being specified I would strongly encourage specification of systems using
refrigerants with the lowest available 'global warming potential' (GWP), coupled with the
implementation of best practice on refrigerant monitoring and leak detection. Details of how this will be
implemented in practice should be provided in the final Energy Statement.
I do not currently consider that BCS13 is addressed sufficiently for the development and I am unable
to see any evidence of an overheating assessment. In light of the internal layout, built-form and
orientation of the scheme I request additional analysis to provide assurance that the scheme will not
be liable to over-heating under current and projected climate scenarios and would therefore lead to
increases in energy use and carbon dioxide emissions (through requiring additional cooling via air-con
etc).
The use of green infrastructure is strongly encouraged as per Policy BCS13 on account of the multiple
benefits. I note a green roof proposed on the roof of Block A - details of a planted green / brown roof
would be The use of planted brown/green roofs is encouraged particularly in combination with roofmounted PV.
We would welcome provision of detail for the proposed green roof, which will assist with increasing
the thermal mass of the building and help with cooling. I'd also welcome details of any other green
infrastructure to assist with future cooling of the development in a hotter climate (such as tree planting
for shade)
EV
The requirements shown in Appendix 2 of the Bristol Local Plan - Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies document should be met. For resi the requirement is for a minimum of one
electric vehicle charging point to be provided for every five spaces.
We would encourage the provision of passive charging infrastructure to be put in to the parking areas
during construction to allow for easy conversion to active charging infrastructure in the future, as the
charging infrastructure is already below the ground. This has a minimal cost implication for the
developer but prevents costly retrofitting in the future.
The BCC Sustainability Officer has commented as follows (25.05.2021):
I note the submission of a revised Sustainability Statement, and a newly submitted overheating
assessment. I note and welcome an improvement on Part L U values. The energy statement states an

Page 62

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
air permeability will be achieved of 5 m3 / h / m2 at 50pa across the development and this should be
secured via condition.
BCS14 Energy Strategy:
A District Heating system (connection to the BCC network) will be utilised in Block A and an Air
Source Heat Pump strategy in Block B (the individual dwellinghouses) . A s.106 will need to be
agreed to secure a District Heating connection.
Renewables:
For the commercial area a PV system with total of 1.3kWp has been used. This equates to 6 x 250W
panels with an area of roughly 9m2.
To provide the 20% reduction in CO2 required a PV system with a total of 20.24kWp has been
proposed. This should be secured via condition. Can it be clarified if the total requirement is 20.24kwp
or if its 20.24 + 1.3 kwp?
This should be secured by condition.
Overheating
I note that the weather file 2020 has been included, which shows that the development as modelled
does not currently overheat. However, as we are all aware, the climate is changing and by 2080 Units
7, 15,23,24, and 28 all wholly fail against the CIBSE methodology (i.e. there is no habitable room
within the property that passes). I would therefore request that consideration is made for external
solar shading to these Units (7, 15,23,24 and 28).
Please ensure that the overheating report is included in list of approved plans.
On the subject of active measures, is there a proposed ventilation system, for example Mechanical
Ventilation with Heat Recovery? Units that are so well sealed as this have the potential to suffer poor
air quality unless adequately ventilated.
The City Council Pollution Control Officer has commented as follows (22/10/20):
I have looked at this application and the acoustic report submitted and am happy with the residential
part of the development. The application also includes a commercial space but no further details or
possible use classes are given. As a commercial use could cover a myriad of different uses it needs
to be ensured that the commercial use does not cause harm or nuisance to existing residents or
residents of part of this development. Could I therefore ask for further details of the proposed
commercial use including likely operating times.
With regards to the residential part of the development I would ask for the following conditions:
1. Construction Management Plan
2. Noise from plant & equipment affecting residential
The City Council Contamination Officer has commented as follows (26/10/20):
The following report submitted with the application has been reviewed:
T and P Regeneration Limited. 06/01/2020 Durnford Street, Desk Study report. CS-J-0553 Issue 01
Overall the desk study is acceptable and makes recommendations for further assessment. We

Page 63

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
presume the applicants would prefer this to occur following the demolition of the existing buildings. As
a consequence the following conditions are recommended to be applied to any future planning
consent:
1. Site Characterisation
2. Submission of Remediation Scheme
3. Implementation of approved remediation scheme
4. Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
Unexploded Ordnance
The site is in a high risk area - the applicants are advised a UXO risk assessment will be required.
Ideally this will be submitted prior to determination to reduce pre-commencement planning conditions.
Asbestos advice:
The potential presence of asbestos containing materials (ACM's) on the site is noted. In order to
prevent contamination of the site, surrounding highways and to prevent harm to construction workers,
surrounding residents, receptors and future site users, we recommend the applicants undertake an
asbestos survey prior to the commencement of works. Any asbestos containing materials present on
site must be removed in accordance with the Control of Asbestos Regulations 2012.
The Coal Authority has commented as follows (09/03/21):
The Coal Authority Response: Material Consideration
The application site falls partly within the defined Development High Risk Area; therefore within the
site and surrounding area there are coal mining features and hazards which need to be considered in
relation to the determination of this planning application. The Coal Authority's information indicates
that the site lies in an area where historic unrecorded underground coal mining activity is likely to have
taken place at shallow depth.
The planning application is accompanied by a Desk Study Report (6 January 2020, prepared by
TandP Regeneration Ltd). Based on a review of appropriate sources of coal mining and geological
information, the report acknowledges that shallow coal mining may have occurred beneath the site.
Accordingly, it goes on to recommend the carrying out of intrusive ground investigations, in the form of
the drilling of boreholes to depths of 30.0m bgl, in order to investigate ground conditions and the
mining situation beneath the site and to inform any necessary remedial measures.
The Coal Authority welcomes the recommendation for the undertaking of intrusive site investigations.
These should be designed by a competent person, in cognisance of the conclusions of the Coal
Mining Risk Assessment, to properly assess ground conditions and to establish the exact situation
regarding mining legacy which could pose a risk to the proposed development.
The findings of the investigations should be interpreted by a competent person and should be used to
inform any mitigation measures, such as grouting stabilisation works and foundation solutions, which
may be required in order to remediate mining legacy affecting the site and to ensure the safety and
stability of the proposed development.
The applicant is requested to note that Permission is required from the Coal Authority Permit and
Licensing Team before undertaking any activity, such as ground investigation and ground works,
which may disturb Coal Authority property, i.e. coal seams and associated workings.

Page 64

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Mine Gas
It should be noted that wherever coal resources or coal mine features exist at shallow depth or at the
surface, there is the potential for mine gases to exist. These risks should always be considered by the
LPA. The Planning and Development team at the Coal Authority, in its role of statutory consultee in
the planning process, only comments on gas issues if our data indicates that gas emissions have
been recorded on the site. However, the absence of such a comment should not be interpreted to
imply that there are no gas risks present. Whether or not specific emissions have been noted by the
Coal Authority, local planning authorities should seek their own technical advice on the gas hazards
that may exist, and appropriate measures to be implemented, from technically competent personnel.
The Coal Authority Recommendation to the LPA
The Coal Authority concurs with the recommendations of the Desk Study Report; that coal mining
legacy potentially poses a risk to the proposed development and that investigations are required,
along with possible remedial measures, in order to ensure the safety and stability of the proposed
development.
As such, should planning permission be granted for the proposed development, we would recommend
that the following conditions are included on the Decision Notice:
1. No development shall commence (excluding the demolition of existing structures) until;
a)

a scheme of intrusive investigations has been carried out on site to establish the risks
posed to the development by past shallow coal mining activity; and

b)

any remediation works and/or mitigation measures to address land instability arising
from coal mining legacy, as may be necessary, have been implemented on site in full in
order to ensure that the site is made safe and stable for the development proposed.

The intrusive site investigations and remedial works shall be carried out in accordance with
authoritative UK guidance.
2.

Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken into beneficial use, a signed
statement or declaration prepared by a suitably competent person confirming that the site is,
or has been made, safe and stable for the approved development shall be submitted to the
Local Planning Authority for approval in writing. This document shall confirm the methods and
findings of the intrusive site investigations and the completion of any remedial works and/or
mitigation necessary to address the risks posed by past coal mining activity.

The Coal Authority therefore has no objection to the proposed development subject to the imposition
of the above conditions. This is our recommendation for condition wording. Whilst we appreciate that
you may wish to make some amendment to the choice of words, we would respectfully request that
the specific parameters to be satisfied are not altered by any changes that may be made.
The BCC Economic Development Officer has commented as follows (01.10.20):
Neutral - neither supporting or objecting to the proposal.
The BCC Affordable Housing Officer has commented as follows (02.10.20):
Affordable Housing Statement
This provision of 9 No. units equates to a 22.5% provision. The applicant asserts that the scheme

Page 65

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
would have benefited from the engagement of the Vacant Building Credit (VBC), however, in light of
the current economic uncertainty, they have been provided on a short-term license basis in order to
provide a modest income stream. Advice should be sought from the Councils Planning Obligations
officer regarding the application of VBC. However, if the units are not vacant it seems unlikely that this
will apply.
Affordable Housing Policy requirements
As the number of units proposed is above the 15 site threshold the scheme is subject to Bristol City
Council's Core Strategy Policy BCS17 and in the South of the city should provide 30% affordable
housing. For further detail see the Council's Affordable Housing Practice Note
The policy requires that residential developments should provide a mix of affordable housing units and
contribute to the creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive communities. The tenure, size and type of
affordable units should reflect identified needs, site suitability and economic viability. The affordable
units will be secured through a S106 agreement to ensure that all units provided remain at an
affordable price for future eligible households or, if this restriction is lifted, for the subsidy to be
recycled for alternative affordable housing provision.
The affordable homes would normally be purchased by a Registered Provider from the Homes West
partnership at an agreed transfer price representative of the value of the units as affordable dwellings
in perpetuity, e.g. below market value. There is no public subsidy for affordable housing secured
through S106 agreements. Where scheme viability may be affected and developers seek to
demonstrate that they cannot provide a fully policy compliant scheme they will be expected to provide
full development appraisals to demonstrate an alternative affordable housing provision. The applicant
will be encouraged to work with the Council to seek to provide additional affordable units that may be
funded by Homes England or Bristol City Council grant.
Service charges
Service charges (inclusive of all site charges for un-adopted public space) payable by the occupant of
all Affordable Housing Units will be a maximum of £250pa for all houses and £650pa for all flats linked
to CPI
Any ground rent or estate charges shall be at a peppercorn.
Distribution and location of units
The council seeks fully integrated mixed housing. In support of this, affordable housing must be
integrated amongst market sale housing, and be indistinguishable in external appearance from market
sale homes. The S106 agreement will be subject to an agreed location of the units between Bristol
City Council, an approved Homes West Registered Provider and the Developer.
Tenure
A tenure split of 75% social rent, 25% shared ownership is sought.
Design and layout
The Affordable units as proposed are distinguished from the market units with a separate entrance.
This may be acceptable from a management perspective but care must be taken to overcome any
obvious visual distinction between the affordable and market units. The fact that no affordable units
have balconies is further suggestion of this distinction in the current design. Some of the affordable
units have less than optimal daylight penetration and there does not appear to be any outdoor
amenity space for the proposed affordable units. These issues should be addressed to provide

Page 66

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
improved amenity and tenure blind design.
The scheme is in a highly sustainable location and is an opportunity to provide a successful mixed
use and mixed tenure scheme to meet market and affordable housing need/demand. I look forward to
working with the applicant to achieve a scheme that is policy compliant and acceptable in terms of
integration, amenity and range of tenures and sizes.
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 and the Hengrove and
Whitchurch Park Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019.
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
KEY ISSUES
A. PRINCIPLE
Core Strategy policy BCS1 outlines the priority for south Bristol to deliver development including the
provision of around 8,000 new homes of a mix of type, size and tenure and around 60,000sqm of net
additional office floor space focused on centres and major regeneration areas.
Policy BCS5 aims to deliver new homes within the built up area to contribute towards accommodating
a growing number of people and households in the city. The policy states that the development of
new homes will primarily be on previously developed sites across the city. Policy BCS20 seeks the
efficient use of land, particularly in and around the city centre, in or close to other centres and along or
close to main public transport routes.
Policy BCS8 sets out that employment land outside of Principle Industrial and Warehousing areas
(PIWAs) will be retained where it makes a valuable contribution to the economy and employment
opportunities. New employment floorspace suitable for smaller businesses will be encouraged as part
of mixed-use development. Policy DM12 relates to retaining valuable employment sites and
expresses that employment sites should be retained for employment use unless it can be
demonstrated that (i) there is no demand for employment uses; or (ii) continued employment use
would have an unacceptable impact on the environmental quality of the surrounding area; or (iii) a net
reduction in floorspace is necessary to improve the existing premises; or (iv) it is to be used for
industrial or commercial training purposes.
As can be seen within the planning history section above, Prior Approval has been given for
residential use of units 1-5, fronting Durnford Street. These permissions have not been implemented
and the buildings are not in residential use, and as such remain in B1(a) and B8 uses. These
consents do however give permission for the conversion of the existing premises (units 1-5) to
residential use, which is a material consideration as part of the application assessment process.
There is also a warehouse building to the western side of the site.
The proposal would result in the loss of the existing commercial units on site, and replacement with a
mixed use development of 40 dwellings along with a commercial unit at ground floor level fronting
Durnford Street. A specific end use for the commercial unit is not identified within the submission,
however this could reasonably be restricted by condition to uses falling within Class E, which is
considered appropriate in this context.

Page 67

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

The BCC Economic Development team were consulted in relation to the proposal, and provided a
neutral stance neither objecting nor supporting the proposal. This lack of objection is taken as
indication that the site is not considered valuable in terms of employment floorspace, and when
considered in tandem with the extant permissions for residential development on the site, and the
proposal for mixed use development that includes several residential units in a sustainable edge of
centre location, in accordance with national and local planning policy, it is considered that higher
density residential-focussed mixed use development on this site is acceptable in principle. This is
however subject to meeting the requirements of interrelated policy, including in terms of design,
amenity, highways, and sustainability considerations, which will be discussed further below.
B. HOUSING MIX
Policy BCS18 of the Core Strategy states that all new residential development should maintain,
provide or contribute to a mix of housing tenures, types and sizes to help support the creation of
mixed, balanced and inclusive communities. BCS17 relates to the provision of affordable housing as
part of major development proposals. Policy BCS20 seeks the efficient use of land, particularly in and
around the city centre, in or close to other centres and along or close to main public transport routes.
The policy also expresses that the appropriate density for any individual site will be informed by: the
characteristics of the site; the local context; its current and future level of accessibility by walking,
cycling and public transport to a range of employment, services and facilities; the opportunity for a mix
of uses across the site; the need to provide an appropriate mix of housing to meet the community's
needs and demands; and the need to achieve high quality, well designed environments. The Urban
Living SPD promotes achievement of optimum densities on all sites.
The proposed development would provide a total of 40 dwellings, comprising 7 houses (17.5%) (6 x 4
bedroom 6 person (4B6P) units (15%), 1 x 3B5P (2.5%)), and 33 flats (82.5%) (10x1B2P (25%),
7x1B3P(17.5%), 16x 2B4P (40%)). The affordable housing provision as part of this would be 8 flats
(2x2B4P, 6x1B2P), which equates to 20% provision.
At the time of writing the 2021 census data has not yet been published, and as such the following
statistics are taken from the 2011 census. The residential accommodation type on a Bristol-wide
average comprises 16.5% 1 bed; 27.9% 2 bed; 40.9% 3 bed; 9.9% 4 bed 4.7% 5 or more bed. This
accommodation is split between 65.5% Houses, and 34.4% flats. The majority of the application site
is set within the Bower Ashton LSOA (E01014695), with residential accommodating comprising 22.8%
1 bed; 40.1% 2 bed; 23.8% 3 bed; 8.9% 4 bed 4.2% 5 or more bed. This accommodation is split
between 44.5% Houses, and 55.5% flats. The remainder of the site falls within the adjoining Ashton
LSOA (E1014700) with residential accommodation comprising 6% 1 bed; 13.8 % 2 bed; 63.7% 3 bed;
12.9% 4 bed 3.5% 5 or more bed. This accommodation is split between 81.9% Houses, and 18.1%
flats.
As can be seen from the local area statistics, there is a relatively even split of one, two and threebedroom dwellings. The application proposal seeks to introduce a mix of housing types and tenures
that is considered to complement the existing housing mix in the area and would not cause or
exacerbate any local housing imbalance.
The affordable housing offer of 8 units equates to a 20% provision. This falls short of the 30% set out
within relevant local plan policy. The application submission expresses that Vacant Building Credit
(VBC) should apply, reducing the necessary affordable housing provision, however the existing
buildings on site are not vacant and as such VBC does not apply. What is a material consideration
with regard to affordable housing for the development however, relates to the 'fast track' approach for
affordable housing as set out within the Affordable Housing Practice Note (2018) and the
amendments made by Cabinet in March 2019.
The Affordable Housing Practice Note sets out the 'fast track' route for affordable housing, with a 20%

Page 68

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
provision acceptable on the basis that the development falls within Bristol's Inner West or Inner East
zone and (if approved) commences within 18 months of approval. If commencement does not occur
within 18 months of permission being granted, then the scheme will be subject to viability testing.
Cabinet in March 2019 expanded this fast track route to incorporate 'Greater Bedminster', which
includes the Southville Ward and hence the application site. It was stipulated by Cabinet that the
extension would be until March 2021 or the adoption of the new Local Plan (whichever is sooner). It
is recognised that this time period has lapsed, however it is understood that the intention is to further
extend the time period for the 'fast track' approach in the Greater Bedminster area. It is also
acknowledged that at the time of submission of the application under consideration, the site fell within
an extant affordable housing 'fast track' area. Weighing these factors within the planning balance, it is
considered that the 20% affordable housing offer can be accepted in this instance, subject to the
commencement of the development within 18 months of decision if planning permission is ultimately
granted.
The 8 affordable housing units would all be set within the flatted block, comprising 6x 1Bed 2 Person
flats, and; 2x 2Bed 4 Person flats. The BCC affordable housing officer has requested a tenure split of
75% social rent and 25% shared ownership. On the basis of 8 affordable units being provided this
equates to 6 social rent units and 2 shared ownership units. In terms of the requirements of
affordable housing providers/operators, it is preferable for affordable units to be clustered for
operational and management purposes, and as such the affordable units being concentrated towards
one end of the flatted block (over three floors) is supported. Amendments during the course of the
application are such that all but 1 affordable unit would have their own private balcony, which is
considered to overcome the affordable housing officers concern in this regard. The layout would
remain where the affordable units would be accessed via a separate entrance, and whilst there may
be concerns in terms of whether the development is 'tenure blind', such a layout does have benefits in
terms of operational issues for the affordable housing provider that would take the units on, and as
such is considered acceptable on balance.
On the basis of the above, it is considered that the proposal offers an appropriate housing mix for the
area.
C. DESIGN AND CONSERVATION
Core Strategy policy BCS21 relates to overarching urban design principles to ensure high quality
development acceptable within its context. Policy DM26 requires development to contribute towards
local character and distinctiveness, in relation to various factors including pattern and grain of
development, scale, character, function and architectural styles. The policy also states that proposals
should not prejudice the opportunity to develop adjoining land of similar potential. In forms of existing
development that relate poorly to the surrounding development or lack a coherent and integrated built
form, development will be expected to take reasonable opportunities to improve the area's character,
enclosure, permeability, public realm and appearance and better integrate the area with its
surroundings. Policy DM27 is concerned with layout and form, including principles in relation to
blocks and plots. Within this is consideration of a variety of factors including street layout and
linkages, fronts and backs, defensible space, quality of public realm, amenity space and servicing.
This policy also requires a co-ordinated approach to wider development such that development
potential of adjoining sites is not prejudiced by a proposal. Policy DM29 relates to the design of new
buildings, covering a wide range of factors including access, layout, solar orientation, energy
efficiency, quality, proportion and visual interest. The NPPF (2021) requires new development to
provide high quality and beautiful buildings and places.
The application relates to an L-shaped site in Ashton, set between Durnford Street to the south-east
and Baynton Road to the north-west. The site is currently occupied by industrial/commercial buildings
of one and two-storeys in height, along with associated external yard space. The site is located
amongst a mixture of commercial and residential buildings, with commercial/industrial buildings set to
the north/north-east and south-west, and residential properties beyond, as well as to the south-east

Page 69

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
and north-west. A residential development has been recently approved on an adjoining site to the
north/north-east at the 'Old Brewery'.
The application proposes the redevelopment of the site for predominantly residential use, but also
retaining a commercial unit at ground floor level fronting Durnford Street. The proposal comprises a
six-storey block of 33 flats set between Baynton Road and Durnford Street; a terrace of 7 three-storey
town houses fronting Durnford Street, and; private and communal garden areas, parking and
servicing.
Neighbouring commercial buildings include sprawling buildings with elevations finished in brick and
render, topped with gable-ended roofs, located immediately to the north, north-east and south-west.
The adjoining Old Brewery site to the north has extant planning consent for mixed use development,
including residential buildings of 8-9 storeys in height. Existing surrounding residential development
comprises a mixture of terraced and semi-detached houses of two to two-and-a-half storeys in height.
There is variety in built form and finishing materials locally, however the prevailing locally
characteristic roof form is gable ended, with elevations predominantly finished in facing brickwork or
render.
As can be seen within the consultations section of this report, BCC City Design Group have had input
throughout the application process. Amendments have been made to the scheme throughout the
process in response to feedback from Urban Design Officers, as part of the evolution of the scheme
throughout the application process.
City Design Group officers are supportive of the proposed layout, which considers relationships
internally within the site, as well as relationships with existing surrounding development. Some
concerns were initially raised by CDG regarding the scale of the proposed flatted block, with requests
made for the provision of additional information, including site sections that include visualisation of the
neighbouring extant permission, to better understand the relationship of buildings within the context.
Further information was subsequently submitted in this regard and it is considered that the stepped
nature of the flatted blocks form, along with variations in height within the development are such that
the 3-6 storey proposal is considered an appropriate transition between the (up-to) 9 storey
development on the Old Brewery Site and the 2-3storey development on surrounding residential
streets.
Views analysis was provided as part of the application package, with the Townscape Visual Impact
Assessment (TVIA) setting out the visual impact of the scheme from verified views agreed with Urban
Design Officers. Whilst the development would be visible from a number of vantage points, it is
considered that the development would not dominate key views and would not unacceptably visually
compete with existing and approved surrounding development.
The architectural approach for the redevelopment of the site is supported, with the scheme design
drawing on architectural themes, features and materiality of surrounding development, including
industrial and residential building aesthetics, the use of gable-ended forms, and a predominance of
robust finishing materials with a palette that references the local vernacular. The proposed finishing
materials include facing brickwork; render; timber cladding; metal standing seam cladding/roofing,
and; galvanised steel. Final materials details would need to be agreed through the provision of
sample panels, to be secured by condition if planning permission is granted.
A landscaping scheme has been provided, with a combination of hard and soft landscaped areas to
provide functional and amenity spaces throughout the development. Integrated play equipment and
areas for socialising are incorporated, along with a publicly accessible walkway linking Baynton Road
and Durnford Street along a desire line between Greville Smyth Park and surrounding residential
streets. The landscaping scheme is supported and can be secured via condition if planning
permission is granted.

Page 70

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Overall therefore, subject to the imposition of relevant planning conditions, the proposed design is
considered acceptable.
D. RESIDENTIAL AMENITY
Policy BCS21 expects development to safeguard the amenity of existing development and create a
high quality environment for future occupiers. Policy BCS18 requires residential development to
provide sufficient space for everyday activities and enable flexibility and adaptability by meeting
appropriate space standards. Policy DM2 requires development to provide a good standard of
accommodation by meeting relevant requirements and standards. Policy DM29 expects new
buildings to safeguard the amenity of the host premises and neighbouring occupiers. Policy BCS23
expresses that in locating and designing new development, account should be taken of the impact of
existing sources of noise or other pollution on the new development. Policy DM35 expects noise
sensitive development in locations likely to be affected by existing sources of noise to provide an
appropriate scheme of mitigation to ensure adequate levels of amenity for future occupiers.
Neighbouring Occupiers
The nearest neighbouring residential properties are set to the south-east on the opposite side of
Durnford Street. The proposed flatted block with ground floor commercial unit would be positioned
adjacent to the side elevation of the end-terraced house at 31 Ashville Road (existing commercial use
but with planning permission to convert to residential use), with a separation distance of
approximately 14 metres. The proposed terrace of town houses would be positioned adjacent to the
side elevation of 10 Durnford Street and the side elevation of 29A and 29B Durnford Avenue, with
separation distances of 13 metres (average) and 12 metres respectively. These distances of
separation accord with those existing, and are characteristic for the area, which has a tight urban
grain. To give further local examples of local separation distances between adjacent front elevations,
Ashville Road separation distances are approximately 17.5 metres; Raleigh Road 16m; Friezwood
Road 14.3m, and; North Road 9.4m.
The proposed development ranges between 3 and 6 storeys, with the terrace of town houses being 3
storey, and the flatted block being 3 storeys in height adjacent to the back edge of pavement on
Durnford Street, increasing to 4 storeys as the frontage steps back, and increasing again to 6 storeys
as the frontage steps back further. The front elevation of the 6-storey element would be stepped back
from Durnford Street by approximately 5.2 metres. In addition to the tallest element of the proposal
being pushed back from the street frontage, the height would also be focussed where the site is
deepest, and aligned with the junction of Ashville Road and the end elevation of 31 Ashville Road, as
well as being positioned alsongside the approved 8 and 9 storey elements of the approved
development at the neighbouring Old Brewery site. The layout and massing of the development as
presented is considered such that the proposal adequately limits overbearing impact upon existing
surrounding development, and also when considering the extant planning consent on the adjoining
Old Brewery site.
The application submission includes the provision of a daylight/sunlight assessment, which includes
consideration of impact upon adjacent existing residential properties. The assessment considers
Building Research Establishment (BRE) criteria including Vertical Sky Component (VSC) and Annual
Probable Sunlight Hours (APSH). The report considers two scenarios, with scenario 1 being
comparison of the proposed development to the existing situation, and scenario 2 being comparison
of the proposed development to existing plus the approved adjacent development at the Old Brewery
site.
When considering scenario 1, there would be marginal exceedance of BRE recommendations
regarding natural light reduction to side-facing windows at 29A and 29B Durnford Avenue, and at 10
Durnford Street. There would be slightly more significant exceedance of BRE guidelines when
considering side-facing windows at 31 Ashville Road. When considering scenario 2, exceedance of

Page 71

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
BRE guidelines would occur only at 10 Durnford St and 31 Ashville Rd. The exceedance of BRE
guidelines is only marginal at 10 Durnford Street, however the impact would be greater at 31 Ashville
Road. 31 Ashville Road is currently a commercial property and as such the BRE residential
guidelines do not apply, however it is noted that planning permission has been recently granted to
convert the property to a residential dwelling. The plans for the recent planning permission reveal that
the affected windows are either secondary windows to habitable rooms, which are also served by
principle windows to either the front or rear elevation, or; windows lighting the hallway and staircase.
The findings of the report are such that there would be some impact upon levels of natural light to
some existing properties opposite the application site, however overall the impacts are generally
considered represent marginal exceedance of BRE guidelines rather than severe deviations, and that
the levels of daylight are not out of the ordinary for what may be considered reasonable within an
urban context.
The proposal would introduce additional overlooking of surrounding properties when compared with
that experienced from the existing commercial buildings on site. As set out previously, separation
distances between existing and proposed development accord with the established characteristics of
the area, and as such window-to-window distances are considered acceptable. The incorporation of
balconies into the design has the potential for overlooking issues to arise. The previously mentioned
layout and massing focusses balconies on the Durnford Street frontage towards views along Ashville
Road and towards the end elevation of 31 Ashville Road, with this arrangement minimising amenity
impact upon surrounding occupiers. The outdoor space associated with 31 Ashville Road in particular
would experience additional overlooking as a result of the proposed balconies, however at present
this outdoor space is hardstanding associated with the commercial use of that property, although it is
acknowledged that there is extant planning consent for conversion of that property to residential use.
Noise and disturbance from increased occupancy was raised within objection comments received
from nearby occupiers. It is acknowledged that the provision of 40 dwellings on the site would result
in noise associated with residential occupation of the site, however the development would be located
within an existing residential area within an Inner Urban area of the city (as set out within the Urban
Living SPD) and noise associated with the residential occupation of the site would not be out of
character for the area, or at odds with existing surrounding development. It should also be noted that
the existing commercial uses on site, including vehicle repair and warehousing uses, would be
removed from the site, noise from commercial uses locally reduced as a result.
Conditions can be attached to any permission granted, restricting the operational hours of the
proposed commercial unit, as well as servicing times, in order to safeguard the amenity of
surrounding occupiers.
Future Occupiers
The application is supported by the provision of an acoustic report, considering impact from
surrounding commercial uses. As can be seen within the consultations comments above, the City
Council Pollution Control Officer is comfortable with the findings of the report from a residential
amenity perspective.
All residential units meet current space standards requirements in terms of floor area. Of the 33 flats
proposed 29 would have a private external balcony, which equates to 88%. The remaining 4 flats
would have a Juliette balcony rather than private outdoor amenity space. Each of the 7 houses would
have an associated private rear garden. The proposal also incorporates communal garden space.
Of the 40 dwellings proposed, 7 would be single aspect (4x SW facing, 3x NE facing), 3 of which
would have private external balconies, and the remaining 4 without. Whilst there would be a small
number of single-aspect units, it is considered that overall a good standard of accommodation is
achieved, with inter-relationships, orientation and daylighting considered reasonable on balance within

Page 72

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
the urban context.
The proposed development would have a close relationship with the recently approved development
on the neighbouring site at 'The Old Brewery' under application 18/04367/F. Care has been taken
within the design to ensure that the developments would have a compatible relationship in residential
amenity terms, with the relationships between the neighbouring developments such that overlooking
and overbearing impacts have been minimised through layout design, massing and window
positioning/outlook orientation.
Interrelationships within development are also generally well considered, although there are some
instances where balconies have relationships with windows to adjacent flats that give rise to
overlooking concerns. When using the references set out on the submitted accommodation schedule
plan, these concerns relate to the balconies to flats 2.9 and 3.8, which would overlook living room
windows of flats 2.6 and 3.5 respectively, and; balconies to flats 1.4 and 2.4 enabling overlooking of
bedroom windows at flats 1.3 and 2.3 respectively. In all instances it is considered that the provision
of a privacy screen to the south-western end of the four balconies previously identified would
adequately overcome these overlooking concerns, which can be secured by condition, and would
safeguard against overlooking whilst also providing for private outdoor amenity space within the
development.
On the basis of the above it is considered that the proposal is acceptable in respect of residential
amenity of neighbouring occupiers and future occupiers of the site.
E. HIGHWAYS AND SERVICING
Core Strategy policy BCS10 sets out a transport hierarchy for the design of developments, with
pedestrians first, followed by cyclists then public transport. The private car is lowest on the hierarchy.
The policy also expresses that development should be located where sustainable travel patterns can
be achieved; should minimise the need to travel; and maximise opportunities for the use of walking,
cycling and public transport. It is also expressed that developments should be designed and located
to ensure the provision of safe streets.
Policy DM23 expresses that development should not give rise to unacceptable traffic conditions and
will be expected to provide: safe and adequate access onto the highway network; adequate access to
public transport; transport improvements where necessary; adequate provision for pedestrians and
cyclists. The policy also requires the provision of adequate servicing facilities, and safe accessible
and usable parking in accordance with the parking standards schedule. Policy DM32 requires
adequate refuse and recycling provision in new development.
The application site is set between Durnford Street to the south-east and Baynton Road to the northwest, with both of these roads providing access to existing commercial units occupying the site. The
existing open yard area to the north-west also provides access to a number of surrounding units and
as such the rights of way across this area must be factored into any development proposals for the
site.
The proposed development would have pedestrian and vehicular access from both Durnford Street
and Baynton Road. Durnford Street would provide vehicle access to the parking allocated to the
terrace of houses, which would be provided to the rear of the terrace via a gated vehicular access.
There would also be a pedestrian access to all proposed accommodation, as well as pedestrian
access of a new pedestrian route through the site connecting Durnford Street and Baynton Road.
The proposed commercial unit would be serviced from Durnford Street, as would one of the
refuse/recycling stores associated with the proposed flats. The terrace of houses onto Durnford
Street would be serviced via regular kerbside collections. The parking associated with the flats would
be accessed via Baynton Road (with the exception of one accessible parking space), as would the
communal cycle storage. Servicing would also take place via Baynton Road. The public through

Page 73

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
route, by its nature, would also be accessible via Baynton Road, as would pedestrian access to all
proposed accommodation.
During the course of the application process there has been a slight reduction in the number of
parking spaces, as the originally proposed parking within the shared servicing area would cause
conflict with vehicles accessing and servicing the development and surrounding sites such that these
spaces had to be omitted from the proposal. The proposal as revised incorporates 18 car parking
spaces for residents, with one each for the proposed houses (7 in total) and a further 11 to serve the
flats, including an accessible parking bay. This represents 45% provision, which accords with current
policy requirements and is supported by BCC Highways Officers. 4 spaces would feature electric
vehicle charge points, with ducting to be provided to enable straightforward additional provision in the
future as required. The level of parking provision is also considered appropriate given the sustainable
location of the site, with good access to shops, services and sustainable transport alternatives to the
private car.
Necessary highway improvements include the removal of existing keep clear markings on Durnford
Street, and the provision of double yellow lines either side of the new vehicular access to provide safe
access/egress. As advised by the BCC Highways Officer, this would result in two additional on-street
parking spaces becoming available. It has also been advised that if the area is covered by a future
residents parking zone (RPZ) then residents of this development would not be eligible for permits.
Cycle parking would comprise a mixture of enclosed Sheffield stands; double stacked racks; enclosed
cycle storage boxes, and; non-enclosed Sheffield stands, with a total of 105 spaces provided. This
exceeds current policy minimum requirements by 24 spaces and is supported by BCC Highways
Officers.
During the course of the application swept path analysis was requested to ensure access, egress and
servicing could all be undertaken safely, with the information subsequently provided demonstrating
that this is indeed the case.
A number of highway works were requested within initial TDM comments, although it is noted that
some of these have been secured as part of neighbouring development (widening the existing
Baynton Rd footway, and works at the junction of Baynton Rd and Ashton Rd), such that it is not
appropriate to secure these particular works under the current application if approved. It is however
necessary to provide a new 2m wide footway along the Baynton Road frontage, as no footway
currently exists here and this is necessary for the safety of occupiers and the general public.
In addition to the new footway to be provided, the developer has also agreed to resurface the
Durnford Street footway for the length of the site frontage; reinstate vehicle crossovers; undertake
street lining (removal of keep clear markings and provision of double yellow lines), with these
measures to be conditioned and incorporated into a section 278 highway works agreement. A
financial contribution of £20,000 towards local cycle infrastructure improvements has also been
agreed, which would be secured via section 106 legal agreement, along with TRO fees in relation to
street lining. As previously mentioned, the proposal also integrates a new public pedestrian route
between Durnford Street and Baynton Road, providing a convenient link with the surroundings
including the nearby Greville Smyth Park.
Highways Officers have also requested the provision of replacement upgraded street lighting along
the length of Bynton Road and Durnford Street. The developer contests that this is necessary. In
assessment of this, it is noted that both Durnford Street and Baynton Road are served by existing
street lighting provision, and it is also noted that the neighbouring larger development at the Old
Brewery site was not liable for such provision, which would rely more heavily on access from Baynton
Road than this current development proposal. In consideration of these factors, along with the
various highway improvements that would be provided as part of the development proposal, as set
out above, it is considered that the proposal can be supported on highways grounds without the

Page 74

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
provision of replacement street lighting in addition to the agreed package of highway improvement
measures.
A travel plan has been provided in relation to the development, which is found to be acceptable. The
implementation of this will be secured by condition. Servicing of the commercial unit would be from
Durnford Street (as would servicing of much of the residential accommodation), with a single yellow
line and associated plate provided to enable loading/unloading during 10.00-16.00 Monday to
Saturday and be available for parking at all other times.
On the basis of the above, and given the imposition of relevant planning conditions, the proposal is
considered to be acceptable in relation to highways and servicing matters.
F. SAFETY AND SECURITY
Policies BCS21, DM27, DM29 include consideration of safety and security. It is considered
appropriate that a Site safety and security management plan is conditioned, to cover, but not
necessarily be limited to: external lighting; secure gates; ground floor laminated glazing; access
controlled doors; building compartmentalisation to prevent unauthorised free movement through;
identification quality CCTV; localised alarm sounders.
G. CONTAMINATION
Policy BCS23 expresses that in locating and designing development, account should be taken of the
impact of existing sources of noise and other pollution on the new development. DM34(i) expresses
that new development should demonstrate that any existing contamination of the land will be
addressed by appropriate mitigation measures to ensure that the site is suitable for the proposed use
and that there is no unacceptable risk of pollution within the site or in the surrounding area.
A phase 1 ground investigation desk study has been submitted in support of the application, which is
found to be acceptable by the BCC Land Contamination Officer. Conditions are therefore
recommended for further intrusive ground investigation, with remediation as necessary. The site lies
within a high risk area when considering unexploded ordnance and as such a risk assessment will
also be required by condition if planning permission is granted.
Given the imposition of relevant conditions, the proposal is considered acceptable in relation to
contamination issues.
H. LAND STABILITY
Policy DM37 states that on sites where there is reason to suspect unstable land and the risk of
instability has the potential to materially affect either the proposed development or neighbouring
uses/occupiers, development will only be permitted where: i. A desk-based study of available records
has been carried out to assess the previous uses of the site and their potential for instability in relation
to the proposed development; and ii. Where the study establishes that instability is likely but does not
provide sufficient information to establish its precise extent or nature, site investigation and risk
assessment are carried out to determine the standard of remediation required to make the site
suitable for its intended use.
The application site sits within a coal mining High Risk Area and the application is supported by the
provision of a desk study report. The Coal Authority has been consulted and following review of the
submitted report and its recommendations, and has expressed no objection to the proposed
development subject to the imposition of planning conditions requiring the undertaking of intrusive
ground investigations and subsequent remediation works as necessary to address any land instability
as a result of past mining activity, along with the provision of a verification report associated with such
works.

Page 75

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
On the basis of the above the proposal is considered acceptable in relation to land stability.
I. SUSTAINABILITY AND FLOOD RISK
Current planning policy (BCS13-16) within the adopted Bristol Development Framework, Core
Strategy (2011) requires new development to be designed to mitigate and adapt to climate change
and meet targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. This should be achieved, amongst other
measures, through efficient building design, the provision of on-site renewable energy generation to
reduce carbon dioxide emissions by at least 20% based on the projected residual energy demand of
new buildings and extensions to existing buildings, and for new development to mitigate against the
risk of flooding, including rainwater soak-away drainage. The approach proposed should also be
supported by the provision of a sustainability statement and an energy strategy.
Policy BCS14 states that within Heat Priority Areas, major development will be expected to
incorporate, where feasible, infrastructure for district heating, and will be expected to connect to
existing systems where available. The policy also sets out that new developments are expected to
demonstrate that the heating and cooling systems have been selected in accordance with the
hierarchy set out within the policy, with the first being connection to existing Combined Heat and
Power/ Combined Cooling, heat and Power networks.
An energy statement has been submitted in support of the proposal, which proposes the use of Air
Source Heat Pumps (for the terrace of houses) and Solar PV arrays (for the flatted block and
commercial units), adequate to reduce CO2 emissions by 20% when considering residual energy
demand, in accordance with current policy requirements in this regard. It is also proposed to connect
to a District Heating (DH) network when it becomes available, with the Sustainability Officer and
Energy Services expressing that a Day 1 connection would be available.
An overheating assessment has been submitted in support of the proposal, with data presented for
2020, 2050 and 2080 weather files. The development passes the overheating assessment against
2020 and 2050 weather files, but fails against the 2080 weather file for certain residential units (7,
15,23,24 and 28 as defined within the submitted Overheating Assessment). Mitigation measures
would therefore be necessary in relation to the 2080 weather file, which could either be active
measures of use of internal blinds/curtains and Mechanical Ventilation and Heat Recovery (MVHR), or
passive measures of external shades which could be retrofitted to the building when they become
required to provide a comfortable internal living environment.
Flood Risk
The application site is located within flood zone 2 and as such is in an area at medium risk of flooding.
In accordance with current policy requirements the development is required to pass the Sequential
Test as required by National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance
(PPG). A sequential test was therefore undertaken, with the report submitted as part of the
application package. The report details that there are no other sequentially preferable sites within the
appropriate search area (South Bristol) at a lower risk of flooding and as such the sequential test is
passed.
The finished floor levels of all residential units would be above Environment Agency (EA)
recommended levels (1:200 year tidal event combined with a 1:50 year fluvial event, plus an
allowance for climate change). The commercial unit would have a finished floor level below EA levels
for residential, however the commercial use is classified as a 'less vulnerable' use and as such this is
acceptable. Flood resilience measures are proposed to the commercial unit, including in relation to
construction methods and the provision of high level electric sockets to minimise impact in the event
of a flood. These details are considered acceptable. It is also considered appropriate to condition the
provision of a flood risk warning and evacuation plan relating to the development if approved.

Page 76

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
There is a risk of surface water flooding on and around the site, and the site lies within the BCC
drainage driver zone 13, where reductions in discharge rates are required. A Sustainable Drainage
System (SuDS) Strategy has been submitted as part of the application package, which proposes the
installation of underground tanked storage beneath the external courtyard/parking area, with flow
rates restricted to 5 litres per second. This approach is considered acceptable. A condition will be
attached requiring final detailed specification of the SuDS system along with a management and
maintenance plan. Biodiverse roofs are also proposed to the flatted block, which will reduce run-off
rates and contribute to the sustainable drainage solution for the site.
On the basis of the above and subject to the imposition of relevant planning conditions, the proposal
is considered acceptable in relation to sustainability and flood risk issues.
J. TREES AND LANDSCAPING
Policies BCS9 and DM17 seek to retain existing trees wherever possible as part of new development,
and seek the provision of new/enhanced green infrastructure. Where tree removal is necessary as
part of the development process, replacement planting is required in accordance with the Bristol Tree
Replacement Standard (BTRS), either on-site, or via financial contribution for off-site planting. Policy
DM15 expects the provision of additional trees and/or improved management of existing trees as part
of the landscape treatment of new development.
There is an existing single sycamore tree on site, which would need to be removed as part of the
development. There is scope to provide policy compliant replacement tree planting on site as part of
the landscaping scheme. A landscaping scheme has been provided, with a combination of hard and
soft landscaped areas to provide functional and amenity spaces throughout the development. Areas
for socialising are incorporated, along with a publicly accessible pedestrian link through the site.
Private garden spaces would also be provided for each of the houses. The landscaping scheme is
set out on the proposed site plan, although detailed specification of the planting would need to be
secured by condition. The landscaping scheme is supported in principle, and the detailed planting
plan, which will need to incorporate adequate compensatory tree planting in accordance with the
BTRS, can be secured via condition.
K. NATURE CONSERVATION
Policy BCS9 expresses that where development would have an impact on the Bristol Wildlife Network
it should ensure that the integrity of the network is maintained or strengthened. Policy DM19
expresses that development which would be likely to have any impact upon habitat, species or
features, which contribute to nature conservation in Bristol will be expected to: i. Be informed by an
appropriate survey and assessment of impacts; and ii. Be designed and sited, in so far as practicably
and viably possible, to avoid any harm to identified habitats, species and features of importance; and
iii. Take opportunities to connect any identified on-site habitats, species or features to nearby
corridors in the Wildlife Network. Where loss of nature conservation value would arise development
will be expected to provide mitigation on-site and where this is not possible provide mitigation off-site.
The application submission is accompanied by the provision of a bat survey report. No evidence was
found on site of bat roosting activity, and the buildings on site are assessed as having negligible
potential for bats.
In the interests of biodiversity enhancements, conditions can be attached to any permission granted
relating to the provision of Bat and Bird boxes.
The incorporation of biodiverse roofs to the flatted block is proposed, which is supported due to
benefits in relation to wildlife habitat as well as assisting in reducing rainwater run-off effects and
having other related sustainability benefits. Detailed design of the biodiverse roof areas can be
secured by condition.

Page 77

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

L. ARCHAEOLOGY
Policies BCS22 and DM31 include archaeological considerations. The planning application was
accompanied by the provision of an Archaeological Desk Based Assessment, which concludes that
there is low probability of archaeolgical potential on the site. No information to the contrary has been
provided by the BCC Archaeological Officer and as such the requirements of the relevant policies are
considered to be met.
M. PUBLIC ART
Policy BCS21 states that development will be expected to enable the delivery of permanent and
temporary public art. The policy also expresses that development is expected to contribute positively
to an area's character and identity, creating or reinforcing local distinctiveness.
It is recommended that public art on the site is meaningfully integrated into the design. The provision
and execution of a public art plan can be secured via condition.
N. PLANNING OBLIGATIONS
New development often creates a need for additional or improved community services and facilities,
without which there could be a detrimental effect on local amenity and the quality of the environment.
Planning obligations are the mechanism by which measures are secured to enhance the quality of
both the development and the wider environment, to help ensure that the development makes a
positive contribution to sustainable development providing social, economic and environmental
benefits to the community as a whole.
The legislative framework for planning obligations is set out in Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 12 of the 1991 Planning and Compensation Act. Further
legislation is set out in the Community Infrastructure Levy CIL Regulations (2010) (as amended). The
NPPF re iterates the tests (at paras 203 to 205) that are required to be met when planning obligations
are sought, namely that they should be necessary to make the development acceptable in planning
terms; directly related to the development and, fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the
development. It goes on to advise at para 205 that "where obligations are being sought or revised,
local planning authorities should take account of changes in market conditions over time and,
wherever appropriate, be sufficiently flexible to prevent planned development being stalled".
Supplementary Planning Document entitled 'Planning Obligations' (2012) sets out the Council's
overall approach to planning obligations and the types of obligation that the Council may seek to
secure and complements BCS 11.
In addition to the required CIL payment of £219,649.24 necessary planning obligations, which are to
be secured via section 106 agreement, comprise:
Affordable housing: Provision of 8 affordable housing units;
Local cycle infrastructure upgrades: £20,000;
Traffic Regulation Order for waiting and loading restrictions along Baynton Road: £6,067
District heating connection (Day 1 connection);
The Council's legal costs associated with the formulation of the section 106 agreement.
The developer is agreeable to the contributions set out above, and if planning permission is granted
the section 106 agreement will be tied to the decision.
CONCLUSION
The proposal represents an efficient use of an inner-urban site, which would provide appropriately

Page 78

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
positioned and required residential accommodation, including 8 affordable housing units, that meets
city wide and localised policy aspirations. The scheme adequately safeguards neighbouring amenity
as well as, that of future occupiers. The scheme design represents a modern take on locally
characteristic historic design themes, with the schemes scale and massing creating a visually
interesting development that would act as a transition between the multi-storey development
approved on the adjoining Old Brewery site lower-rise residential development on surrounding streets.
The scheme adopts a sustainable design approach, including the incorporation of renewable energy
technologies and District Heat Network connection, as well as securing public realm improvements,
including a new pedestrian link through the site and a financial contribution for the enhancement of
local cycle infrastructure.
RECOMMENDATION
The application is recommended for approval, subject to (i) a Section 106 legal agreement securing
affordable housing provision; district heat network connection, and; a financial contribution for cycle
infrastructure improvements and a TRO, and (ii) the provision of relevant planning conditions, as set
out below.
EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is no indication or
evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups have or would have
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular proposed development.
Overall, it is considered that this application would not have any significant adverse impact upon
different groups or implications for the Equality Act 2010.
RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to Planning Agreement

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2.

Site Specific Construction Environmental Management Plan
No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to
throughout the demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for:
.
A construction programme including phasing of works;
.
24 hour emergency contact number;
.
Procedures for maintaining good public relations including complaint management,
public consultation and liaison
.
Arrangements for liaison with the Council's Pollution Control Team

Page 79

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
.
All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such
other place as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out only
between the following hours:
.
08 00 Hours and 18 00 Hours on Mondays to Fridays and 08 00 and 13 00 Hours on
Saturdays, Sundays, and Bank Holidays.
.
Deliveries to and removal of plant, equipment, machinery and waste from the site must
only take place within the permitted hours detailed above.
.
Mitigation measures as defined in BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2 : 2009 Noise and Vibration
Control on Construction and Open Sites shall be used to minimise noise disturbance from
construction works.
.
Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours.
.
Bristol City Council encourages all contractors to be 'Considerate Contractors' when
working in the city by being aware of the needs of neighbours and the environment.
.
Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants. This must also take into
account the need to protect any local resident who may have a particular susceptibility to airborne pollutants.
.
Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for
security purposes.
.
Expected number and type of vehicles accessing the site:
o
Deliveries, waste, cranes, equipment, plant, works, visitors;
o
Size of construction vehicles;
o
The use of a consolidation operation or scheme for the delivery of materials and goods;
o
Phasing of works;
.
Means by which a reduction in the number of movements and parking on nearby
streets can be achieved (including measures taken to ensure satisfactory access and
movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during construction):
o
Programming;
o
Waste management;
o
Construction methodology;
o
Shared deliveries;
o
Car sharing;
o
Travel planning;
o
Local workforce;
o
Parking facilities for staff and visitors;
o
On-site facilities;
o
A scheme to encourage the use of public transport and cycling;
.
Routes for construction traffic, avoiding weight and size restrictions to reduce
unsuitable traffic on residential roads;
.
Locations for loading/unloading, waiting/holding areas and means of communication for
delivery vehicles if space is unavailable within or near the site;
.
Locations for storage of plant/waste/construction materials;
.
Arrangements for the turning of vehicles, to be within the site unless completely
unavoidable;
.
Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;
.
Swept paths showing access for the largest vehicles regularly accessing the site and
measures to ensure adequate space is available;
.
Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;
.
Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians);
.
Arrangements for temporary facilities for any bus stops or routes;
.
Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;
.
Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses.
Reason: In the interests of surrounding amenity and safe operation of the adopted highway
during the demolition and construction phase of the development.

Page 80

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
3.

B1B Highway works - General Arrangement Plan
No development shall take place until general arrangement plan(s) to a scale of 1:200 showing
the following works to the adopted highway has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
o Reinstatement of redundant accessways
o Installation of dropped kerbs
o Resurfacing of footway along Durnford Street frontage
o The widening of the footway along Baynton Road to the Ashton Road junction to a minimum
of 2m
o Introduction of a 2m footway along the Baynton Road frontage
o Works to the Baynton Road/Ashton Road junction to improve pedestrian and vehicular
visibility. This will be achieved via kerb realignment.
o Street lining (removal and introduction) and resurfacing of carriageway where necessary
Where applicable indicating proposals for:
o Existing levels of the finished highway tying into building threshold levels
o Alterations to waiting restrictions or other Traffic Regulation Orders to enable the works
o Signing, street furniture, street trees and pits
o Structures on or adjacent to the highway
o Extent of any stopping up, diversion or dedication of new highway (including all public rights
of way shown on the definitive map and statement)
Prior to occupation these works shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of public safety and to ensure that all road works associated with the
proposed development are: planned; approved in good time (including any statutory
processes); undertaken to a standard approved by the Local Planning Authority and are
completed before occupation.

4.

Highway Condition Survey
No development shall take place until a survey of the condition of the adopted highway has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The extent of the
area to be surveyed must be agreed by the Highways Authority prior to the survey being
undertaken. The survey must consist of:
o
A plan to a scale of 1:1000 showing the location of all defects identified;
o
A written and photographic record of all defects with corresponding location references
accompanied by a description of the extent of the assessed area and a record of the date, time
and weather conditions at the time of the survey.
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until any
damage to the adopted highway has been made good to the satisfaction of the Highway
Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any damage to the adopted highway sustained throughout the
development process can be identified and subsequently remedied at the expense of the
developer.

5.

Highway to be adopted
No development shall take place until plans to a scale of 1:200 showing the following
information has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 81

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
o
Long sections
o
General arrangement
o
Threshold levels to buildings
o
Drainage
o
Structures
o
Swept path for two directional movement of a 11.4m long refuse vehicle passing a
4.98m long large saloon car
Prior to occupation detailed technical plans to a scale of 1:200 setting out how the internal
access road(s) will be constructed to the Highway Authority's adoptable standard shall be
submitted and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
These works shall then be completed to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the internal roads are planned and approved in good time to a satisfactory
standard for use by the public and are completed prior to occupation.
6.

Unexploded Ordnance Risk Assessment
Prior to the commencement of works on site a detailed Unexploded Ordnance Threat and Risk
Assessment shall be undertaken in relation to the site, and shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development hereby approved must then be
implemented in accordance with the mitigation measures outlined in the Detailed Unexploded
Ordnance Threat and Risk Assessment agreed.
Reason: To ensure that development can take place without unacceptable risk to workers and
neighbours including any unacceptable major disruption to the wider public on and off site that
may arise as a result of evacuation/s associated with the mitigation of UXO.

7.

Coal Mining Legacy
No development shall commence (excluding the demolition of existing structures) until;
a)
a scheme of intrusive investigations has been carried out on site to establish the risks
posed to the development by past shallow coal mining activity; and
b)
any remediation works and/or mitigation measures to address land instability arising
from coal mining legacy, as may be necessary, have been implemented on site in full in order
to ensure that the site is made safe and stable for the development proposed.
The intrusive site investigations and remedial works shall be carried out in accordance with
authoritative UK guidance.
Reason: In the interests of land stability and public safety.

8.

Contamination - Site Characterisation
Following demolition no construction shall take place until an intrusive investigation and risk
assessment, in addition to any assessment provided with the planning application, has been
completed in accordance with a scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination
on the site, whether or not it originates on the site. The contents of the scheme shall be
submitted to and be approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The investigation and
risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings
must be produced.

Page 82

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
This must be conducted in accordance with the Environment Agency's 'Land Contamination:
risk management' and BS 10175:2011 + A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated
Sites - Code of Practice.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
9.

Submission of Remediation Scheme
Following demolition no construction shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to
human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment must be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must
include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria,
timetable of works and site management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site
will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990
in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

10.

Implementation of approved remediation scheme
In the event that contamination is found, no occupation of the development shall take place
until the approved remediation scheme has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The
Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of commencement of the
remediation scheme works.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a
verification report (otherwise known as a validation report) that demonstrates the effectiveness
of the remediation carried out must be produced, and be approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

11.

Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
No construction works shall take place until
(i)
a detailed design of the Sustainable Drainage system set out within the approved
Drainage Strategy, and;
(ii)
an associated management and maintenance plan
have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved
drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable Drainage
Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and maintained thereafter for the lifetime
of the development.

Page 83

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory
means of surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the
principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the
lifetime of the proposal
12.

Bio-diverse roof specification and provision
Prior to the commencement of the bio-diverse roofs hereby approved, detailed specifications
of their construction and planting proposed shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the local planning authority. The bio-diverse roofs shall then be completed in accordance with
the approved details prior to the first occupation of the development hereby approved, and
retained and maintained as such thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of sustainability, flood risk and biodiversity

13.

Privacy screens
Prior to the commencement of the relevant elements, full details of privacy screens to the
south-western end of the balconies to flats 1.4, 2.4, 2.9, and 3.8 (as set out on accommodation
schedule plan 2599-P011-B) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall then be completed in accordance with the
approved details prior to the occupation of the development, and the privacy screens retained
and maintained as such thereafter.
Reason: To safeguard against overlooking and loss of privacy.

14.

Site safety and security management plan
Prior to the commencement of the relevant elements, a site safety and security management
plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The plans
shall include, but not necessarily be limited to, full details of the following:
o
The provision of CCTV with an identification quality image in situ at communal
entrances, the public route through the site, and the cycle and bin stores;
o
external lighting around entrances;
o
secure gates/railings to the ground floor parking/servicing areas to meet LPS1175 ;
o
ground floor doors and windows to LPS 1175 SR2 or equivalent and glazing laminated
to BS EN356 2000 P1A;
o
access controlled doors;
o
building compartmentalisation to prevent unauthorised free movement through;
o
localised alarm sounders to access controlled doors and fire exit doors;
o
Cycle store to have access controlled doors to LPS 1175 SR2
The development shall then be completed in full accordance with the approved details prior to
first occupation, and retained and maintained as such thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of safety and security.

15.

Public Art
Prior to the commencement of the relevant element, a Public Art Plan shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Plan should be written by an
external Public Art Producer and should include information on the commissioning, integration
of public art within the development, and environs (where appropriate), timetable for those
works and details of the future maintenance responsibilities and requirements. All public art
works shall be completed in accordance with the agreed scheme and thereafter retained as
part of the development, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 84

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

Reason: To ensure the delivery of meaningful Public Art as part of the development.
16.

Sample Panels before specified elements started
Sample panels of all external finishing materials are to be erected on site and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant parts of the work are commenced.
The development shall be completed in accordance with the approved details before the
building is occupied.
Reason: To ensure an appropriate finished appearance within the context.

17.

Broadband
Prior to commencement, evidence of the provision of 'next generation broadband' shall be
provided by providing evidence that the development has been registered with BT on the BT
Openreach website, with Virgin Media on the Virgin Media website, or an alternative provider.
Registration should show the speed rating/specification of the connection.
Prior to occupation, the development shall be connected to the broadband infrastructure to
achieve the speeds stated.
Reason: To show that residents and businesses will have access to ultrafast broadband from
occupation.

Pre occupation condition(s)
18.

Coal Mining Legacy - Verification
Prior to the occupation of the development, or it being taken into beneficial use, a signed
statement or declaration prepared by a suitably competent person confirming that the site is, or
has been made, safe and stable for the approved development shall be submitted to the Local
Planning Authority for approval in writing. This document shall confirm the methods and
findings of the intrusive site investigations and the completion of any remedial works and/or
mitigation necessary to address the risks posed by past coal mining activity.
Reason: In the interests of land stability and public safety.

19.

Flood Evacuation Plan - Residential Property
No building or use herby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the applicant
has submitted to and had approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a Flood Warning
and Evacuation Plan (FEP). This Plan shall include the following information:
During Demolition/Construction Process
command & control (decision making process and communications to ensure activation
of FEP);
training and exercising of personnel on site (H& S records of to whom and when);
flood warning procedures (in terms of receipt and transmission of information and to whom);
site evacuation procedures and routes; and,
provision for identified safe refuges (who goes there and resources to sustain them).
During Occupation of Development

Page 85

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Direct'.

occupant awareness of the likely frequency and duration of flood events;
safe access to and from the development;
subscription details to Environment Agency flood warning system, 'Flood Warning

Reason: To limit the risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of flood
management on the site
20.

Bat and Bird Boxes
Prior to occupation of the development details provided by a qualified ecological consultant
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority providing the
specification, orientation, height and location for built-in bird nesting and bat roosting
opportunities integrated within buildings and shown on a site plan with compass directions
marked on it. This shall include four built-in swift and two built-in bat boxes. Bird boxes shall
be installed to face between north and east to avoid direct sunlight and heavy rain. Swift
boxes or bricks shall be provided in pairs or groups (e.g. at least two or three on a building,
avoiding windows) on north, north-east or east facing walls, at least 5 metres high, so that
there is a clear distance (drop) below the swift boxes/bricks of 5 metres or more. Swift boxes
shall be located under eaves where present. Bat boxes shall face south, between south-east
and south-west. Bat boxes shall be erected at a height of at least four metres, close to
hedges, shrubs or tree-lines and avoid well-lit locations. Bat boxes which are being placed on
buildings shall be placed as close to the eaves (if present) as possible. Development shall be
undertaken in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: To help conserve legally protected bats and birds which include priority species.

21.

Submission and Approval of Landscaping Scheme
No building or use herby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until there has
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a detailed scheme
of hard and soft landscaping for the development hereby approved. This shall include on-site
tree planting to compensate for the tree to be removed from site in accordance with the Bristol
Tree Replacement Standard. The approved scheme shall be implemented so that planting is
carried out no later than the first planting season following the occupation of the building(s) or
the completion of the development whichever is the sooner. All planted materials shall be
maintained for five years and any trees or plants removed, dying, being damaged or becoming
diseased within that period shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar
size and species to those originally required to be planted unless the council gives written
consent to any variation.
Reason: To protect and enhance the character of the site and the area, and to ensure its
appearance is satisfactory.

22.

Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities - Shown on approved
plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the refuse
stores, and areas/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the
approved plans have been completed in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter, all
refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be stored within
these dedicated store/areas, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within the
building(s) that form part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored
or placed for collection on the public highway or pavement, except on the day of collection.

Page 86

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises, protect the general
environment, and prevent obstruction to pedestrian movement, and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.
23.

Completion of Pedestrians/Cyclists Access - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means
of access for pedestrians and/or cyclists have been constructed in accordance with the
approved plans and shall thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety

24.

Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle
parking provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept
free of obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking

25.

Waste Management Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a waste
management plan setting out how waste will be stored and collected has been prepared,
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall
thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved waste management plan for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To ensure appropriate waste management facilities are provided to accommodate all
waste generated by the development.

26.

Letter of indemnity - refuse/recycling access
Prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved a letter of indemnity shall be
provided to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority to enable refuse/recycling
crews and vehicles to access private land for the collection of waste/recycling without being
liable for any damage that may occur to the immediate highway network as a result.
Reason: To enable access across privately owned land to facilitate refuse/recycling
collections.

27.

Installation of vehicle crossover - Shown on Approved Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until drop kerbs has
been installed at the carriageway edge and a vehicle cross-over constructed across the
footway fronting the site in accordance with the approved plans and retained in that form
thereafter for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety and accessibility

28.

Reinstatement of Redundant Accessways - Shown on Approved Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the footway
has been reinstated to full kerb height, where any vehicle crossover(s) are redundant, in

Page 87

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
accordance with the approved plans and retained in that form thereafter for the lifetime of the
development.
Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety.
29.

Completion and Maintenance of Car/Vehicle Parking - Shown on Approved Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the car/vehicle
parking area (and turning space) shown on the approved plans has been completed and
thereafter the area shall be kept free of obstruction and available for the parking of vehicles
associated with the development. Driveways/vehicle parking areas accessed from the adopted
highway must be properly consolidated and surfaced, (not loose stone, gravel or grasscrete)
and subsequently maintained in good working order at all times thereafter for the lifetime of the
development.
Reason: To ensure that there are adequate parking facilities to serve the development
constructed to an acceptable standard.

30.

Permissive Route
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of how
the permissive route will be kept open, free from any obstruction, in a safe condition for use by
members of the public 364 days of the year and clearly marked to indicate that there is no
indication to dedicate as part of the adopted highway, has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The publicly accessible route through the site shall be
completed prior to the occupation of the development hereby approved and thereafter shall
remain free from obstruction and available as a publicly accessible route through the site.
Reason: To ensure the provision of an unrestricted and safe route for the use of members of
the public.

31.

Electric Vehicle Charging Points
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of the
total number of car parking spaces, the number/type/location/means of operation and a
programme for the installation and maintenance of Electric Vehicle Charging Points and points
of passive provision for the integration of future charging points has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to construction of the above ground
works. The Electric Vehicle Charging Points as approved shall be installed prior to occupation
and retained in that form thereafter for the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To promote sustainable travel, aid in the reduction of air pollution levels and help
mitigate climate change.

32.

Delivery & Servicing Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a delivery and
servicing plan has been prepared, submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The measures shall thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved
delivery and servicing plan for the lifetime of the development. The delivery and servicing plan
shall include:
a)
The contact details of a suitably qualified co-ordinator;
b)
How vehicle arrivals, departures, parking, stopping and waiting will be controlled to
minimise any impact on the adopted highway;

Page 88

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
c)
Details of any freight consolidation operation, centre and the delivery and servicing
booking and management systems;
Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to minimise the impact of vehicles servicing the
development upon congestion
33.

Waste Management Plan
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until a waste
management plan setting out how waste will be stored and collected has been prepared,
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The measures shall
thereafter be implemented in accordance with the approved waste management plan for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To ensure appropriate waste management facilities are provided to accommodate all
waste generated by the development.

34.

Energy and Sustainability in accordance with statement
The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures,
renewable energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into
the design and construction of the development in full accordance with the approved
Sustainability Statement (by Melin, dated 14th April 2021) prior to occupation.
Reason
To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and can adapt
to a changing climate in accordance with policies BCS13 (Climate Change), BC14 (sustainable
energy), BCS15 (Sustainable design and construction), DM29 (Design of new buildings),
BCAP20 (Sustainable design standards), BCAP21 (connection to heat networks).

35.

Air permeability
Prior to occupation of the development evidence shall be submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate that the air permeability rate of 5m3/m2.hr
@50 Pa has been achieved, including the provision of copies of the air testing certificates.
Reason:
The air permeability will contribute to the overall efficiency, energy demand and emissions of
greenhouse gases of the scheme. To ensure that the development achieves the level of
energy efficiency specified in the Energy Statement with reference to policies BCS13 and
BCS14.

36.

PV
Prior to implementation, details of the proposed PV system including location, dimensions,
design/ technical specification together with calculation of annual energy generation
(kWh/annum) and associated reduction in residual CO2 emissions shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Prior to occupation the following information shall be provided:
o
Evidence of the PV system as installed including exact location, technical
specification and projected annual energy yield (kWh/year) e.g. a copy of the MCS installer's
certificate.
o
A calculation showing that the projected annual yield of the installed system is
sufficient to reduce residual CO2 emissions by at least 20%.

Page 89

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.
37.

Renewable energy (heat pumps) - where further detail is required (Block B only)
Prior to implementation, details of the renewable energy technology (including the exact
location, dimensions, design/ technical specification, GWP of refrigerant used, and any leak
detection) together with calculation of energy generation and associated CO2 emissions to
achieve 21% reduction on residual emissions from renewable energy in line with the approved
energy statement should be submitted to the Local Planning Authority and approved in writing.
The renewable energy technology shall be installed prior to occupation of the dwellings and
thereafter retained.
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions

38.

Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time that had not previously been identified
when carrying out the approved development, it must be reported immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance
with the Environment Agency's 'Land Contamination: risk management' guidance and BS
10175:2011 + A2:2017: Investigation of Potentially Contaminated Sites - Code of Practice.
Where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared which ensures the
site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act
1990 in relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning
Authority. The Local Planning Authority must be given two weeks written notification of
commencement of the remediation scheme works.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and
neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and
ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely without
unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.

39.

Details of Extraction/Ventilation System (Ground floor commercial uses)
No equipment for the extraction and dispersal of cooking smells/fumes shall be installed until
details including odour control measures, noise levels, cleaning, maintenance and filter
replacement policies been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved scheme shall be installed before the commencement of use of any
such equipment and thereafter shall be permanently retained.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally

Post occupation management
40.

Noise from plant & equipment affecting residential
The rating level of any noise generated by plant & equipment as part of the development shall
be at least 5 dB below the pre-existing background level at any time at any residential
premises.

Page 90

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
Any assessments to be carried out and be in accordance with BS4142: 2014 Methods for
rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally
41.

Restriction of Parking Level on site
Parking within the development site is to be restricted to the areas allocated on the approved
plans and shall not encroach onto areas allocated on the plans for other uses.
Reason: To control the level of parking on the site and to safeguard the uses of other areas.

42.

Travel Plan Statement - Submitted
The Travel Plan Statement hereby approved shall be implemented in accordance with the
measures set out therein.
Within three months of occupation, evidence of the implementation of the measures set out in
Travel Plan Statement shall be prepared, submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority unless alternative timescales are agreed in writing.
Reason: To support sustainable transport objectives including a reduction in single occupancy
car journeys and the increased use of public transport, walking and cycling.

43.

Use of Refuse and Recycling facilities (commercial use only)
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables and the tipping of empty bottles
into external receptacles shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00 Monday to Saturday.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby occupiers

44.

Deliveries (ground floor commercial uses only)
Activities relating to deliveries shall only take place between 08.00 and 20.00.
Reason: To safeguard the amenities of nearby occupiers

45.

Opening hours (Commercial uses only)
No customers shall remain on the ground floor commercial premises outside the hours of
08.00 to 20.00 Monday to Sunday.
Reason: To safeguard the residential amenity of nearby occupiers.

46.

Vegetation Clearance
No clearance of vegetation or structures suitable for nesting birds, shall take place between
1st March and 30th September inclusive in any year without the prior written approval of the
local planning authority. The authority will require evidence provided by a suitably qualified
ecological consultant that no breeding birds would be adversely affected before giving any
approval under this condition. Where checks for nesting birds are required they shall be
undertaken by a qualified ecological consultant no more than 48 hours prior to the removal of
vegetation or the demolition of, or works to buildings.
Reason: To ensure that wild birds, building or using their nests are protected. All species of
wild birds are legally protected including their eggs, nests and chicks until the young have

Page 91

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
fledged.
47.

Use restriction - Commercial unit - Class E
The ground floor commercial unit hereby approved shall be occupied by use(s) falling within
class E as defined by Schedule 2 Part A of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
(Amendment) (England) Regulations 2020.
Reason: In the interests of compatibility of the commercial operation with surrounding
residential uses.

List of approved plans
48.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
2599 P100 A Location plan, received 8 September 2020
2599 P011 B Accommodation schedule, received 4 May 2021
2599 P101 A Proposed site plan, received 8 September 2020
2599 P102 Existing site plan, received 8 September 2020
2599 P201 C Ground and first floor plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P202 C Block A - second and third floor plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P203 C Block A - Fourth and fifth floor plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P205 B Block A - roof plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P210 B Block B - ground and first floor plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P211 B Block B - second and roof plan, received 4 May 2021
2599 P300 C Block A B SE NW elevation, received 4 May 2021
2599 P301 C Block A - NE SW elevation, received 4 May 2021
2599 P302 B Block B elevation, received 4 May 2021
2599 P305 B Context elevation, received 4 May 2021
2599 P306 B Context elevation 2, received 4 May 2021
2599 P400 A Block A B proposed section, received 8 September 2020
3712-2 Ground floor, received 8 September 2020
3712-3 First floor, received 8 September 2020
1966 Travel plan statement, received 8 September 2020
Acoustic assessment, received 8 September 2020
Bat survey, received 8 September 2020
Carbon emissions calculation, received 8 September 2020
Sustainability Statement rev A, received 4 May 2021
FRA01 Flood risk assessment, received 22 October 2020
Flood risk sequential test, received 8 September 2020
Ground investigation and coal mining risk assessment, received 8 September 2020
Daylight sunlight impact assessment, received 8 September 2020
The old dairy archaeological assessment, received 8 September 2020
Townscape and visual impact assessment, received 8 September 2020
Transport statement, received 8 September 2020
Drainage strategy, received 22 October 2020
TN02 Highway Consultant Technical Note, received 6 October 2021
2599-P401 Site context Sections and Boundary Treatment 01 - 1, received 6 October 2021
2599-P402 Site context Sections and Boundary Treatment 02, received 6 October 2021
2599-P110 C Proposed Site Plan, received 4 May 2021
Overheating Assessment, received 4 May 2021

Page 92

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
TN01 Highways Technical Note 01, received 4 May 2021
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Advices
1

Works on the Public Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway.
You are advised that before undertaking work on the adopted highway you must enter into a
highway agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the council, which would
specify the works and the terms and conditions under which they are to be carried out.
Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team at
transportDM@bristol.gov.uk allowing sufficient time for the preparation and signing of the
Agreement. You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in undertaking the
following actions:
I.
II.
III.
IV.

Drafting the Agreement
A Monitoring Fee equivalent to 15% of the planning application fee
Approving the highway details
Inspecting the highway works

NB: Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured and the
Highway Authority's technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be
considered and approved.
2

Minor Works on the Public Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway.
You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted highway you must enter into
a highway agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the council.
You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in undertaking the approval and
inspection of the works. Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management
Team at transportDM@bristol.gov.uk
NB: Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured and the
Highway Authority's technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be
considered and approved.

3

Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
You are advised that a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is required. You must submit a plan to a
scale of 1:1000 of an indicative scheme for a TRO, along with timescales for commencement
and completion of the development. Please be aware that the statutory TRO process is not
straightforward; involving the public advertisement of the proposal(s) and the resolution of any
objections.
You should expect a minimum of six months to elapse between the Highway Authority's TRO
Team confirming that it has all the information necessary to enable it to proceed and the TRO
being advertised. You will not be permitted to implement the TRO measures until the TRO has
been sealed, and we cannot always guarantee the outcome of the process.

Page 93

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW

We cannot begin the TRO process until the appropriate fee has been received. To arrange for
a TRO to be processed contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management
Team at transportdm@bristol.gov.uk
N.B. The cost of implementing any lining, signing or resurfacing required by the TRO is
separate to the TRO fees, which solely cover the administration required to prepare, consult,
amend and seal the TRO.
4

Highway to be Adopted
The development hereby approved includes the construction of new highway. To be
considered for adoption and ongoing maintenance at the public expense it must be
constructed to the Highway Authority's Engineering Standard Details and terms for the phasing
of the development. You are advised that you must enter into a highway agreement under
Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980. The development will be bound by Sections 219 to 225
(the Advance Payments Code) of the Highways Act 1980.
Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team at
DMengineering@bristol.gov.uk You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in
undertaking the following actions:
I.
II.
III.
IV.

Drafting the Agreement
Set up costs
Approving the highway details
Inspecting the highway works

To discuss the requirement for sewers contact the Highway Authority's Flood Risk
Management Team at flood.data@bristol.gov.uk You should enter into discussions with
statutory undertakers as soon as possible to co-ordinate the laying of services under any new
highways to be adopted by the Highway Authority.
N.B. The Highway Authority's technical approval inspection fees must be paid before any
drawings will be considered and approved. Once technical approval has been granted a
Highway Agreement under Section 38 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed and the
bond secured.
5

Public Right of Way
The property boundary of the development hereby approved abuts a Public Right of Way
PROW (No.) (SPECIFY). You are advised that before undertaking any work you must contact
the Highway Authority's Public Rights Of Way Team at rightsofway@bristol.gov.uk Whilst it
may be unlikely that the Public Right Of Way will be affected by the proposed development
(PROW) (No.) (SPECIFY):
o
Should remain open, unobstructed and safe for public use at all times;
o
No materials are to be stored or spilled on the surface of the PROW;
o
There must be no encroachment onto the width of the PROW;
o
No vehicles are to use the PROW without lawful authority of the landowner(s), unless a
private right of way is shown on property deeds. It is the applicant's responsibility to ensure
that the appropriate private right exists or has been acquired from the landowner.
o
Any scaffolding and/or skips placed over or adjacent to the PROW must not obstruct
public access or inconvenience the public in their use of the way and must be properly
licensed. Licences are available at www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences
o
Any interference of the PROW either whilst demolition/construction is in progress or on

Page 94

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
completion, may well constitute a criminal offence.
If construction works are likely to temporarily affect the right of way, a Temporary Traffic
Regulation Order (TTRO) may be required to close or divert the PROW for the duration of the
works on the grounds of safety of the public. To discuss and/or apply for a TTRO contact the
Highway Authority's Network Management Team at traffic@bristol.gov.uk
N.B. Any damage caused to the surface of the PROW during development works must be
made good to the satisfaction of the Local Highway Authority.
6

Impact on the highway network during construction
The development hereby approved and any associated highway works required, is likely to
impact on the operation of the highway network during its construction (and any demolition
required). You are advised to contact the Highway Authorities Network Management Team at
traffic@bristol.gov.uk before undertaking any work, to discuss any temporary traffic
management measures required, such as footway, Public Right of Way, carriageway closures
or temporary parking restrictions a minimum of eight weeks prior to any activity on site to
enable Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders to be prepared and a programme of Temporary
Traffic Management measures to be agreed.

7

Restriction of Parking Permits - Existing Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme
You are advised that the Local Planning Authority has recommended to the Highways
Authority which administers the existing Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme
of which the development forms part that the development shall be treated as car free / lowcar and the occupiers are ineligible for resident parking permits as well as visitors parking
permits if in a Residents Parking Scheme.

8

Restriction of Parking Permits - Future Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme
You are advised that the Local Planning Authority has recommended to the Highways
Authority that on the creation of any Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme area
which includes the development, that the development shall be treated as car free / low-car
and the occupiers are ineligible for resident parking permits as well as visitors parking permits
if in a Residents Parking Scheme.

9

Highway Condition Survey
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of a Highway Condition Survey.
To agree the extent of the area to be surveyed contact the Highway Authority's Transport
Development Management Team at transportDM@bristol.gov.uk

10

Excavation Works on the Adopted Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of excavation works on the
adopted highway. You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted highway
you will require a Section 171 (Excavation) Licence from the Highway Authority which is
available at www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences

11

Street Name and Numbering
You are advised that to ensure that all new properties and streets are registered with the
emergency services, Land Registry, National Street Gazetteer and National Land and Property
Gazetteer to enable them to be serviced and allow the occupants access to amenities

Page 95

Item no. 1
Development Control Committee B – 12 January 2022
Application No. 20/04125/F : The Old Dairy Durnford Street Bristol BS3 2AW
including but not limited to; listing on the Electoral Register, delivery services, and a registered
address on utility companies databases, details of the name and numbering of any new
house(s) and/or flats/flat conversion(s) on existing and/or newly constructed streets must be
submitted to the Highway Authority.
Any new street(s) and property naming/numbering must be agreed in accordance with the
Councils Street Naming and Property Numbering Policy and all address allocations can only
be issued under the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (Section 64 & 65) and the Public
Health Act 1925 (Section 17, 18 & 19). Please see www.bristol.gov.uk/registeraddress
12

Sustainable Drainage System (SUDS)
The development hereby approved includes the construction/provision of a sustainable
drainage system. You are advised to contact the Highway Authority's Flood Risk Management
Team at flood.data@bristol.gov.uk before any works commence.

13

Heat Pump Refrigerants
Given the very high global warming potential (GWP) of refrigerants used in heat pumps
including variable refrigerant flow (VRF) units I recommend that refrigerant leak detection
should be provided in accordance with the guidance in BREEAM (Ref: Pol 01 - Impact of
refrigerants
https://www.breeam.com/BREEAMUK2014SchemeDocument/content/12_pollution/pol01.htm )
as follows:
o
A permanent automated refrigerant leak detection system or where an inbuilt
automated diagnostic procedure for detecting leakage should be installed. In either case a
robust and tested refrigerant leak detection system must be installed and must be capable of
continuously monitoring for leaks.
o
The system must be capable of automatically isolating and containing the remaining
refrigerant(s) charge in response to a leak detection incident.

14

Asbestos
The potential presence of asbestos containing materials (ACM's) on the site is noted. In order
to prevent contamination of the site, surrounding highways and to prevent harm to construction
workers, surrounding residents, receptors and future site users, we recommend the applicants
undertake an asbestos survey prior to the commencement of works. Any asbestos containing
materials present on site must be removed in accordance with the Control of Asbestos
Regulations 2012.

15

PV Advisory
The projected annual yield and technical details of the installed system will be provided by the
Micro-generation Certification Scheme (MCS) approved installer.
The impact of shading on the annual yield of the installed PV system (the Shading Factor)
should be calculated by an MCS approved installer using the Standard Estimation Method
presented in the MCS guidance.

Page 96

Supporting Documents
1.

The Old Dairy, Durnford Street
1. Site location plan
2. Proposed site plan
3. Block A – level 0 & 1
4. Block A – Level 2 & 3
5. Block A – Level 4 & 5
6. Block A & B South East & North West elevation
7. Block A & B North East & South West elevation
8. Context elevations South East
9. Context elevations North East
10. Core B entrance view

Page 97

PROPOSALS SUBJECT TO:
SITE SURVEY; STATUTORY
APPROVALS; DESIGN
DEVELOPMENT.

RO
AD

RO
AD

BA
YN
TO
N

BR
SIT
F A OL
CT BE
OR ER
Y

BR
E
CO W ER
UR Y
T

Proposed
Development
(The Old Brewery)
REF: 1804367-F

CO
O
AR PE
MS RS

ST
RE
ET

AV
EN
UE

D
U
R
N
FO
R
D

ST
R
EE
T

DU
RN
FO
RD

ST
F

TH
E
R
SU ISI
N NG

RA
NC
IS

AS
HT
O

N

RO
AD

SM GR
YT EVI
H LLE
PA
RK

NO
RT
H

VI
H
AS

1

E
LL
O
R
AD
26/06/20PLANNING
ISSUE CR
A
Date
Description
Drawn
Rev.

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD

t

0117 942 8286

e

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk

f

0117 942 0495

w

angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without consent
Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect
Contractors to verify all dimensions and sizes on site
Job Name:

Durnford Street,

Bristol
Client:

Prelon Construction
Drawing Title:

Site Location Plan
0
Scale

Sheet

1 : 1250@ A4
Drawing
Scale Status:

Page 98

Date

Drawn

Checked

APRIL 2020

CR

PW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

Rev.

2599

P

100

A

PROPOSALS SUBJECT TO:
SITE SURVEY; STATUTORY APPROVALS;
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT.

Widening of
Footpath
Footpath to be
constructed as
part of Old
brewery
development

Parking Court

Vehicle Tarmac

Courtyard Pavers - Grey

Sandstone Parking Setts

ACCESS

of adjoining
Adjacent mews house
dev lopment
ll
to from boundary wa

Granite Setts

Retained
Access to
existing
propoerties

Existing fence to be retained

Dark and mid grey
Paving Slabs

Yard

Adjacent
Parking Court

Areas of Soft Landscaping
Resurfaced courtyard for vehicle
servicing
Vehicle access
to 'Old Brewery
Devleopment'

(Tarmac and Granite sett
banding)

Feature Paving Slabs

Patio Paving Slabs

Proposed Development
(The Old Brewery)
REF: 1804367-F

Pedestrian
Entrance to
Brewery Bruilding
B

Retained
Access to
adjacent
property
Dropped Kerb along Baynton Road Frontage

New Tree Planting

Building Line Above

New Groundcover Shrub and
Perenial Mix

Core B Refuse
Collection Point

Vehicle Access to car Park
Service access

security bollards

1100l
General
w aste

10

7.150

AFF

360L
360L
240l
plastic/cans plastic/cans Food

EV Charging
Point

2

CORE

Fall 1:53

B

9 Covered
Parking Spaces

Lobby
Services

Core B
Access and
Escape door

7.250

Apartment
Postboxes
security bollards

11

Timber and Steel Wire
Pergola with climbing
plants against wall

AFF

9

6
Sewer Location

Existing brick wall to be

Lobby Access

Service Access

7.550

Car Park
Access

7.550

Plant Access

Services

7.550

Cycle store

Relocated
Substation

7.577

A

Soft Planting
Zone

6
Residents
Garden

5

3

Access to rear pribate gardens and communal garden
8.000

7.770

7.550

7

CORE
Ramp
1:15

3 Bike store

32 Sheffield Stand Spaces
16 Two Tier stand spaces

Existing
Man
Hole

7.550

2

rendered

Timber and Steel Wire
Pergola with climbing
plants against wall

4

7 Courtyard
Parking spaces
for family
houses

48 Cycle
Spaces

DHN Plant

made good repointed and

Fire Exit

Private
Garden

8.000

8.000

Private
Garden

8.000

Private
Garden

Private
Garden

8.000

Private
Garden

8.000

8.000

Private
Garden

Private
Garden

3 Bike store

7.550

Soft Planting
Zone

Cyle store
Access
7.550

1

Existing
Man
Hole

3 Bike store

Substation
Access

New Man
Hole
Location

Soft Planting
Zone

8

7

New Pedestrian Route
From durnford Street to Baynton Road

New Man
Hole
Location

3 Bike store

5

3 Bike store

Building Line Above

4

12 Sheffield stand spaces

Cycle Parking

3
EV Charging
Point

3 Bike store

Page 99

Adjacent
Warehouses

18 Sheffield Stand Spaces

3 Bike store

Exisitng boundary Walls retained

Cycle Store

BREWERY COURT

1

360L
Glass
1100l
REFUSE

Existing wall retained

360L
card

Refuse

New Wall to be constructued with building above
Inside face of wall to be Location of Public Artwork (Mural)

7.150

7.150

7.770

7.770

Plant

Core A
Access

Lobby

Access controlled Vehicle entry

8.150

Apartment Postboxes

7.400

Ramp
1:12

7.600

Ramp
1:12

Plot 1

7.770

Plot 2

Plot 3

Plot 4

Plot 5

Plot 6

Plot 7

360L
card

360L
Plastic/
Can
360L
plastic/
can
360L
Glass

240L
Food

7.400

wc

Warehouses

7.550

Refuse

1100l
General
w aste

Refuse

1100l
General
w aste

Adjacent
Warehouses

Ramp
1:21
7.550

Commercial Unit

CR

D

CR
CR

C
B

CR
A
Drawn Rev.

7.550

7.400

Ramp
1:21

180 55l
Ltr 25l

8.150

8.150

180 55l 55l 180
Ltr 25l 25l Ltr

180 55l 55l 180
Ltr 25l 25l Ltr

Refuse

Refuse

Refuse
Box Planter

Residential Refuse
collection point

19.01.22 Amendments in response to planning
comitee comments
12.04.21 TRO - Amended
06.04.21 Amendments according to planning
comments
26/06/20 PLANNING ISSUE
Date
Description

Box Planter

180 55l 55l 180
Ltr 25l 25l Ltr

Refuse
Box Planter

Box Planter

Commercial Refuse
Collection Point

Yard
ACCESS

DURNFORD STREET

PROPOSED DOUBLE
YELLOW LINE TRAFFIC
REGULATION ORDER

PROPOSED SINGLE
YELLOW LINE TRAFFIC
REGULATION ORDER

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD
t
f

DIVERTED FOUL
SEWER

0117 942 8286
0117 942 0495

e
w

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk
angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without
consent. Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect. Contractors to verify
all dimensions and sizes on site.

Client:
Prelon
Construction

Job Name:

Durnford Street,
Bristol

32

10

29a

Drawing Title:

Proposed Site Plan
0

2m

Scale

4m

10m

N

NE
R LA
REA

31

Sheet

1 : 200 @ A1
Drawing Status:

PLANNING
Date

Drawn

Checked

May 2020

CR

PW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

2599

P

101

Rev.

D

Julliet Balcony

360L
card

1100l
General
w aste

360L
360L
240l
plastic/cans plastic/cans Food

18 (Sheffield Stands)

3
EV Charging
Point

CORE

4

B
9 Parking
(Open Market)

UNIT 7
AFF
51sqm

Riser

LOBBY
Apartment
Postboxes

Services

6

9

7

8

UNIT 5
73sqm

CORE

UNIT 6
70sqm

Building Line Above

Julliet Balcony

Page 100

Riser

Indicative
relocated
Sub station
Location

SERVICES
32 Cycles
(Sheffield stand)

AOV

Flat Roof

CORE

CORE

DHN PLANT

Riser

B
Private Balcony

5

UNIT 8
AFF
50sqm

AOV

Adjacent Warehouse and Works

18 Cycle
Spaces

Private Balcony

2
Adjacent Warehouse and Works

360L
Glass

Canopy over
Car Park

1
EV Charging
Point

Building Line Above

Ramp
1:15

A

A

Private Balcony

19.01.22

Amendments in response
to planning comitee
comments

CR

D

21.04.21

Window types revised

AB

C

06.04.21

Amendments according to
planning comments

CR

B

Riser

16 cycles
(Two Tier)

UNIT 4
70sqm

LOBBY

26/06/20
Date

Apartment Postboxes

Ramp
1:15

UNIT 1
51sqm

Ramp
1:15

360L
card

360L
Plastic/
Can
360L
plastic/
can
360L
Glass

240L
Food

WC
REFUSE

1100l
General
w aste

REFUSE

1100l
General
w aste

UNIT 3
78sqm
COMMERCIAL UNIT
116sqm

COMMERCIAL
ACCESS

PLANNING ISSUE
Description

CR

A

Drawn

Rev.

Private Balcony

PLANT

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD

UNIT 2
71sqm

t

0117 942 8286

e

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk

f

0117 942 0495

w

angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without consent
Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect
Contractors to verify all dimensions and sizes on site
Job Name:

Durnford Street,
Bristol
Client:

Prelon Construction
Private Balcony

Private Balcony

Drawing Title:

Block A- Level 0 & 1
0
Scale

2m

4m

Sheet

1 : 200@ A3
Scale Status:
Drawing

1 : 200

2

Block A - Level 1
1 : 200

N

1

Block A - Level 0

PLANNING
Date

Drawn

Checked

May 2020

CR

PW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

Rev.

2599

P

201

D

UNIT 16
AFF
51sqm

UNIT 17
AFF
71sqm

CORE
Riser

Riser

B

Private Balcony

UNIT 15
AFF
52sqm

Private Balcony

Adjacent Warehouse and Works

UNIT 24
AFF
51sqm

UNIT 23
AFF
52sqm

Riser

Riser

B

AOV

UNIT 13
73sqm

Private Balcony

AOV
Private Balcony

Private
Balcony

UNIT 14
70sqm

UNIT 21
73sqm

UNIT 22
70sqm

Julliet Balcony

Private
Balcony

Julliet Balcony

Riser

Page 101

Riser

UNIT 25
AFF
71sqm

CORE

AOV

Flat Roof

AOV

Flat Roof

A

A

Riser

UNIT 12
70sqm
Private Balcony

UNIT 9
51sqm

8no. 250w Solar
PV Panels
serving the
Residential Units

Private Balcony

CORE

UNIT 20
53sqm

6no. 250W solar
PV panels
serving the
commercial unit

UNIT 11
78sqm

19.01.22

Amendments in response
to planning comitee
comments

CR

21.04.21

Window types revised

AB

C

06.04.21

Amendments according to
planning comments

CR

B

26/06/20
Date

UNIT 19
62sqm

PLANNING ISSUE
Description

CR

A

Drawn

Rev.

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD

t

0117 942 8286

e

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk

f

0117 942 0495

w

angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without consent
Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect
Contractors to verify all dimensions and sizes on site

UNIT 10
71sqm

Job Name:

Durnford Street,
Private Balcony

Bristol
Client:

Prelon Construction
Private Balcony

Private Balcony

Drawing Title:

Block A- Level 2 & 3
0
Scale

2m

4m

Sheet

1 : 200@ A3

Block A Level 2
1 : 200

2

Block A Level 3
1 : 200

Scale Status:
Drawing

N

1

D

Riser

UNIT 18
51sqm
Private Balcony

Private Balcony

CORE

Private Balcony

Private Balcony

Adjacent Warehouse and Works

Galvanised Steel Canopy over Car Park

Private Balcony

PLANNING
Date

Drawn

Checked

May 2020

CR

PW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

Rev.

2599

P

202

D

Biodiverse
Brown Roof
(Non Accesible)

Private Balcony

Private Balcony

UNIT 28
66sqm

Adjacent Warehouse and Works

Biodiverse
Brown Roof
(Non Accesible)

Biodiverse
Brown Roof
(Non Accesible)

UNIT 29
82sqm

Page 102

Riser

Private
Balcony

Private
Balcony

UNIT 32
66sqm

AOV

CORE

CORE

A

A

UNIT 27
61sqm

Private Balcony

19.01.22

Amendments in response
to planning comitee
comments

CR

21.04.21

Window types revised

AB

C

06.04.21

Amendments according to
planning comments

CR

B

8no. 250w Solar
PV Panels
serving the
Residential Units

UNIT 26
61sqm

6no. 250W solar
PV panels
serving the
commercial unit

Private Balcony

UNIT 31
61sqm

Private
Balcony

UNIT 30
61sqm

26/06/20
Date

Private
Balcony

PLANNING ISSUE
Description

CR

A

Drawn

Rev.

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD

t

0117 942 8286

e

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk

f

0117 942 0495

w

angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without consent
Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect
Contractors to verify all dimensions and sizes on site
Job Name:

Durnford Street,
Bristol
Client:

Prelon Construction
Drawing Title:

Block A- Levels 4 & 5
0
Scale

1m

2m

Sheet

1 : 200@ A3

Block A Level 4
1 : 200

2

Block A Level 5
1 : 200

Scale Status:
Drawing

N

1

D

Riser

Riser

6no. 250W solar
PV panels
serving the
commercial unit

AOV

Flat Roof

Flat Roof

8no. 250w Solar
PV Panels
serving the
Residential Units

UNIT 33
75sqm

Riser

Adjacent Warehouse and Woeks

Biodiverse
Brown Roof
(Non Accesible)

PLANNING
Date

Drawn

Checked

May 2020

CR

PW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

Rev.

2599

P

203

D

Off white lightly textured render

Facing brickwork - Red

Facing Brickwork - Blue

Metal standing seam Roofing/Cladding

Pressed metal faceplate

Grey fibre cement panel - Eternit
Equitone mid grey natural finish
Metal standing seam cladding/roofing

Pressed metal faceplate
Proposed Development
(The Old Brewery)
REF: 1804367-F

A - Level 5
23150

Feature brick coursing detail

SITE BOUNDARY

SITE BOUNDARY

Solar Panels

Light Grey Render

Light Grey Render

Timber panelling
Dark Grey uPVC windows with integral
louvres where indicated

Frosted Glass Screen
Pressed metal faceplate

A - Level 4

Light grey lightly textured render

20150

Vertical brick
reveals

Pressed
metal coping

Vertical brick
reveals

Solar Panels

Pressed
metal coping

A - Level 3
17150

B - Eaves
15720
A - Level 2
B - Level 2

14150

13550

A - Level 1

B - Level 1

11150

Public Art on
Inner Wall
face & Soffit

10850

B - Level 0
A - Level 0

8150

7550

PUBLIC FOOTWAY AND BLOCK A ACCESS

BLOCK B TOWN HOUSE UNITS

Block A & B - South East - Durnford Street

El
ev
at
io
n

2

1 : 100

El
ev
at
io
n

1

SITE BOUNDARY

Solar Panels
SITE BOUNDARY

Pressed metal faceplate

A - Level 5
23150

Light Grey Render
Pressed metal faceplate

Key Plan: 1:1000

A - Level 4
20150
Indicative
Solar PV's

21.04.21 Window types revised
06.04.21 Amendments according to planning
comments
26/06/20 PLANNING ISSUE
Date
Description

Pressed
metal coping

Pressed
metal coping

AB
CR

C
B

CR
A
Drawn Rev.

A - Level 3
17150

A - Level 2
14150
Pressed
metal coping

A - Level 1
Adjacent warehouse building

Page 103

1

COMMERCIAL UNIT

Public Art on
Inner Wall
face & Soffit

11150

PUBLIC FOOTWAY AND BLOCK A ACCESS

OPEN MARKET PARKING ACCESS
Galvanized metal gate

t
f

0117 942 8286
0117 942 0495

e
w

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk
angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without
consent. Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect. Contractors to verify
all dimensions and sizes on site.

Client:
Prelon
Construction

Job Name:

Durnford Street,
Bristol
Drawing Title:

A - Level 0
BLOCK B TOWN HOUSE UNITS

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD

7550

Block A&B - SE & NW
Elevations
0

1m

Scale

2m

5m

Sheet

@ A1
As indicated
Drawing Status:

PLANNING

2

Block A & B - North West - Rear
1 : 100

Date

Drawn

Checked

May 2020

DM

PW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

2599

P

300

Rev.

C

Off white lightly textured render

Facing brickwork - Red
Pressed
metal coping

Facing Brickwork - Blue

Pressed metal faceplate

SITE BOUNDARY

Feature brick coursing detail
Grey fibre cement panel - Eternit
Equitone mid grey natural finish
Pressed metal faceplate
Metal standing seam cladding/roofing

Timber panelling

Metal standing seam Roofing/Cladding

A - Level 5
23150

Dark Grey uPVC windows with integral
louvres where indicated

Pressed
metal coping

Light grey lightly textured render

A - Level 4
20150
Kitchen/Living

Bathroom

Bedroom 1

Kitchen/Living

Bathroom

Bedroom 1

A - Level 3
17150
Detail brick Work on corner

A - Level 2
14150

Julliet
Balcony

Detail brick Work on corner

Public Artwork
on wall and Sofitt Painted Mural by
Local Artist

1
A - LevelLevel
1
11150 4000 mm
Durnford Street

Default Building
A - Level 0
Storey

7550

0 mm

Page 104

1

COMMERCIAL UNIT

CORE A ACCESS

Decorative Perforated
metal Screen (design tbc)

CORE B ACCESS

CYCLE STORE

Block A - North East- Side
1 : 100

n
io
at
ev
El

Pressed
metal coping

1

Soalr PV's
SITE BOUNDARY

2

Pressed metal faceplate

n
io
at
ev
El

AOV

Pressed metal faceplate

Dormer Window

A - Level 5

Key Plan: 1:1000

23150
Pressed
metal coping

19.01.22 Amendments in response to planning
comitee comments
21.04.21 Window types revised
06.04.21 Amendments according to planning
comments
26/06/20 PLANNING ISSUE
Date
Description

Roof Terrace balcony

A - Level 4
20150

CR

D

AB
CR

C
B

CR
A
Drawn Rev.

A - Level 3
17150

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD

A - Level 2

t
f

14150

0117 942 8286
0117 942 0495

e
w

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk
angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without
consent. Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect. Contractors to verify
all dimensions and sizes on site.

Adjacent Warehouse and Works

Client:
Prelon
Construction

Job Name:

A - Level 1

Level 1

Durnford Street,

11150

4000 mm

Bristol
Drawing Title:

Block A - NE & SW Elevations
Durnford Street

0

1m

2m

A - Level 0

Default Building
Storey

Scale

7550

0 mm

Drawing Status:

5m

Sheet

@ A1
As indicated

PLANNING

2

Block A- South West- Side
1 : 100

Date

Drawn

Checked

May 2020

DM

PW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

2599

P

301

Rev.

D

1
El
ev
at
io
n

Page 105

SITE BOUNDARY

Proposed Development
(The Old Brewery)
REF: 1804367-F

REFUSE

1

COMMERCIAL UNIT

SITE ACCESS PUBLIC PEDESTRIAN ROUTE TO BAYNTON ROAD

DURFORD STREET

SITE BOUNDARY

Key Plan: 1:1000

ADJACENT WORKSHOP

BREWERY COURT

Block A & B - South East - Durnford Street - Context
1 : 200

06.04.21 Amendments according to planning
comments
26/06/20 PLANNING ISSUE
Date
Description

CR

B

CR
A
Drawn Rev.

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD
t
f

0117 942 8286
0117 942 0495

e
w

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk
angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without
consent. Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect. Contractors to verify
all dimensions and sizes on site.

Client:
Prelon
Construction

Job Name:

Durnford Street,
Bristol
Drawing Title:

Elevations - Context
0

2m

Scale

4m

10m

Sheet

@ A1
As indicated
Drawing Status:

PLANNING
Date

Drawn

Checked

22/04/20

TE

PCW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

2599

P

305

Rev.

B

PROPOSALS SUBJECT TO:
SITE SURVEY; STATUTORY APPROVALS;
DESIGN DEVELOPMENT.

n
io
at
ev
El
2

n
io
at
ev
El

SITE BOUNDARY

1

Proposed Development
(The Old Brewery)
REF: 1804367-F

SITE BOUNDARY

BUILDING LINE - BLOCK A

BAYNTON ROAD COURTYARD

1

VISITOR CYCLE PARKING

CENTRAL COURTYARD

BLOCK B FAMILY HOUSES

Key Plan: 1:1000

DURNFORD STREET

Block A&B North East Context
1 : 200

SITE BOUNDARY

SITE BOUNDARY

Page 106
Proposed Development
(The Old Brewery)
REF: 1804367-F

06.04.21 Amendments according to planning
comments
26/06/20 PLANNING ISSUE
Date
Description

PLOT 3

DURNFORD STREET

BLOCK B PLOT 3

PRIVATE GARDEN

COURTYARD

CR

B

CR
A
Drawn Rev.

THE OLD BREWERY SCHEME

Cedar Yard, 290A Gloucester Road, Bishopston, Bristol, BS7 8PD

2

Block A&B - North East - Context
1 : 200

t
f

0117 942 8286
0117 942 0495

e
w

architecture@angusmeek.co.uk
angusmeek.co.uk

© Angus Meek Partnership. Not to be reproduced in part or whole, without
consent. Any discrepancies to be reported to the architect. Contractors to verify
all dimensions and sizes on site.

Client:
Prelon
Construction

Job Name:

Durnford Street,
Bristol
Drawing Title:

Elevations - Context 2
0

2m

Scale

4m

10m

Sheet

@ A1
As indicated
Drawing Status:

Date

Drawn

Checked

06/16/20

CR

PCW

Job No.

Stage

Drawing No.

2599

P

306

Rev.

B

Page 107

Agenda Item 9b
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022

ITEM NO. 2

WARD:

Filwood

SITE ADDRESS:

149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road Bristol BS3 5LD

APPLICATION NO:

21/00843/F

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
15 April 2022
DEADLINE:
Demolition of 149A Marksbury Road and erection of 5no. single storey dwellings on land to the rear.

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

Stokes Morgan Planning Ltd
G17 Kestrel Court
1 Harbour Road
Portishead
Bristol BS20 7AN

APPLICANT:

Alex Fry
Alveare
Bridgwater Road
Dundry
Bristol
BS41 8JP

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

28/03/22 15:21

Page 108

Committee report

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road

SUMMARY
The application has been brought to Committee for consideration as the Officer recommendation is
that the application is approved despite a significant number of objections having been received from
local residents.
It is considered that the proposed erection of 5 single storey dwellings on land to the rear of 149/149a
Marksbury Road accords with the relevant local and national plan policies being a sustainable form of
development that makes a small but valuable contribution to the supply of housing.
When seen in comparison to previously refused applications on site, the proposed development has
seen a reduction in the amount and scale of dwellings, which has significantly reduced the impact on
the neighbouring properties in terms of any overbearing, overlooking or loss of privacy
Whilst the design and scale of the proposed units are not considered entirely typical of the local
vernacular, the overall height, scale mass and form of the development is subservient to the
surrounding frontage buildings meaning the proposed will not be visually prominent within the street
scene
Each dwelling as proposed will provide acceptable living conditions for occupants by meeting National
Space Standard requirements, allowing suitable outlook and natural daylight and through providing an
adequate amount of private outdoor amenity space
Transport Development Management Officers are satisfied with the lack of a proposed vehicle access
as the proposal site is within a sustainable location close to a range of services and public transport
routes. In addition, TDM Officers are in agreement with the findings of the submitted parking survey
which concludes that there is adequate on street parking within the local vicinity. The applicant has
agreed to pay a fee of £6067 via a Unilateral Undertaking in order to implement additional waiting
restrictions across the proposal site access on Marksbury Road.
The Council’s consultant Ecologist has raised no objection subject to pre-commencement conditions
securing a Construction Environmental Management Plan (CEMP) and Enhancement Strategy to
include detailed proposals for green roofs and bat, bird and insect boxes.
The Council’s Flood Risk Officer has objected as the proposed surface water drainage details are not
considered adequate but has agreed to the use of pre-commencement condition to secure these
details in the event of permission being granted. This was also considered an acceptable approach
during the Inspector’s decision on the 2018 application
The Council’s Arboricultural Officer is satisfied that adequate tree replacement mitigation and suitable
tree protection for existing trees in neighbouring gardens has been demonstrated on site, subject to a
pre-commencement condition securing a site meeting to discuss details of working procedures.
The Officer recommendation is that the application is approved subject to the signing of a Unilateral
Undertaking in order to secure a financial contribution of £6067 for a TRO to extend the waiting
restriction on Marksbury Road across the site access.

Page 109

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
SITE DESCRIPTION
The 2024sqm landlocked application site lies to the south of Marksbury Road and is bound by
Brixham Road to the west, Lydford Walk to the south and Dawlish Road to the east. It includes 149
and 149a Marksbury Road.
The application site comprises an end-of-terrace and mid-terrace dwelling house, and an area of open
space to the rear which is wholly landlocked by residential properties. The piece of land and
comprises soil and rubble piles topped off with scrub and a small number of self-seeded hedgerows.
The topography of the site is sloping, running downhill southeast to northwest, with the northwestern
corner at approximately 10.4m AOD and the southeastern corner at approximately 14.3mAOD.
The site is an area that is designated as being Flood Zone 2, with the River Malago lying
approximately 60 metres to the west of the site. The site is not within a Conservation Area, and there
are no Listed Buildings on or adjoining the site and no Tree Preservation Orders apply
RELEVANT HISTORY
15/00533/F Proposed two storey dwelling house on land adjoining 149 Marksbury Road.
Date Closed 5 June 2015 CANC
18/05226/F-Demolition of 149a Marksbury Road and erection of 7no two-bedroom dwellinghouses
and 1no. one-bed bungalow on land to rear, including creation of new access, and soft and hard
landscaping. Date Closed 15 February 2019 REF (Dismissed at Appeal Ref:
APP/Z0116/W/19/323184)
19/05827/P Outline application for the erection of 9no. 2 bedroom flats, with access, layout and scale
being considered. Date Closed 28 January 2020 REF
Application 18/05226/F was refused by the Council on 15th February 2019, and a subsequent appeal
dismissed. The Council gave four reasons for refusal (access, refuse storage, neighbour impact due
to height, scale and massing, and drainage). Further details were submitted with regards to surface
water drainage as part of the appeal, which the Inspector accepted, but the other three reasons for
refusal were upheld.
A second outline application, for 9no. two-bedroom flats (19/05827/P), was refused on 28th January
2020, on the grounds of overdevelopment (height, scale and mass) and the impact on neighbouring
dwellings, poor residential amenity, failure to demonstrate adequate access for emergency vehicles,
and the failure to provide an ecological assessment or an arboricultural survey.
APPLICATION
The proposal comprises the demolition of 149a Marksbury and the erection of 5 no. single storey
dwellings on vacant land behind..
The scheme proposes a detached three-bedroom, four-person dwelling (86sqm) and two pairs of
semi-detached two bed, three-person dwellings (72sqm), all in excess of the respective National
Space Standard requirements of 74sqm/61sqm.
All units would be dual-aspect, with north and south-facing windows. Private amenity space is
provided for each dwelling, ranging in size from 120sqm (plot 4) to 186sqm (plot 5), in addition to the
landscaped communal/access area, measuring 660sqm.
Green roofs are proposed to the dwellings, with water butts, together with hedgerow planting to the

Page 110

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
boundaries, supplemented with trees. The buildings would be clad in cedar boarding with aluminium
windows, aluminium coping and galvanised rainwater goods.
The proposal site will feature a pedestrian only access route with no off street parking spaces being
provided however emergency vehicles will be able to gain to access the site. It is to be noted that all
dwellings would be fitted with sprinkler systems, with dry risers installed within the site.
A bin day collection point for waste and recycling will be situated adjacent to Marksbury Road, with an
additional day to day bin storage point being positioned further into the site. Lockable cycle storage
sheds are proposed within each garden.
RESPONSE TO PUBLICITY AND CONSULATION
NEIGHBOUR CONSULTATION
The application was advertised via Site Notice, Press Advert and Neighbour Notification letters.
Subsequently 35 objections were received relating to the following issues:
• Impact on ecology
• Impact on trees
• Impact on drainage and additional flood risk
• Impact on parking
• Impact on privacy
• Additional noise disturbance
• Inadequate access for emergency vehicles
• Overdevelopment of site
• Covenant on land restricting development of site (Case Officer comment: It is important to note
that restrictive covenants are not considered in applications for planning permission. Equally,
the granting of planning permission does not quash or override any restrictions on title.
Applicants must both obtain planning permission, and comply with restrictive covenants, in
order for development to be carried out).
• Impact on house prices (Case Officer comment: This is not a material planning consideration).
OTHER COMMENTS
Councillor Christopher Jackson has objected to the proposed development:
“As you may know, the River Malago is prone to flooding and in past, Marksbury Road has become
quite badly flooded. For this reason, the Council's Flood Officer's approval is necessary to allow
development, but as you will see, the flood officer is objecting to this.
Councillors on the Development Control Committee also need to keep in mind that there is a covenant
on the land that means it's not allowed to be developed”.
INTERNAL CONSULTEES
Transport Development Management (TDM): No objection:
Principle / history
This application follows two previously refused applications, 18/05226/F and 19/05827/P which were
deemed to be detrimental to highway safety.
The 18/05226/F application was dismissed at appeal in which the inspector found the proposal would
be detrimental to highway safety due to the insufficient width of the access.

Page 111

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
In respect to the 19/05827/P planning application TDM recommended refusal on the basis of
inadequate access for fire tenders. TDM did however find the lack of on-site parking, servicing
provision and waste collection provision to be acceptable. The applicant has therefore sought to
address the issues raise by TDM within the previous response to 19/05827/P.
This proposal is for 4 x two bed and 1 x three bed single storey dwellings.
Layout
The site is located on the south side of Marksbury Road and will have pedestrian, cycle and
emergency vehicle access only. This is acceptable however TDM require a bollard be implemented
and shown on any approved plans which prevents vehicles from parking within the site.
It is understood that the private access lane will not be offered for adoption, and the developer will
need to sign an exemption notice to confirm this. Should the scheme be minded for approval a
scheme of lighting would be required for the private access road.
Car Parking
The development does not propose any off-street parking. Given that the development is situated in a
reasonably accessible area for sustainable transport, this complies with local plan policy which does
not propose minimum parking levels. Instead residents who did own a car would be required to park
their vehicle off site. TDM consider that a survey of available parking spaces on the highway
concludes that there are sufficient parking spaces within a short walk for residents to park. As a zero
car development TDM would advise that future occupiers should be exempt from parking permits if a
residents parking scheme were to be introduced.
A TRO would be required to implement the proposal to extend the waiting restriction on Marksbury
Road across the site access and a fee of £6067 would be required to implement this.
Fire Service
Avon Fire & Rescue Service have been consulted on the proposals and have confirmed subject to the
introduction of a sprinkler system within the dwellings no concerns would be raised. On this basis
TDM raise no concerns.
Construction Management/ Network Management
Due to the impact this proposal would have on the highway network during the demolition/construction
period, the applicant would be required to produce and submit a highway network construction
management plan.
Recommendation
TDM recommend approval of the application subject to conditions as specified at the end of this report
Contaminated Land: No objection subject to standard conditions B11, B12, B13 and C1 being
applied to any future planning consent
Arboricultural Officer: Following receipt of a revised Arboricultural Report, the Council’s
Arboricultural Officer is satisfied that adequate tree replacement mitigation and suitable tree protection
for existing trees in neighbouring gardens has been demonstrated on site.
Ecology: No objections subject to conditions:
“I have read the bat reports and I am satisfied that potential bat roost issues have now been

Page 112

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
addressed satisfactorily. The development shall be carried out in accordance with the mitigation and
enhancement measure contained in the report submitted (Emergence and Activity Surveys, Quantock
Ecology, 15/09/21).
Other matters, however, appear not to have been addressed and I would refer to you to my initial
email response dated 15/04/21 which sets out the conditions/advisories that will be required. These
are fairly standard, but I can provide more specific wording for them if you require. I think A, B & C can
be rolled into D (the requirement for a CEMP), but E (Ecological Enhancement) will need to be
standalone”.
Flood Risk: Objection:
“We would object to this application as not enough information has been provided, the applicant
needs to show that one of the two proposed drainage strategies are viable either by undertaking
infiltration testing to BRE365 (or equivalent) standard or getting approval from Wessex Water that
flows into their system are acceptable.
We would also require detailed design drawings of the proposed SuDS features as well as
management and maintenance details for the proposed SuDS features. We would be happy for these
two elements to be provided to us either with the above confirmation or separately via condition. If the
case officer is minded to apply a condition to this application we would recommend that B35 SuDS is
applied”.
RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – 2021
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 and the Hengrove and
Whitchurch Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019.
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance
KEY ISSUES
(A) IS THE PRINCIPLE ACCEPTABLE IN LAND USE TERMS?
The proposal site is unallocated on the Local Plan Policies Map, which in general relates to areas that
are primarily residential and where the primary uses are likely to remain undisturbed.
Policy BCS5 sets out that the Core Strategy aims to deliver new homes within Bristol's existing built
up areas to contribute towards accommodating a growing number of people and households in the
city. Between 2006 and 2026, 30,600 new homes will be provided in Bristol. The policy further states
that the development of new homes will primarily be on previously developed sites across the city.
This is supported by BCS20 which states that new development will maximise opportunities to re-use
previously developed land.
The need to make the most effective use of this piece of urban land in accordance with Policy BCS20
is acknowledged and acceptable in this location in a built up residential area in what is considered to
be a sustainable location.
The creation of five dwellings would make a small scale but valuable contribution towards housing

Page 113

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
supply which is compatible with the objectives of Policy BCS5.
On 14th January 2022, the government published the results of its 2021 Housing Delivery Test, which
aims to measure how effectively each local authority is delivering housing against NPPF requirement
to demonstrate a five-year supply of deliverable housing sites. Bristol was found to be delivering only
74% of the housing requirement meaning the presumption in favour of development in the NPPF will
apply.
In view of the fact that the LPA is not able to demonstrate a five year housing land supply, paragraph
11(d) of the NPPF is engaged, and the tilted balance applies. At present the Council is unable to
demonstrate a Framework compliant supply of housing land and delivery. In these circumstances, the
presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in paragraph 11d of the Framework is
engaged. This indicates that planning permission should be granted unless any adverse impacts of
doing so would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the
policies in the Framework taken as a whole.
In terms of the benefits of the development, the proposal would make a small but valuable
contribution to the area’s housing stock and mix of housing. As the proposed development is
considered to accord with the relevant local and national plan policies as detailed in the Key Issues
below, the presumption in favour of sustainable development as set out in the NPPF applies as there
are no adverse impacts that would significantly and demonstrably outweigh the benefits of increasing
local housing supply
To conclude, in land use terms, the creation of 5 dwellings on site would represent sustainable
development in full accordance with national and local planning policy. The principle of development
in land use terms is therefore acceptable subject to other material considerations as discussed below.
In relation to the covenant on the proposal site, it is important to note that restrictive covenants are not
considered in applications for planning permission. Equally, the granting of planning permission does
not quash or override any restrictions on title. Applicants must both obtain planning permission, and
comply with restrictive covenants, in order for development to be carried out. Therefore this is not
considered to be a material planning consideration in this instance.
(B) MIXED AND BALANCED COMMUNITY ISSUE
The NPPF (2021) reflects the need to significantly boost the supply of housing and to deliver a wide
choice of high quality homes, widen opportunities for home ownership and create sustainable,
inclusive and mixed communities. Policy BSC18 of the adopted Core Strategy reflects this guidance
and states that ''all new residential development should maintain, provide or contribute to a mix of
housing tenures, types and sizes to help support the creation of mixed, balanced and inclusive
communities'', with reference to the evidence provided by the Strategic Housing Market Assessment,
also notes that `developments should contribute to a mix of housing types and avoid excessive
concentrations of one particular type'. The policy wording states that development `should aim to'
contribute to the diversity of housing in the local area and help to redress any housing imbalance that
exists.
The application site is located within the Marksbury Road LSOA within the Windmill Hill. An up-to-date
picture of the proportion of different residential accommodation types in the LSOA can be obtained by
assessing the 2011 Census data suggests that the Marksbury Road LSOA comprises approximately
69.8% houses with 58.5% being 3 bedroom and 28.9% being 2 bedroom. On this basis, no objections
are raised to the type of dwelling proposed as the scheme would not create or contribute to local
imbalance of housing type or size.

Page 114

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
(C) WOULD THE PROPOSAL BE ACCEPTABLE IN RESPECT OF DESIGN AND THE CHARACTER
AND APPEARANCE OF THE AREA?
Policy BCS21 advocates that new development should deliver high quality urban design that
contributes positively to an area's character and identity, whilst safeguarding the amenity of existing
development.
Policies DM26-29 of the Site Allocations & Development Management Policies require development
to contribute to the character and distinctiveness of an area through its layout, form, public realm and
building design.
DM26 expects developments to contribute towards local character and distinctiveness by restoring the
local pattern and grain of development, responding appropriately to the height, scale, massing, shape,
form, and proportion of existing buildings, building lines and setbacks from the street, as well as
reflecting locally characteristic architectural styles, patterns and features.
Policy DM26 also requires back land development to be subservient in height, scale, mass and form
to the surrounding frontage buildings.
DM27 expresses that the layout, form, pattern and arrangement of streets, buildings and landscapes
should contribute towards to creation of quality urban space and that the height, scale and massing of
development should be appropriate to the immediate context, site constraints, character of adjoining
streets and spaces. Development should provide a coherent, interconnected and integrated built form
that relates to its immediate context.
Policy DM29 states that the design of new building should be of high quality adaptable design,
incorporating well proportioned elevations with high quality detailing and durable attractive materials
that contribute positively to the character of the area.
The proposal site is entirely land locked being surrounded by residential properties. As such the
development would not be clearly visible along any of the surrounding street scenes as only partial
views are provided from the site access.
The small height and scale of the dwellings as proposed mean that they will appear as suitably
subservient when seen in comparison to the surrounding frontage dwellings in accordance with back
land development requirements as specified in DM26
Whilst it is acknowledged that the flat roof design and materials of the dwellings as proposed are not
entirely consistent with the existing development surrounding the proposal site, given its back land
location the development is not considered harmful to the visual amenity of the locality as it will not be
overtly prominent within the street scene meaning there will be little impact on the character and
appearance of the area.
(D) WOULD THE PROPOSAL HAVE ANY ADVERSE IMPACT ON THE AMENITY OF
SURROUNDING DEVELOPMENT?
BCS21 provides a set of criteria for the assessment of design in new development. Proposals are
expected to safeguard the amenity of existing development and deliver a high-quality environment for
future occupiers. Policies DM27 and DM29 state that new buildings should be designed to a high
quality, ensuring that existing and proposed development achieves appropriate levels of outlook,
daylight and privacy.
The proposed dwellings will have a maxim height of approximately 3m and will be sited on average an
approximate distance of 20m from the rear elevations of the dwellings fronting Marksbury Rd, Dawlish
Rd and Lynton Rd. This is considered an appropriate proximity and distance between properties

Page 115

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
within a built up residential area.
The closest distance between properties will be the approximate 8m separation between the side
elevation of plot 5 as proposed and the rear elevation of 13 Lydford Walk. Given the low height of the
proposed flat roof, single storey dwelling, this relationship is not considered to be of an overbearing
nature or to result in any significant loss of outlook, privacy or daylight to the occupants of 13 Lydford
Walk.
Therefore the proposed siting, orientation and scale of the proposed dwellings are not considered to
be detrimental to the current level of residential amenity awarded to local residents in terms of any
direct overlooking, loss of privacy, outlook, daylight or overbearing impact.
(E) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
ENVIRONMENT FOR FUTURE OCCUPIERS?

PROVIDE

A

HIGH

QUALITY

LIVING

BCS21, DM27 and DM29 require that residential development should provide a high quality living
environment for future occupiers including appropriate levels of outlook and daylight. New residential
development should provide dual aspect where possible, particularly where one of the aspects is
north-facing.
BCS18 states that residential developments should provide sufficient space for everyday activities
and to enable flexibility and adaptability by meeting appropriate space standards
All of the proposed 5 dwellings would comply with National Space Standards and be dual-aspect. All
windows would be a minimum of 7.5 metres from boundary fences, with the exception of the hall,
bathroom and secondary kitchen window to plot 1 (which is set 1.7 metres from the boundary fence to
the north). Plot 1 however would have windows to all four elevations, including patio doors serving the
kitchen/lounge, looking out on to the garden and a rooflight.
As such, the proximity of the boundary fence to the windows of non-habitable rooms, and a
secondary kitchen/lounge window, is not considered objectionable. Therefore it is considered that
adequate outlook is awarded to all of the proposed dwellings
In addition it is considered that all plot sizes will provide an acceptable amount of private outdoor
amenity space for all dwellings.
(F) WOULD THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT SATISFACTORILY ADDRESS HIGHWAY SAFETY,
TRANSPORT AND MOVEMENT ISSUES?
Policy BCS10 and Policy DM23 require that development does not give rise to unacceptable and/or
unsafe highway impacts. Development should be designed and located to ensure the provision of
safe streets. With regards to parking and servicing, Policy DM23 specifies development proposals will
be expected should provide an appropriate level of safe, secure, accessible and usable parking
provision having regard to the Council's parking standards contained within in the parking schedule at
Appendix 2 of the SADMP.
The site is located on the south side of Marksbury Road and will have pedestrian, cycle and
emergency vehicle access only. The Council’s Transport Development Management (TDM) Officer
has raised no objection to the lack of proposed off street parking. This is because the development is
situated in a reasonably accessible area for sustainable transport meaning local plan policy does not
propose minimum parking levels. Further to this, a survey of available on street parking spaces in the
locality that was submitted during the previous 2019 application concluded that there are sufficient
parking spaces within a short walk for residents to park.
Waste and recycling is proposed to be stored in a communal area and then moved to a collection

Page 116

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
point adjacent to the highway on collection days. Whilst this will require householders to move their
waste further than the recommended distances, given the constraints of the site TDM consider this is
not likely to give rise to unacceptable highway conditions.
It is acknowledged that there is restricted access for fire service vehicles. However, as shown on the
proposed plan drawings each dwelling will be fitted with a sprinkler system as secured by condition
prior to occupation which is considered sufficient mitigation.
(G) IMPACT ON ECOLOGY
Policy DM19: Development and Nature Conservation states that: "Protected Species are subject to
separate legislation which determines appropriate development and approaches to mitigation.
Protected Species legislation will need to be met before planning permission can be granted."
The policy also specifies that: "Development which would be likely to have any impact upon habitat,
species or features, which contribute to nature conservation in Bristol will be expected to be informed
by an appropriate survey and assessment of impacts".
A number of neighbour objections have indicated that there are protected species within the proposal
site and also nesting birds to be present. The applicant has provided both an Ecological Assessment
and Bat Survey.
The Council’s consultant Ecologist has assessed both documents and has raised no objection to the
proposed development as they are broadly satisfied with the conclusions of both reports but have
advised pre-commencement conditions requiring a Construction Environmental Management Plan
(CEMP) and Ecological Enhancement Strategy.
(H) TREES
It is noted that trees are located within the proposal site and that mature trees are situated adjacent to
site boundaries including a cherry tree in the rear garden of 11 Lydford Walk.
Policy DM17 states that where trees are present on a development site a British Standard 5837 Tree
Survey 'Trees in relation to Construction survey' and related survey information should be submitted
along with an application for planning permission.
Three trees are proposed to be removed as part of the development. The Council’s Arboricultural
Officer has raised no objection to the proposed development as adequate tree planting (21 trees) has
been demonstrated in the submitted landscaping plan which fully mitigates the tree replacement
standard requirements.
The Arboricultural Officer has advised a pre-commencement condition for a site meeting to be held
and attended by the applicant’s arboricultural consultant and site foreman to discuss details of
working procedures to ensure no trees will be damaged during construction.
Subject to this condition the proposed development is considered to accord with the requirements of
DM17.
(J) FLOOD RISK
The majority of the application site is located in flood zone 2 with the area to the south of the site in
zone1. The application includes a sequential test and FRA. The submitted test has searched other
sites in South Bristol in accordance with LPA guidance and found no suitable sites of a similar size
that are suitable for the scale of development proposed. Therefore it is concluded that the test is
passed.

Page 117

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
The application is supported by a FRA and a proposed Drainage Strategy showing surface water
drainage details. The Councils’ Flood Risk Officer has objected to the proposal as they consider the
proposed use of soakaways to be unfeasible and that the applicant will need to amend their strategy
to include another alternative option of attenuation discharging to a sewer as well as being written in
line with section 4.3 of the Bristol SFRA.
The applicant was offered the opportunity to provide these details prior to determination but has
drawn attention to the Inspector’s decision on the 2018 submission which states:
“23. Although part of the appeal site lies within Flood Zone 2, reflecting a higher risk from flooding,
there is no dispute between the parties that the proposal passes the requisite sequential test. The
submitted storm water SUDs plan details a permeable paving system and large orifice plate chamber
that sets out how surface water discharge will be managed. Notwithstanding, that the Local Lead
Flood Authority require further clarification in relation to the detail of such an approach, the evidence
indicates that there is reasonable basis to suppose that adequate means of surface water disposal
can be incorporated into the proposed development such that additional details can be appropriately
secured by way of a planning condition”.
Therefore, in this instance it is considered appropriate to secure alternative surface water drainage
details via a pre-commencement condition meaning it is not considered reasonable to include the
current lack of adequate surface drainage details as a reason for refusing this current application.
(K) SUSTAINABILITY AND CLIMATE CHANGE
Policies BCS13-15 within the adopted Bristol Development Framework Core Strategy (2011) require
new development to be designed to mitigate and adapt to climate change and meet targets to reduce
carbon dioxide emissions. This should be achieved, amongst other measures, through efficient
building design, the provision of on-site renewable energy generation to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions by at least 20% based on the projected residual energy demand of new buildings.
The applicant has provided this level of information on the form of a Summary Table which
demonstrates that the proposal meets the required 20% reduction in carbon emissions through the
use of Air Source Heat Pumps. The application is therefore considered acceptable in principle on
these grounds
CONCLUSION
The creation of 5 dwellings makes a small but valuable contribution to local housing supply, especially
when considering the Council cannot currently demonstrate a 5 year supply of housing
The proposed development is considered to provide adequate living conditions for future occupants.
In addition, the proposed bulk, scale, massing and siting of the proposed dwellings are not considered
to result in any loss of privacy to neighbouring residents or to have any unacceptable degree of
overshadowing through loss of daylight or to have an overbearing impact on the neighbouring
dwellings in accordance with policies BCS21, DM27 and DM29.
The proposed development will not be overtly visible within the street scene and is not considered to
have any adverse impact on the character and appearance of the area in accordance with policies
BCS21, DM6 and DM26-29
Considering the sustainable location of the proposal site, the Council’s TDM Officer has raised no
objection to the lack of proposed off street parking and it is not considered that the addition of 4
dwellings in this location will significantly increase on street parking requirements in the wider locality.
The proposed access is considered appropriate for both pedestrians and emergency vehicles and

Page 118

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
proposed waste and cycle storage provision is also considered acceptable. A Unilateral Undertaking
in order to secure a financial contribution of £6067 for a TRO to extend the waiting restriction on
Marksbury Road across the site access is also necessary
The proposed development is considered acceptable in terms of its impact on ecology and habitats,
subject to pre-commencement conditions requiring a CEMP and Ecological Enhancement Strategy
It has been demonstrated that the proposed development will provide adequate tree mitigation for the
loss of 3 trees and it is not considered that the proposal will have any significant detrimental impact on
existing neighbouring trees in accordance DM17.
As per the Inspector’s comments in 2018 Appeal Decision, it is considered appropriate to secure
surface water drainage details via pre-commencement condition
The Community Infrastructure Levy for this development is £23,417.86
RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to condition(s)

Time limit for commencement of development
1. Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the date of
this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended by
Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2. Construction Management Plan
No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction management
plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to throughout the
demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for:
o 24 hour emergency contact number;
o Hours of operation;
o Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to
ensure satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties
during construction);
o Routes for construction traffic;
o Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction
materials;
o Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;
o Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians)
o Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;
o Arrangements for turning vehicles;
o Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;
o Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses.

Page 119

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into
development both during the demolition and construction phase of the development.
3 Highway Condition Survey
No development shall take place (including investigation work, demolition, siting of site
compound/welfare facilities) until a survey of the condition of the adopted highway has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The extent of the area to be
surveyed must be agreed by the Highways Authority prior to the survey being undertaken. The survey
must consist of:
•
•

A plan to a scale of 1:1000 showing the location of all defects identified;
A written and photographic record of all defects with corresponding location references
accompanied by a description of the extent of the assessed area and a record of the date,
time and weather conditions at the time of the survey.

No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until any damage to the
adopted highway has been made good to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority.
Reason: To ensure that any damage to the adopted highway sustained throughout the development
process can be identified and subsequently remedied at the expense of the developer.
4 Arboricultural Supervision
Prior to the commencement of development, a pre-commencement site meeting shall be held and
attended by the developer's arboricultural consultant and the designated site foreman to discuss
details of the working procedures. A schedule of visits shall be drawn up to ensure the Project
arboriculturist is present during key stages of the development which include, but not limited to:
•

Installation of no dig paths within the root protection are of T002 (silverback Consultancy Tree protection plan Dwg 220303-149MR-TPP-SD) & in accordance with the Silverback
Consultancy Arboricultural method statement, dated March 2022.

Site visits must be carried out during the key stages identified above. Copies of written site notes
and/or reports detailing the results of site supervision and any necessary remedial works undertaken
or required shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, prior to
occupancy. Any approved remedial works shall subsequently be carried out under strict supervision
by the arboricultural consultant immediately following that approval.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied that the trees to be retained onsite will not be damaged during the construction works and to ensure that as far as possible the work
is carried out in accordance with current best practice.
5 Prior to commencement of development the applicant shall submit a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) for approval by the Local Planning Authority. This shall include measures
to avoid offences against badgers, breeding birds and reptiles. The development shall be carried out
in accordance with the approved Plan.
Reason: To demonstrate compliance with the 1981 Wildlife & Countryside Act (as amended) and the
1992 Protection of Badgers Act.
6 Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant will submit an Enhancement Strategy, to
include detailed proposals for green roofs and bat, bird and insect boxes. The development shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved Strategy.
Reason: Ecological enhancement is a requirements of the revised National Planning Policy

Page 120

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
Framework (NPPF, 2021) which states in paragraph 174 (d) on page 50 that 'Planning policies and
decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by... minimising
impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity...",
7 Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS)
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy and
associated detailed design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage for the site
using SuDS methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable
Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and maintained thereafter for the
lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory means of
surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the principles of
sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the lifetime of the
proposal.
8 Land affected by contamination - Site Characterisation
No development shall take place until an investigation and risk assessment, in addition to any
assessment provided with the planning application, and has been completed in accordance with a
scheme to assess the nature and extent of any contamination on the site, whether or not it originates
on the site. The contents of the scheme should be submitted to and be approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent
persons and a written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:
(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination;
(ii) an assessment of the potential risks to:
* human health,
* property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and
service lines and pipes,
* adjoining land,
* groundwaters and surface waters,
* ecological systems,
* archaeological sites and ancient monuments;
(iii) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's 'Model
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11'.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both during
the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together
with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors
9 Land affected by contamination - Submission of Remediation Scheme
No development shall take place until a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a condition
suitable for the intended use by removing unacceptable risks to human health, buildings and other
property and the natural and historical environment has been prepared, submitted to and been
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be
undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site

Page 121

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land
under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination is understood prior to works on site both during
the construction phase to the future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together
with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development
can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.
10 Land affected by contamination - Implementation of Approved Remediation Scheme
In the event that contamination is found, no development other than that required to be carried out as
part of an approved scheme of remediation shall take place until the approved remediation scheme
has been carried out in accordance with its terms. The Local Planning Authority must be given two
weeks written notification of commencement of the remediation scheme works.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme, a verification report
that demonstrates the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced, and be
approved in writing of the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination both during the construction phase and to the
future users of the land and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried out safely
without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite receptors.
Pre occupation condition(s)
11 Land affected by contamination - Reporting of Unexpected Contamination
In the event that contamination is found at any time when carrying out the approved development that
was not previously identified it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local Planning Authority.
An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in accordance with the requirements of
Condition 8 and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared in
accordance with the requirements of Condition 9;, which is to be submitted to and be approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report
must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority in
accordance with condition 10;.
Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land and neighbouring
land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters, property and ecological systems, and to
ensure that the development can be carried out safely without unacceptable risks to workers,
neighbours and other offsite receptors.
12 Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities – Shown on Approved
Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the refuse store and
area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the approved plans have been
completed in accordance with the approved plans.
Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be stored
within this dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within the building(s)

Page 122

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
that form part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be stored or placed for
collection on the adopted highway (including the footway), except on the day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises; protect the general
environment; prevent any obstruction to pedestrian movement and to ensure that there are adequate
facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.
13 Completion of Pedestrians/Cyclists Access - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means of
access for pedestrians and/or cyclists have been constructed in accordance with the approved plans
and shall thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.
14 Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle parking
provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept free of
obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.
15 Management and Maintenance of Private Streets
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until details of
arrangements for the future management and maintenance of proposed carriageways, footways,
footpaths and landscaped areas not put forward for adoption within the site has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following occupation of the first dwelling on the
site, the streets shall be maintained in accordance with the approved management and maintenance
details.
Reason: To ensure that all private streets and landscaped areas are appropriately managed and
maintained to ensure the safety of all users.
16 Further details of a fire suppressant sprinkler system
Detailed drawings and specifications of the following shall be submitted to and be approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant part of work is begun. The detail thereby approved
shall be carried out in accordance with that approval prior to occupation of the dwelling and thereafter,
be kept in working order for the lifetime of the development.
a) Fire suppressant sprinkler system for each new dwelling
Reason: In the interests of fire safety.
Post occupation management
17. No further extensions
Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development)
(England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking and/or re-enacting that Order) no extension or
enlargement (including additions to roofs) shall be made to the dwellinghouse(s) hereby permitted, or
any detached building erected, without the express permission in writing of the council.

Page 123

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
Reason: The further extension of this (these) dwelling(s) or erection of detached building
requires detailed consideration to safeguard the amenities of the surrounding area.
18. The development permitted by this planning permission shall be carried out in complete
accordance with Sustainability Statement received on 16th February 2021, unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development makes sufficient contribution towards mitigating and
adapting to climate change
List of approved plans
19. List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the application as
listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in order to discharge other
conditions attached to this decision.
18.040-100 Site Location and Existing Site Plans, received 24 February 2021
19.037-101D Proposed Site Plan (inc. cycle store detail), received 16 February 2022
19.037-102 Proposed Site Sections, received 24 February 2021
19.037-103A Proposed Landscape Plan, received 28 April 2021
19.040-110 Plot 1 - House Type A - Elevations and Floor Plan, received 24 February 2021
19.040-111 Plots 2 to 5 - TYPE B - 2-Bed Flat Elevations and Floor Plan, received 24
February 2021
210-120 Existing and proposed street scene, received 24 February 2021
Arboricultural Report , received 7 March 2022
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt
Advices
1 Traffic Regulation Order (TRO)
You are advised that a Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) is required. You must submit a plan to a scale
of 1:1000 of an indicative scheme for a TRO, along with timescales for commencement and
completion of the development. Please be aware that the statutory TRO process is not
straightforward; involving the public advertisement of the proposal(s) and the resolution of any
objections.
You should expect a minimum of six months to elapse between the Highway Authority's TRO Team
confirming that it has all the information necessary to enable it to proceed and the TRO being
advertised. You will not be permitted to implement the TRO measures until the TRO has been sealed,
and we cannot always guarantee the outcome of the process.
We cannot begin the TRO process until the appropriate fee has been received. To arrange for a TRO
to be processed contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team at
transportdm@bristol.gov.uk
N.B. The cost of implementing any lining, signing or resurfacing required by the TRO is separate to
the TRO fees, which solely cover the administration required to prepare, consult, amend and seal the
TRO.

Page 124

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road

2 Impact on the highway network during construction
The development hereby approved and any associated highway works required, is likely to impact on
the operation of the highway network during its construction (and any demolition required). You are
advised to contact the Highway Authorities Network Management Team at traffic@bristol.gov.uk
before undertaking any work, to discuss any temporary traffic management measures required, such
as footway, Public Right of Way, carriageway closures or temporary parking restrictions a minimum of
eight weeks prior to any activity on site to enable Temporary Traffic Regulation Orders to be prepared
and a programme of Temporary Traffic Management measures to be agreed.
3 Restriction of Parking Permits - Future Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme
You are advised that the Local Planning Authority has recommended to the Highways Authority that
on the creation of any Controlled Parking Zone/Residents Parking Scheme area which includes the
development, that the development shall be treated as car free / low-car and the occupiers are
ineligible for resident parking permits as well as visitors parking permits if in a Residents Parking
Scheme.
4 Highway Condition Survey
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of a Highway Condition Survey. To agree
the extent of the area to be surveyed contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development
Management Team at transportDM@bristol.gov.uk
5 Excavation Works on the Adopted Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of excavation works on the adopted
highway. You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted highway you will require a
Section 171 (Excavation) Licence from the Highway Authority which is available at
www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences
6 Private Road
You are advised that as a result of the proposed layout and construction of the internal access road,
the internal access road will not be accepted for adoption by the Highway Authority under Section 38
of the Highways Act 1980.
The development will be bound by Sections 219 to 225 (the Advance Payments Code) of the
Highways Act 1980, unless and until you agree to exempt the access road.
The exemption from adoption will be held as a Land Charge against all properties within the
application boundary. Contact the Highway Authorities Transport Development Management Team at
DMengineering@bristol.gov.uk
7 Street Name and Numbering
You are advised that to ensure that all new properties and streets are registered with the emergency
services, Land Registry, National Street Gazetteer and National Land and Property Gazetteer to
enable them to be serviced and allow the occupants access to amenities including but not limited to;
listing on the Electoral Register, delivery services, and a registered address on utility companies
databases, details of the name and numbering of any new house(s) and/or flats/flat conversion(s) on
existing and/or newly constructed streets must be submitted to the Highway Authority.
Any new street(s) and property naming/numbering must be agreed in accordance with the Councils

Page 125

Item no. 2
Development Control Committee B – 6th April 2022
Application No. 21/00843/F- 149/149A & Land To Rear Of Marksbury Road
Street Naming and Property Numbering Policy and all address allocations can only be issued under
the Town Improvement Clauses Act 1847 (Section 64 & 65) and the Public Health Act 1925 (Section
17, 18 & 19). Please see www.bristol.gov.uk/registeraddress
8 Sustainable Drainage System (SUDS)
The development hereby approved includes the construction/provision of a sustainable drainage
system. You are advised to contact the Highway Authority's Flood Risk Management Team at
flood.data@bristol.gov.uk before any works commence.

Page 126

Supporting Documents
2.

149/149A & Land to rear of Marksbury Road
1. 18.040-100 Site Location and Existing Site Plans, received 24
February 2021
2. 19.037-101D Proposed Site Plan (inc. cycle store detail), received 16
February 2022
3. 19.037-102 Proposed Site Sections, received 24 February 2021
4. 19.037-103A Proposed Landscape Plan, received 28 April 2021
5. 19.040-110 Plot 1 - House Type A - Elevations and Floor Plan,
received 24 February 2021
6. 19.040-111 Plots 2 to 5 - TYPE B - 2-Bed Flat Elevations and Floor
Plan, received 24
7. February 2021
8. 210-120 Existing and proposed street scene, received 24 February
2021

Page 127

158

172

174

168

170

11.20

11.20
11.13

11.11

11.12
drop kerb
11.04
11.02

Y ROAD
R
U
B
S
K
AR
10.93

10.96

e
wir
rhe
ad
ove
1N

Ø1
0

0

wood decking

10.33

10.52
10.45
eave 13.21

0

steps up

0
Ø1

Ø150
mh(fws)
cl 10.46
il 9.55

ea

10.31

lean to 14.23

mh(fws)
cl 10.49
il 9.57

Ø100

10.40 10.46

151

10.46

10.43

1

10.25

10.24

grass

shed

10.41

12.12

10.41

10.34

11.02

10.65
11.32

10.46
10.51
metal mesh fence closeboarded fence
ht 1.70
10.48 ht 1.70

10.47

soil/rubble
10.46

10.56

10.66

10.30

11.08

10.43

10.43

bush ht 2.5

hedge ht 1.4

11.48
11.47

10.49

10.45

concrete block wall

11.56

11.28

11.15
10.69

10.55

10.45

10.30

gate
.62

12
eave

concrete block wall

closeboarded fence
ht 1.90

concrete post &
closeboarded fence
ht 1.70

10.44
shed

10.64
dilapidated
metal posts

10.56

11.27
10.93

ISH
WL

eave 12.28

rid

blocked gate

ridge 12.66

.85
ge 12

11.20

concrete block wall &
railing fence
ht 2.00

10.62

10.60

brambles ht 1.6

12.62

dilapidated
woodlap fence ht 1.80

10.42
10.28

10.21

DA

d fence

fence
closeboarded
ht 1.90

arde
closebo
ht 1.90

grass

10.43

fence
closeboarded
ht 2.00

10.30

concrete

concrete block wall
& openboarded fence
ht 1.80

10.84

10.53

5
11
.6

8

11.05
11.88
rubble
10.81

10.50

10.52

dilapidated
wood & metal panel fence
ht 0.50-1.50

11.58

11.54

10.42
10.45
soil/rubble heap
10.70

10.44

e

soil/rubble

concrete block wall

11.22

Page 128

11.17

bushes ht 2.0-4.0

11.09

rubble
10.54

10.47

woodlap fence ht 1.60
eave 12.34

10.60

12.20

10.68

10.55
concrete block wall
ht 1.80

flat roof 12.25
shed

LYDFO

11.49

10.84
10.72

11.83

10.65

RD WAL
K

0

12.1

shed
ridge 12.93

LYDFOR

D WALK

10.47
concrete block wall

woodlap fence ht 2.00

3

15

AM RO

10.50

11.99

2982,7

AD

tlin

10.39

roo

AD

10.67
10.48
10.40

RO

soil/rubble

10.43

concrete post &
woodlap fence
ht 1.70

1

151

1

6

.1
15

svp

gully
10.41
10.47
pipe Ø
il 9.72
Ø150

svp
10.69 10.45

149

door
threshold
level 10.78
steps up

door
threshold level 10.86

10.71

168

2

o.

ridge 18.50

10.27

flat roof 18.15

15.48

170

eave 15.60

ridge 18.50

NO. 149

ridge 18.50

172

NO. 147

svp

eave

ve

eave 15.60

door

158

ridge 18.50

16.70
ridge

NO. 151A

148

10.50

up
door
threshold
level 10.85

assumed wall

1

.9
17

NO. 149a

10.24

ridge 17.91

ge

rid

10.53

ridge 18.50

jb
l
jb
door
threshold level 10.85

drainage channe

hedge
ht 2.0

approximate gate

ridge 18.50

concrete
10.61

10.61

eave 15.60

gas box 10.61

l 10.47

NO. 151

11.00

sv

hedge
ht 2.0

k wall
conc blocfence
woodlap
ht 1.10

eave 15.55

drainage channe
door
threshold
level 10.56

15

11.29

11.16

gates

hedge
ht 2.0

tarmac

wall
conc block
ht 1.00

10.43

5
.1

e

v
ea

rendered wall
ht 1.10

cbrw
ht 0.30
10.48
10.69
10.59

10.57

rendered wall
ht 1.20
tarmac

gravel

10.51

10.89

10.86

rendered wall
ht 1.05
11.12
11.06

11.20

10.94 10.96

10.90

gate 10.87

lp
10.91

10.79

10.43

rendered wall
ht 1.10

tarmac

10.87 gate 10.91

10.86
10.75

approximate
mh(utr)

brick wall
ht 0.90

10.52

10.66

10.76

10.53
tarmac

brick wall
ht 0.90

10.33

10.65

Cypress hedge
ht 5.0
10.67

up

10.58

10.53

10.65

Brixham Road

10.67

sv

10.80

11.03 gate

10.87 10.89
10.89

sv

rendered wall
ht 1.05

gate 10.82
10.74

10.71
10.76

10.82

10.84
10.81

10.79

catv

tarmac

concrete
tarmac
sv

sv

10.92

gates

2

ire
s
w
d
ea
erh
ov
o.
2N

10.68

10.64

10.66

10.70

10.70
10.60
10.62

10.60

10.86

10.85

rendered wall
ht 0.80
11.18
gate 11.17

1

10.57

10.57

10.71

ire
dw

10.88
tarmac
10.94

drop kerb
10.83
10.89

10.74
10.71

10.77

10.74

10.74

10.81
10.78

11.07
rendered wall
ht 0.80

11.07
rendered wall
ht 0.80
11.16

11.02

10.99

drop kerb
11.00

11.05

10.92
10.86

10.68

10.67
10.63

10.62

10.62

10.97

10.95

10.91

ea

drop kerb
10.60

10.58

11.09

10.99

e

erh

10.73

wir

ov

Heras fence ht 1.80

kerb's and footpaths under construction
levels will change

hedge
ht 2.0

d

ead wire

1No. overhead wire

10.69

Marksbury Road

wire

drop kerb

ea

10.68

0.92

head

erh

10.63

Heras fence ht 1.80

over

ov

141

10.66

o.

1No. overh

drop kerb

1No.

1N

133

10.71

M

drop kerb

10.72

10.71

10.65

10.64
10.62

10.55
drop kerb

o.
1N

10.75

10.61

10.78

10.78

10.74
10.70

10.71
10.56
10.52

10.53

11.26

10.86

141

Heras fence ht 1.80

10.59

road
gully

11.19

10.81

10.84

Stn B
358491.171 E
170595.117 N
10.744m

10.91

133

Stn C
358456.934 E
170595.632 N
10.943m

10.92

10.85

10.85

131

Stn A
358514.753 E
170596.969 N
10.903m

lp

12.33
11.90
shed

11.34

dilapidated
wood & metal panel fence
ht 0.50-1.50

14

BRIXH

11.63

2

10.95

10.77
12.16

10

11.15

10

.9

10

6

e

bushes ht 2.0-4.0

11.09
concrete post &
closeboarded fence
ht 2.00

tlin

roo

Willow
Ø 0.50
ht 10.0

soil/rubble

1

12.01
11.50

9

Stn F
358546.881 E
170533.453 N
12.826m

12.62
12.07

12.70

Site location plan

1

11.88
11.51

11.94
concrete block wall
ht 2.00

12.46

loose brick wall
ht 1.70

.5
12

2982,7

closeboarded fence
ht 2.00

scale 1:1250

13.24
12.53
shed
flat roof 15.47

3

12.32

8
14.0

Stn G
358554.908 E
170524.460 N
14.100m

12.64

13.62
12.99

13.08
13.67

concrete block wall

e

16

tlin

roo

soil/rubble

soil/rubble heap

bushes ht 2.0-4.0

14.25
13.68

14.50

7

14.5

12.79

LYDFOR

D WALK

concrete block wall

16

.6

6

14.19
13.04

13.07

Stn H
358575.928 E
170516.660 N
15.660m

13.55
concrete block wall

14.18
14.57
bushes ht 2.0-4.0
14.19

trees overhead
ht 3.0-5.0

in

ro

13.49

2

e

15

10

dilapidated
wood panel fence
ht 1.60

14.33

13.60

otl

4

.5
14

13.77
woodlap fence
ht 1.80

te

po

sts

14

.5

9

shed

closeboarded fence
ht 1.70

id
a
14 ted
.7 co
7 nc

re

straw fence
ht 1.80

closeboarded fence
ht 2.00

dil

ap

11

14.15

fence removed
in this area

10
15

11

2

14

6

10

9

Avec Design.
0m

5m

10m

20m

30m

40m

50m

20 Parsonage Road, Long Ashton, Bristol BS41 9LL

t: 01275 791846

www.ge2.co.uk

Project :

Scale :
Date :
Drawing No:

1:500 @A3
06.04.18
18.040 - 100

itle :

land to the rear of
149 Marksbury Rd, Bristol
existing Block plan

158
168
172
174

Materials key

D
RY ROA
U
B
S
K
R
MA

Foul drain to connect to
existing network
Hard standing area for
refuse and recycling on
collection day
(1m brick wall on two sides)

Proposed new tree planting

02

133

1.8m close boarded fence
02

141

dwelling to be demolished

b type

AD
RO

Native hedge to
site boundary

Refuse and
recycling store

PV panel on roof

ISH

01

WL
DA

A

each plot to have
2no fruit trees

SUDS
Green roof and water butts used for
storm water collection

02

B

01
FFL 11.30

cy

a type

AD

cy

03

Brick wall for bin
collection area

08

AM RO

cy

b type

Page 129

B

FFL 12.00

BRIXH

b type

Existing trees and route
protection zones

Existing tree removed by
neighbor

09
b type
2982,7

03

new 1.8m close boarded
fence to existing perimeter

01

b type

FFL 12.75

LYDFOR

cy
cy

Native hedge to
site boundary

04
06

D WALK

05
102

SCHEDULE OF ACCOMMODATION
Open market
a
3 bed
b
2 bed

15

86m2
76m2

1no
4no

11

A

106

total number of units 5

Fire strategy

14

rev c May2021

Bollard lighting added

15

cy

10

Lockable cycle store

Avec Design.

Bollard lighting

0m

10m

20m

30m

40m

50m

20 Parsonage Road, Long Ashton, Bristol BS41 9LL

t: 01275 791846

Project :

Scale :
Date :
Drawing No:

title :

land to the rear of
149 Marksbury Rd, Bristol
Proposed Block plan

www.ge2.co.uk

1:500 @A3
06.10.19
19.037 - 101D

8 Dawlish Road

Mimimum FFL11.30
to avoid flood zone 2
Refer to Flood Risk Assesment report

141 Marksbury Road

FFL 12.75

FFL 12.00

15.00

11.00

Proposed Section a-a

Page 130

4 Dawlish Road

FFL 11.30
FFL 12.00

existing ground level

Proposed Section b-b

Avec Design.
0m

10m

20m

30m

40m

50m

20 Parsonage Road, Long Ashton, Bristol BS41 9LL

t: 01275 791846

www.ge2.co.uk

Project :

Scale :
Date :
Drawing No:

1:200 @A2
06.10.19
19.037 - 102

itle :

land to the rear of
149 Marksbury Rd, Bristol
Proposed SITE SECTIONS

5m

0m

BU

141

Native Species Hedge

Specification notes

To a previously prepared 1.5 metre wide planting strip, set out centrally
& plant a double staggered row,650mm between rows, 500mm between
plants.Prune back to an even level height of 1.2 metres following planting.

1.
2.

%

Botanical Name

Size / Description

No

3.

10

Acer campestre
(Field maple)

OG, BR, 2x, 125 ‐ 150cm, feathered, 3 breaks,
strong with a well‐developed fibrous root system.

16

4.
5.

5

Corylus Avellana OG,
(Hazel)

BR, 1+1, 60 ‐ 80cm, strong with a well‐ developed
fibrous root system.

5

45

Crataegus Monogyna OG, BR, 2x, 125 ‐ 150cm, feathered, strong with a
(Hawathorn)
well‐developed fibrous root system.

70

5

Ilex aquifolium
(Common Holly)

10‐12 Litre Pot, 80 ‐100cm, 5 breaks

7

10

Ligustrum Vulgare
(Common Privet)

OG, BR, 1+1, 60 ‐ 80cm, strong with a
well‐ developed fibrous root system.

16

10

Prunus Spinosa
(Blackthorn)

OG, BR, 1+2 or 1/2, 80 ‐ 100cm, branched, 3 breaks. 15

10

Quercus Robus
(Oak)

OG, BR, 2x, 125 ‐ 150cm, feathered, 2 breaks,
strong with a well‐developed fibrous root system.

5

Viburnum opulus
(Water Elder)

OG, BR, 1+1 or 1/1, 80 ‐ 100cm.

Al

6.
7.
8.
9.

10m

Proposals to be read in conjunction with Architect Drawings
All landscape operations to be in accordance with BS 4428: 1989 & BS 3936:
1992and amendment to date:
Any imported topsoil to be to BS 3882, medium texture, neutral pH value, reasonably
stone free with no stones over 30mm in size.
Topsoil depth to be 450mm for shrubs areas and 150mm for grass
Standard tree pits to be 900 diameterx600mm deep, filled with good quality
topsoil and supported with a single stub stake and tom tree tie
Extra heavy standard trees to be planted in pits 1200 diameter x 750mm deep
filled with good quality topsoil and supported with doubl stub stakes and tomtree ties
Root barriers to be provided to trees where necessary to protect buildings and
services
All planting areas to be covered with 75mm depth of medium grade bark mulch
All planting to be maintained and guaranteed for 5 years to include watering,
weeding,pest and disease control

16

7

Fruit Tree Selection

Plant Selection

Pt

BU
Ap

Ap

02

C'AB' CEANOTHUS 'Autumnal Blue'

Ct

CHOISYA ternata

Pt (Avalon plum tree)
Pt

Al

cy

01
03

cy

C'ab'
Ctr

C'SP' CISTUS 'Silver Pink'

cy

Ct

BU
C'sp'

Page 131

BU

C'sp' C'ab'

Ctr

Ct

C'sp' C'ab'

Ctr

Ct

C'sp' C'ab'

Ctr

Ct

C'sp'

C'ab'

Ctr

Ct

Ctr

C'sp'

Ap

CEANOTHUS thyrsiflorus 'Repens

Tree Selection

Al
C'ab'
Ctr

Pt
Ct
C'sp'

Ap (Adams Pearman apple tree)

C'ab'
Ctr
Ct

Existing tree removed by
neighbor

C'sp'

BU (Betula Utilis Jacquemonti)
BU

Al (Melanchier Lamarkii)

Al

grass

C'sp'
Ct
Ctr
C'ab'

BU

C'sp'
Ct
Ctr

2982,7

03

C'ab'

cy

cy

01

04

05
Pt

Avec Design.

Ap

15

Ap
Pt

20 Parsonage Road, Long Ashton, Bristol BS41 9LL

t: 01275 791846

Project :

Scale :
Date :
Drawing No:

itle :

land to the rear of
149 Marksbury Rd, Bristol
Proposed Landscape plan

www.ge2.co.uk

1:200 @A2
06.10.19
19.037 - 103a

Materials
Green roofs

Aluminum coping

Cedar boarding
Valfac timber/aluminum
windows

Cedar boarding

front ele

side ele

ationscale 1:100

ationscale 1:100
Grey windows

Lindab galvanized
rainwater goods

Green roofs

Page 132

water butt

rear ele

side ele

ationscale 1:100

ationscale 1:100

Lindab galvanized rainwater goods
VITREOUS CHINA
K-19796
ESCALE
TOILET

Bungalow to be fitted with Sprinklers system
in accordance with BS 9251:2014

hall
bath

kitchen

VITREOUS CHINA
K-19796
ESCALE
TOILET

lounge
Flat roof windows

bed
(11.5 sq m)

bed

bed

(9.5 sq m)

(9.5 sq m)

Avec Design.

floor plan scale 1:100

20 Parsonage Road, Long Ashton, Bristol BS41 9LL

A TYPE
86m2

3 bedroom unit

0m

5m

Project :
itle :

land to the rear of
149 Marksbury Rd, Bristol
Type A - Plot 1

t: 01275 791846

Scale :
Date :
Drawing No:

1:100 @ A3
12.08.19
19.040 - 110

Page 133

front elevation scale 1:100

side elevation scale 1:100

rear elevation scale 1:100

side elevation scale 1:100

bed

bed

bed

(11.5 sq m)

(11.5 sq m)

(11 sq m)

(11 sq m)

ens.

ens.
K-19796
ESCALE
TOILET

VITREOUS CHINA
K-19796
ESCALE
TOILET

VITREOUS CHINA

kitchen

VITREOUS CHINA
K-19796
ESCALE
TOILET

ANIHC SUE
6O
TL
9EA
7R
L9CI1
TO
S-IK
V
E
T

kitchen

lounge

lounge
bath

hall

floor plan scale 1:100

B TYPE
72m2

2 bedroom flat

bed

bath

hall

Bungalow to be fitted with Sprinklers system
in accordance with BS 9251:2014

Avec Design.
20 Parsonage Road, Long Ashton, Bristol BS41 9LL

Project :
itle :

land to the rear of
149 Marksbury Rd, Bristol
Type B - Plots 2,3,4 & 5

t: 01275 791846

Scale :
Date :
Drawing No:

1:100 @ A3
12.08.19
19.040 - 111

Existing street scene

scale 1:100

Page 134
Proposed street scene

scale 1:100

GE2
U

R

B

A

N

D

E

S I G N

20 Parsonage Road, Long Ashton, Bristol BS41 9LL
0m

5m

10m

Project :
itle :

land to the rear of
149 Marksbury Rd, Bristol
Marksbury Road street scenes

t: 01275 791846

Scale :
Date :
Drawing No:

www.ge2.co.uk

1:100 @A3
10.10.18
210 - 120

Agenda Item 9c
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022

ITEM NO. 3

WARD:

Stoke Bishop

SITE ADDRESS:

Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

APPLICATION NO:

21/06762/F

Full Planning

DETERMINATION
8 April 2022
DEADLINE:
Demolition of existing public toilet block and construction of single storey building comprising café
(use class E), education booth (use class F1[a]) and replacement public toilets (resubmission of
planning permission 18/04727/F).

RECOMMENDATION:

AGENT:

Grant subject to Condition(s)

Chris Goodsall Architect
151 Whiteladies Road
Bristol
BS8 2RA

APPLICANT:

The Downs Committee
151 Whiteladies Road
Bristol
BS8 2RA

The following plan is for illustrative purposes only, and cannot be guaranteed to be up to date.
LOCATION PLAN:

DO NOT SCALE

28/03/22 14:47

Page 135

Committee report

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

SUMMARY
This application is a resubmission of an application previously granted planning permission by Bristol
City Council Development Control Committee B on 14th March 2019.
The application relates to the existing public toilets located adjacent to Sea Walls viewpoint on
Circular Road in the north western corner of The Downs open space. The resubmission seeks
planning permission for what is in essence the same development as previously permitted in March
2019. This involves demolition of the existing public toilet block construction of a single storey, mixed
use building including café, public toilets and education booth.
The resubmitted planning application has attracted 58 objections, 16 responses in support of the
development and 1 response classed as neutral. Main grounds of objection relate to the
appropriateness of development on The Downs; the impact to the character and appearance of The
Downs; commercialisation of The Downs; whether there is need or demand for a café; litter; light and
noise pollution; additional vehicles and parking issues; impact to biodiversity and trees; and conflict
with The Downs Act 1861. Objections have been made by Stoke Bishop ward Councillors John
Goulandris and Councillor Henry Michallat.
Since planning permission was granted in 2019, common land consent for the same development
was granted in November 2020 by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs. The Inspector's findings in relation to similar issues generally align with the
Local Planning Authority's earlier decision. The March 2019 planning permission recently lapsed in
March 2022, however given the similarities between the developments and relevant legislation,
national and local planning policy, the previous planning permission is a material consideration which
weighs in favour of the current application.
The officer's assessment and recommendation for the current application remains consistent with the
2019 application; that planning permission is granted subject to conditions. The concerns raised
relating to development of open space on The Downs are understood, however national and local
planning policy do allow for development of open space in exceptional circumstances. The proposals
are found to qualify as the development would be for sports and recreational provision, ancillary to
established use of the open space and offering benefits including improved access to, and facilities
within, the open space which outweigh the loss of a relatively small degree of open space adjacent to
the existing toilet block.
With regards to appearance and quality, the building is found to represent a significant improvement
in comparison to the existing toilet block which is dilapidated and attracts crime. It would be a low
profile structure, only marginally taller than the existing toilet block and would integrate sensitively with
the tree line located to the rear. The impact to the appearance and character of the area including the
significance of The Downs Conservation Area is found to be acceptable and the status of each would
be preserved and enhanced. A low degree of less than substantial harm is posed to the setting of the
adjacent listed drinking fountain but there is sufficient public benefit associated with the development
to outweigh this harm.
Similar to the previous application, safeguarding conditions are recommended relating to preservation
of neighbouring amenity and living conditions, highways and access issues, trees, ecology and
biodiversity, drainage, pollution as well as security and management. Subject to these measures, the
officers are satisfied that the impact of development will be acceptable and therefore the application is
in accordance with all relevant legislation, national and local planning policy and adopted guidance.
The recommendation is for permission to be granted subject to conditions. Further detailed
assessment and the list of proposed conditions can be found beneath.

Page 136

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

SITE DESCRIPTION
The development site relates to an existing public toilet block and adjacent land. The building is
located within and serves The Downs open space and common land, north Bristol. It is located to the
far north western corner of the open space, sited approximately 40m north of Circular Road and the
Sea Walls viewing point. The building is a single storey with a flat roof and stone walls. It is
understood to date from the 1950s. The building includes separate facilities for males, females and
disabled users, with level access from the front (east) and male facilities accessed from the rear
(west). Durdham Down open space surrounds the site to the north, south and east, with the Sea Walls
clifftop and the Avon Gorge located to the west. The suburb of Sneyd Park is located to the north of
the site. Sneyd Park is predominantly residential in use and character. The nearest neighbouring
building to the site is Towerhirst which is located approximately 35m north of the site. This is a three
storey plus basement detached house in Gothic style which dates from 1892. It is included on the
National Heritage List for England for its historic significance at Grade II level. A stone, marble and
granite drinking fountain is located in the clifftop wall adjacent to the south west of the existing toilet
block. This is also included on the National Heritage List for England at Grade II level. The site is
located within The Downs Conservation Area. The site is also within a Site of Nature Conservation
Interest, is designated a Local Historic Park and Garden as well as Important Open Space. The Avon
Gorge, adjacent to the west of the site is designated a Site of Special Scientific Interest as well as a
Special Area of Conservation.
In March 2019, Bristol City Council Development Control Committee B resolved to grant planning
permission for demolition of the existing public toilet block and permit construction of a new single
storey mixed use building comprising café, replacement public toilets and an education booth. Full
details of this application are listed in the planning history section beneath. The March 2019 planning
permission lapsed, unimplemented in March 2022. This development received common land consent
from the Secretary of State on 11th November 2020.
PLANNING HISTORY
05/04487/FB
Forming new door opening in external wall to allow formation of accessible W.C
and construction of concrete ramp
GRANTED - 06.01.2006
18/02629/F
of Existing WCs

Construction of Cafe and Replacement WCs and Education Booth. Demolition
WITHDRAWN - 14.08.2018

18/04727/F
education booth

Demolition of existing WCs. and construction of cafe, replacement WCs and
GRANTED - 14.03.2019

APPLICATION
The current application follows the recently lapsed March 2019 planning permission and seeks
planning permission for essentially the same development. Permission is sought for demolition of the
existing public toilet block and replacement with a new building including café, replacement public
toilets and an education booth.
The proposed building would be sited in a similar position to the existing toilet block, oriented parallel
with the adjacent clifftop wall to the west. The building would be larger than the existing toilet block,
measuring 16m in width by 5.8m depth. The building would be of a single storey, a maximum of 3.2m
in height from adjacent ground level.
The buildings construction would comprise a rectangular frame of ten steel columns spaced equally
within the eastern and western elevations supporting a flat roof structure. The roof would comprise
steel beams, plywood construction topped by single ply membrane with the upper face planted as a

Page 137

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

living roof and a flat array of solar panels. The proposed roof structure would overrun the perimeter
walls creating a canopy structure.
The proposed café would be sited to the southern end of the building and would include large glazed
walls. The toilets would be sited off centre, at the northern end of the building with timber clad walls
and a small glazed element above. The northern end of the building would comprise the educational
booth which would also be constructed with glazed walls and folding doors.
The proposed café would include a service bar, small back of house area and area of indoor seating.
A decking area is proposed surrounding the base of the building which would provide a further area of
proposed outdoor seating. The café would have proposed opening hours of 8am to 7pm Monday to
Saturday and 10am to 4pm on Sundays. It is proposed the café will be staffed by 2 full time staff and
1 part time member of staff. Bin storage relating to the café is proposed to the rear (west) of the
building. This would be housed within an enclosure finished with woven stainless steel mesh. It is
outlined that bins would be collected privately, with collections every second day. Café staff would
manoeuvre bins to Circular Road for collection and then back to the building. A Sheffield stand for
cycle parking for x2 staff bicycles is proposed housed within the same enclosed area as bins at the
rear of the building.
The proposed toilets would replace the existing public toilets at the site. It is highlighted that the
Council has cut funding to maintain public toilets across the city and the toilets at the site have been
maintained by The Downs Committee since early 2018. Three unisex toilets are proposed and one
accessible toilet, each self-contained with locking door. The toilets will be available 24/7, provided with
robust fittings and may include a payment facility for use when the adjacent café is closed. The
accessible facilities would also be available overnight via Radar (Royal Association for Disability
Rights) key lock.
The proposed education booth is designed to provide a base for the Avon Gorge and Downs Wildlife
Project. This is an organisation set up to protect the wildlife interest of the Avon Gorge and Downs
and raise awareness and understanding about the importance of the area for people and wildlife. The
booth would have a total internal area of 7m2 and would be used to facilitate the operation of the
wildlife project and its various events. This would be expandable by use of outdoor decked area
including retractable blinds to provide shelter in adverse weather conditions. The proposed blinds
would be incorporated within the roof structure.
It is also proposed to re-instate the adjacent Listed fountain to a functional state and replace the
existing tarmac surface adjacent to the fountain with individual paving tiles, laid in a semi-circular
shape surrounding the fountain.
COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT
The proposed development is classed as 'Minor' development; therefore there is no requirement for
the Applicant to demonstrate community engagement prior to submitting the application.
Nevertheless, it is understood that the applicant has reviewed the content of public consultation run by
the Local Planning Authority on the previous application and as part of the current application and
revised aspects of proposals to reflect some public responses.
RESPONSE FROM PUBLICITY AND CONSULTATION
292 neighbouring properties were directly notified of the application via neighbour notification letter.
The proposed development was also advertised via site notice and local press advert.
The deadline for responses was 9th February 2022.

Page 138

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

A total of 75 responses were received following public consultation. 58 responses raised objections to
the development, 16 responses were in support of the development and 1 response classed as
neutral.
A summary of the grounds of objection is as follows:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Unsuitable, inappropriate and out of character with The Downs
All development on The Downs should be rejected due to famous undeveloped nature
Café would introduce a commercial building in otherwise rural and green views
Impact to views of Avon Gorge and The Downs Conservation Area
Development would be visually intrusive
Development would generate light pollution harmful to the environment in hours of darkness
Café will generate litter which will be harmful to the local environment
There is no need or demand for a café in this location and there is already a café near the
water tower
The development will set a precedent for other development on The Downs
Education booth unnecessary and outdated due to on line provision and smart phones
Noise pollution and harm to local environment as a result of café
Noise pollution as a result of proposed air source heat pump
More people drawn to this part of The Downs will result in loss of privacy and cause additional
noise and disturbance for neighbouring residents
Carbon footprint of development too big and makes barest policy compliance
Harmful impact to ecology and nature in adjacent Avon Gorge
Additional traffic created by the café and harm this would pose to the local environment and
amenity
Additional vehicular traffic will cause highway safety issues for pedestrians
Lack of capacity in foul sewers to accommodate the development
Building will attract vandalism
Doubts regarding viability of proposed café resulting
The development will not achieve net gains for biodiversity
The supplied arboricultural report is out of date
Development is unlawful due to conflict with The Downs Act 1861
Cost to tax payer associated with legal challenge of unlawful planning permission
Conflict between applicant as developer and applicant's requirements under The Downs Act

A summary of the grounds of support is as follows:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

Scheme has been granted common land consent by the Secretary of State considering many
of the same issues which does not expire
Need for public toilets on The Downs has increased given increased use due to the COVID-19
Pandemic
Proposals will generate income for The Downs which will contribute to maintenance and
improvement
Nothing has changed since the original application so this application should also be granted
A café at this location in close proximity of the viewpoint will be a valued amenity
It is a long way from another café
Existing toilet block is an eyesore
The proposals are well designed and fit sensitively into the setting, enhancing the appearance
of the area
Increased public surveillance and activity in this area would be positive
If toilets are available to all, this will be a benefit to the area
Walkers and those exercising on The Downs will appreciate the facilities and opportunity for
refreshments
The café will take up a minuscule percentage of the enormous expanse of the open space and

Page 139

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

o
o
o
o

will not prevent any existing uses occurring
The café would make The Downs more hospitable and accessible during winter and bad
weather
There are cafes in many natural and beautiful areas which are usually welcomed by walkers
Buildings and the natural environment can coexist
The proposals are long overdue

ELECTED MEMEBERS & AMENITY GROUP RESPONSES
Councillor John Goulandris and Councillor Henry Michallat ward councillors for Stoke Bishop
commented on the application as follows:
"I write to object to this planning application in my capacity as ward member.
Whilst there is local support for refurbishment of the toilets, there is very little local support for the
proposed cafe. Context is important. The application site is within the Downs Conservation Area and
shares a boundary with the Sneyd Park Conservation Area. The land to be developed is currently
Downs land. The iconic Seawalls vista is nearby and likewise the Avon Gorge, a Special Area of
Conservation and a Site of Specialist Scientific Interest.
Since 2018 motions have been debated and passed at Full Council rejecting any development of
green space. This application sees the development of hitherto green space and hence falls foul of
the Council's clearly stated policy to preserve the City's green belt.
Near neighbours of the application site have objected and likewise the key local stakeholder group,
Sneyd Park Residents' Association.
It is my considered view that the potential harm on the visual amenity, local neighbourhood and
landscape are such that they do not meet the requirements of DM 26.
As other objectors have commented, the building is quite stark in design, not in keeping with
neighbouring listed properties and will inevitably be a magnet for vandalism, litter and anti-social
behaviour. There would no doubt be an increase in traffic and parking issues.
The existing toilets could be refurbished without any need for a cafe. The toilets could become 'pay for
use' type toilets with the cost of use set at a level sufficient to cover the ongoing maintenance/cleaning
charges. This would obviate the requirement for a commercial cafe to fund the toilets.
There is an existing cafe within reasonably close proximity (less than a mile), which is well
established. The financial viability of another cafe is a moot point and its failure would leave a large
empty building on the Downs.
In summary, the application with its loss of green space is contrary to the Council's policy as
articulated at Full Council, contrary to DM 26 and inappropriate so close to the iconic Sea Walls vista
and Avon Gorge.
I assume, given the amount of public interest in this application, that it will be sent to the DC
Committee for a decision, which will allow the public to make further representations."
Conservation Advisory Panel:
"The Panel had objected to the 2018 application but recognised that this had been granted consent.
The Panel was pleased that the viewing terrace has been omitted, but reiterates its view that it seems

Page 140

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

inevitable that secure, vandal resistant shutters would be required. These must be included in the
design as, if added as an afterthought, they would degrade the proposed building.
The relationship between the listed drinking fountain and its paving and the new terrace decking must
be reconsidered to avoid harm to the setting of the drinking fountain".
Campaign for Protection of Rural England, Avon & Bristol:
"While at first sight this application appears to represent a proposal for a cafe at a popular site in
Bristol, which would be welcomed by some, and a theoretical improvement to the problem of
vandalism of the toilets, we are concerned that on the contrary it would not resolve the latter problem
and would pose a threat to the environment , landscape and vistas from this green corner of the
Durdham Downs, which are so loved and cherished by local people and visitors alike for a variety of
reasons, including a wish to enjoy and preserve the quieter, less used areas of the Downs.
The proposed cafe with its increased built form and area of hardstanding would bring noise and
disturbance, light pollution and probable increased littering and trampling of the grassland area.
As such we conclude that the harm caused by this development would outweigh the benefits and we
therefore object to the application.
Although presented as a resubmission of a former application which was granted permission, we note
a number of amendments to the previous plans, added to which the importance of the preservation of
green spaces has become increasingly recognised nationally and locally in the past three years, not
least with Bristol's declaration of an ecological emergency, such that it needs to be treated as if a new
application.
It is hardly necessary to quote the text of all the various provisions of the Council's relevant
Development Management policies under the existing Local Plan because they are well known and
will be considered by the decision makers. However we consider that BCS9 on Green Infrastructure is
core to the proposal and that the section on Important Open Spaces in paragraph 2.17.2 of DM17 is
key.
This area of the Downs is not destined under the Local Plan for any form of development but is
designated Important Open Space. The text of DM17 states "Development on part, or all, of an
Important Open Space as designated on the Policies Map will not be permitted unless the
development is ancilliary to the open space use." We would contend that while the existing toilets are
indeed necessary and ancilliary, the provision of a commercial cafe is not. We note that the existing
cafes on the Downs on Stoke Rd near the water tower and at the Observatory are in converted
buildings and were not new builds.
We are also very concerned about the likely effect of the building's lighting after dusk on the view of
the night sky. Paragraph 2.33.7 of DM33 recognises the problem of light pollution. CPRE is well
known nationally for its campaigns to measure and mitigate the effects of lighting pollution on the
night sky. This quiet corner of the Downs provides views into the dark night sky across the river Avon
towards Leigh Woods. This is important not just for human enjoyment but also for wildlife and nature.
Government guidance on light pollution https://www.gov.uk/guidance/light-pollution also warns against
polluting night time light levels "Is the development in or near a protected area of dark sky or an
intrinsically dark landscape where new lighting would be conspicuously out of keeping with local
nocturnal light levels, making it desirable to minimise or avoid new lighting?"
A further issue is the question of whether the proposal meets the requirements for Biodiversity net
gain, not least because of the raft of environmental designations for the site itself and the adjacent

Page 141

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

land. We are concerned about the divergence between the figures in the applicant's biodiversity
calculations and those of the Bristol Tree Forum. We feel the questions raised by the latter should be
a matter for further investigation.
In conclusion we note the very high level of objections from the public to this application. Given the
popularity of "cafe culture" we feel that this indicates the high level of concern which local people have
for Bristol's green environment and their support for the designations and planning policies which aim
to preserve and enhance it."
Bristol Tree Forum:
We have now seen the applicant's Biodiversity Metric calculation and have recast our calculations
based on this using the Defra Small Sites Metric Beta Test (1.0) calculator (SSM 1.0).
The main differences are: 1. The proposed development is on (not 'within 500 metres of site
boundary') a priority site - Clifton & Durdham Downs SNCI. Because of this, the full Biodiversity Metric
3.0 calculator should have been used rather than SSM 1.0. 2. Our estimate of the size of the
development site is 45 square metres larger than the applicant's. 3. The post-development area of the
Urban - Developed land; sealed surface habitat is 435 square metres (58% of the site) as opposed to
the applicant's 278 square metres (39.4% of their estimate of the site area). 4. The calculation omits
the 10 square metres of the green roof shown on drawing 21_06762_F
PROPOSED_PLAN_AND_ROOF_PLAN-3111113. We have added it as an Urban - Extensive Green
Roof habitat which has biodiversity value of 0.0041 habitat units. 5. The applicant's calculation shows
a biodiversity net gain of 23.55%. Ours shows a net loss of 6.62% (the SSM 1.0 calculation reports 6.60% which, we presume, is a rounding issue).
This is a small site, so a difference of 45 square metres between our respective calculations of the
site development area will be significant when calculating biodiversity net gain. It is also clear from the
drawings provided, that the post-development built surfaces - the building, the decking, the tarmac
and the access path(s) - take up more than 39% of the site (we say it is nearly 60%). Accurate
measurements of both the development site and the post-development built areas need to be
provided.
OFFICER RESPONSES TO PUBLIC CONSULTATION
A number of comments refer to the Clifton and Durdham Downs (Bristol) Act 1861. It is highlighted
that this is non-planning legislation and is not a material consideration in the determination of a
planning application. The grant of planning permission would not override any other legislative
process and legal approval under other legislative frameworks will be required irrespective of the
outcome of this planning application. The determination of an application for planning permission
holds no power over any other legislative process.
All other comments are acknowledged and are accounted for in the assessment beneath.
INTERNAL & EXTERNAL CONSULTEES
Avon Gardens Trust:
Thank you for consulting The Gardens Trust [GT] in its role as Statutory Consultee with regard to the
proposed development affecting The Downs Conservation Area, The new, mainly glass, single storey
building will be set within The Downs, a designated site of nature conservation [SNCI] and it will be
adjacent to a listed heritage asset, the drinking fountain donated by William Hind in 1883. The Avon
Gorge is immediately to the south and west of the site and is designated [SSSI].

Page 142

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

The Avon Gardens Trust is a member organisation of the GT and works in partnership with it in
respect of the protection and conservation of registered sites, and is authorised by the GT to respond
on GT's behalf in respect of such consultations.
Avon Gardens Trust have considered the information that you have provided and on the basis of this,
and the fact that planning permission for the 2018 proposal expires in March 2022, AGT have no
objection to the scheme, 21/06762/F.
Historic England:
On the basis of the information available to date, we do not wish to offer any comments. We suggest
that you seek the views of your specialist conservation and archaeological advisers, as relevant.
City Design Group, Bristol City Council:
Previously concerns were raised relating to the inclusion of the proposed roof terrace and the
increased massing this caused. Following its removal, the proposals are supported subject to
conditions.
Transport Development Management, Bristol City Council:
Transport Development Management (TDM) has not objections on highway safety grounds subject to
the applicant addressing the issues listed below.
It is unclear from the plans submitted whether the applicant proposes to resurface the footpath. Given
its age, it is recommended that this be carried out. In order for the bins to be moved onto the
carriageway a dropped kerb must be provided.
Pedestrians approaching from the south may be tempted to walk over the grass, causing it to
deteriorate and form a trip hazard. To avoid this an additional footpath should be created as indicated
in the image below. This would help improve permeability with the new building.
Any private external lighting will require a lighting assessment in line with the Guidance Note 1 for the
reduction of obtrusive light 2020.
A number of objections have been made on the grounds that the café will create more demand for
parking. Given the restrictions already in place TDM considers that this can be appropriately
managed. Whilst one objection cites concerns that the existing restrictions are not being enforced, this
is not a planning matter and therefore cannot be considered as material evidence. However, the
Council's Parking Services Team has been notified. In respect of cycle storage a number of Sheffield
Stands already exist by the curved sea walls which can be used by any visitors to the site. The
applicant proposes that staff can utilise the external store, where refuse will be stored. Policy DM32:
Recycling and Refuse Provision in New Development of the Bristol Local Plan - Site Allocations and
Development Management Policies - Adopted July 2014 sets out that recycling and refuse storage
should be separate from cycle storage. As a result this must be reconsidered. Fully enclosed, secure,
well illuminated storage should be provided for at least one cycle for staff use.
The applicant proposes to provide an internal bin store that will be able to accommodate three 360ltr
and one 1,100ltr bins. This is acceptable. A Waste Management Plan has been submitted which
indicates that the bins will be collected by a private waste contractor who will transport the bins to and
from the bin store. As there are no loading restrictions delivery vehicles can park for short lengths of
time on the double yellow lines whilst offloading or collecting the bins.
Due to the location of the site and the impact on the adopted highway during demolition/construction a

Page 143

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Construction Management Plan is required, which can be secured by condition.
TDM has no objections to the proposals which are considered acceptable on highway safety grounds
providing:
o

The footway up to the new building is resurfaced.

o

A dropped kerb is provided to enable the bins to be easily manoeuvred onto/off the
carriageway by bin crews.

o

An additional footpath is considered to improve connectivity with the site.

o

Separate staff cycle storage to the bin store is provided.

Environmental Protection, Pollution Control, Bristol City Council:
This application looks pretty much the same as the previous, 18/04727/F, one. My comments are
therefore the same as follows:
1. Details of Extraction/Ventilation System No equipment for the extraction and dispersal of cooking
smells/fumes shall be installed until details including method of construction, any odour control
measures, noise levels have been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved scheme shall be installed before the installation of any such equipment and
thereafter shall be permanently retained.
2. Noise from plant & equipment affecting residential The rating level of any noise generated by plant
& equipment as part of the development shall be at least 5 dB below the background level at any time
at residential premises. Any assessments to be carried out and be in accordance with BS4142:
2014+2019 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound
3. Use of Refuse and Recycling facilities Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables
and the tipping of empty bottles into external receptacles shall only take place between 08.00 and
19.00 Monday to Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
4. Opening hours As per the application I would ask that these be restricted to Monday to Saturday
08.00 to 19.00 and 10.00 to 16.00 on Sundays.
Arboricultural Officer, Bristol City Council:
No major concerns regarding impact to trees. The boundary wall is likely to prevent the majority of the
roots from entering the construction zone. Light pruning works have been specified to avoid damage
to the branching during construction - this is reasonable management. The trees do not require
protective fencing during construction as the boundary wall will create a sturdy shield. A condition is
recommended to ensure works are carried out in accordance with all recommendations within the
supplied arboricultural report.
Nature Conservation Officer, Bristol City Council:
This proposal is located close to but outside the Avon Gorge Woodlands Special Area of
Conservation (SAC). I consider that the proposed relatively small scale demolition and construction
works will not cause a likely significant effect on the interest features of the SAC. As such, a Habitats
Regulations Assessment (HRA) under The Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017
(as amended) is not required in this instance.

Page 144

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

This proposal directly impacts upon part of a designated Site of Nature Conservation Interest (SNCI),
Clifton and Durdham Downs. However, with best practice construction methods incorporating
pollution prevention methods, including the minimisation of dust pollution, significant ecological
impacts are not anticipated. This can adequately be controlled by means of conditions attached to any
consent.
Natural England:
As submitted, the application could have potential significant effects on the Avon Gorge Woodlands
SAC and the North Somerset and Mendip Bats SAC. Natural England requires further information in
order to determine the significance of these impacts and the scope for mitigation. The following
information is required:
Mitigation for potential recreational impacts to Avon Gorge Woodlands SAC
Details of proposed lighting including modelling of predicted light spill
Despite the proximity of the application to European Sites, the consultation documents provided do
not include information to demonstrate that the requirements of regulation 63 of the Conservation of
Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) have been considered by your authority, i.e.
the consultation does not include a Habitats Regulations Assessment.
It is Natural England's advice that the proposal is not directly connected with or necessary for the
management of the European site. Your authority should therefore determine whether the proposal is
likely to have a significant effect on any European site, proceeding to the Appropriate Assessment
stage where significant effects cannot be ruled out. Natural England must be consulted on any
appropriate assessment your authority may decide to make.
Natural England advises that there is currently not enough information provided in the application to
determine whether the likelihood of significant effects can be ruled out.
Flood Risk Officer, Bristol City Council:
No objection subject to a drainage condition. Drainage proposals should follow guidance within the
document titled "Bristol City Council Sustainable Drainage Standing Advice".
Crime Prevention Design Advisor, Avon & Somerset Constabulary:
I have viewed the planning application and have the following comments. We welcome the use of
CCTV to provide formal surveillance and would advise that this is monitored by an approved alarm
receiving centre (ARC). The system should be capable of providing 'identification' quality images as
defined in the Home Office document 28/09. We would also welcome the same planning conditions
(shown below) that were placed on the former application 18/04727/F.
Wessex Water:
Wessex Water has no objections to this application providing items shown in red are resolved prior to
determination of the application. Specifically, detail is required relating to the proposed foundation
design due to proximity to a 3400mm tunnel sewer at 10m below ground level. The drainage strategy
is acceptable to Wessex Water.

Page 145

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Network Rail:
Network Rail has no objection in principle to the above proposal but due to the proposal being next to
Network Rail land and our infrastructure and to ensure that no part of the development adversely
impacts the safety, operation and integrity of the operational railway we have included asset
protection comments which the applicant is strongly recommended to action should the proposal be
granted planning permission. The local authority should include these requirements as planning
conditions if these matters have not been addressed in the supporting documentation submitted with
this application.

RELEVANT POLICIES
National Planning Policy Framework – July 2021
Bristol Local Plan comprising Core Strategy (Adopted June 2011), Site Allocations and Development
Management Policies (Adopted July 2014) and (as appropriate) the Bristol Central Area Plan
(Adopted March 2015) and (as appropriate) the Old Market Quarter Neighbourhood Development
Plan 2016 and Lawrence Weston Neighbourhood Development Plan 2017 and the Hengrove and
Whitchurch Park Neighbourhood Development Plan 2019.
Planning (Listed Buildings & Conservation Areas) Act 1990
PAN 2
Conservation Area Enhancement Statements (November 1993)
In determining this application, the Local Planning Authority has had regard to all relevant policies of
the Bristol Local Plan and relevant guidance.
ASSESSMENT
DEVELOPMENT OF OPEN SPACE
Paragraph 92 of Part 8 (Promoting healthy and safe communities) of the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) states:
Planning policies and decisions should aim to achieve healthy, inclusive and safe places which:
a) promote social interaction, including opportunities for meetings between people who might not
otherwise come into contact with each other - for example through mixed-use developments, strong
neighbourhood centres, street layouts that allow for easy pedestrian and cycle connections within and
between neighbourhoods, and active street frontages;
b) are safe and accessible, so that crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not undermine the
quality of life or community cohesion - for example through the use of attractive, well-designed, clear
and legible pedestrian and cycle routes, and high quality public space, which encourage the active
and continual use of public areas; and
c) enable and support healthy lifestyles, especially where this would address identified local health
and well-being needs - for example through the provision of safe and accessible green infrastructure,
sports facilities, local shops, access to healthier food, allotments and layouts that encourage walking
and cycling.
To provide the social, recreational and cultural facilities and services the community needs, planning
policies and decisions should:
a) plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities (such as local
shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses and places of

Page 146

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities and residential
environments;
b) take into account and support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, social and cultural
well-being for all sections of the community;
c) guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly where this would
reduce the community's ability to meet its day-to-day needs;
d) ensure that established shops, facilities and services are able to develop and modernise, and are
retained for the benefit of the community; and
e) ensure an integrated approach to considering the location of housing, economic uses and
community facilities and services.
Specifically in relation to 'Open space and recreation', paragraph 98 of the NPPF states:
Access to a network of high quality open spaces and opportunities for sport and physical activity is
important for the health and well-being of communities, and can deliver wider benefits for nature and
support efforts to address climate change. Planning policies should be based on robust and up-todate assessments of the need for open space, sport and recreation facilities (including quantitative or
qualitative deficits or surpluses) and opportunities for new provision. Information gained from the
assessments should be used to determine what open space, sport and recreational provision is
needed, which plans should then seek to accommodate.
Existing open space, sports and recreational buildings and land, including playing fields, should not be
built on unless:
a) an assessment has been undertaken which has clearly shown the open space, buildings or land to
be surplus to requirements; or
b) the loss resulting from the proposed development would be replaced by equivalent or better
provision in terms of quantity and quality in a suitable location; or
c) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of which clearly
outweigh the loss of the current or former use.
The local policy in relation to open space can be found at Policy BCS9 of the Bristol Core Strategy
which states: "Open spaces which are important for recreation, leisure and community use,
townscape and landscape quality and visual amenity will be protected.
Some areas of open space may be released, through the development plan process, for appropriate
development where:
o

They are no longer important for recreation, leisure and community use, townscape and
landscape quality and visual amenity;

o

Development of all or part of an open space would result in improved urban form or an
enhancement to existing open space areas.

The supporting text for the policy proceeds to expand on the above by stating: "Whilst the Core
Strategy aims to retain the vast majority of green open space within the city, not all such land is
important for recreation, leisure and community use, townscape and landscape quality and visual
amenity. Existing open spaces may also offer opportunities to contribute to the delivery of necessary

Page 147

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

development, improvements to urban form or enhancements to existing open space areas. In
determining whether open space should be released community involvement will be central to
decision making. Account will also be taken of open space standards, levels of provision in the locality
and the importance of the open space for recreation, leisure and community use, its contribution to
townscape and landscape quality and its visual amenity".
Policy DM17 of the Site Allocations and Development Management Policies Local Plan (SADMP)
provides more detailed advice regarding development involving existing green infrastructure assets.
This policy confirms the designation of The Downs as "Important Open Space".
In relation to Important Open Space, Policy DM17 states "Development on part, or all, of an Important
Open Space as designated on the Policies Map will not be permitted unless the development is
ancillary to the open space use". Essentially this prohibits all by very limited types of development
upon such land.
In this case, the proposed development involves demolition of the existing toilet block and
construction of a replacement building in place. Whilst the existing toilet block has a footprint of 42m2
plus 9m2 access ramp, the proposed building would have a footprint of 75m2 plus 100m2 decking. As
such, it is recognised that the proposals involve development of land beyond the parameters of
existing building. This land is designated Important Open Space by local planning policy.
Paragraph 98 of the NPPF indicates existing open space, sports and recreational land should not be
built on unless one of the criteria stated within the policy is met. These are a limited set of
circumstances which will vary case by case.
In this case, in relation to criteria a) it is noted that the open space concerned is not deemed to be
surplus to requirements, and in relation to criteria b) no replacement of open space is proposed in this
instance. As such, the development does not qualify with either of these criteria. In relation to criteria
c) the proposed development comprises construction of a replacement building for use as a café,
public toilets and for educational purposes. The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that all three of
these uses can be attributed to sports and recreational provision and would encourage and support
the use of the open space for its designated sports and recreational role. As a result, the proposals
are found to accord with paragraph 98 of the NPPF and be compatible with national policy in relation
to development of open space.
In relation to Core Strategy Policy BCS9, it is recognised that The Downs are highly important to the
City of Bristol for recreation, leisure and community use, townscape and landscape quality and visual
amenity. Therefore any development on the Important Open Space is only acceptable where the
development has demonstrated either delivering an improved urban form or an enhancement of the
open space area. The development must also be ancillary to the open space use as outlined in Policy
DM17.
As highlighted above, all three proposed uses are found to support, and would be linked to the
established use of the open space for sports and recreational purposes. The proposed toilets would
replace the existing public toilets, offering modernisation of the existing facilities which date from the
1950s and have not been well maintained. The provision of public toilets on The Downs is of
paramount importance to facilitate equal use and access to the open space by all sections of society.
The presence of publicly accessible toilets will enable prolonged use of the open space for its various
sports and recreational purposes by all sections of the community. As facilities essential to use of the
open space, the proposed public toilets would achieve an ancillary relationship to the open space.
The proposed café will serve and support visitors to The Downs by provision of hot/cold drinks and a
range of food which (subject to proper management) would encourage, extend and enhance public
use of the open space. It is common for parks, open spaces or natural environments to include some

Page 148

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

form of provision for sale of food and drink. These are generally accepted to cater to and enhance the
experiences of visitors to the destination. The café would be sited at least 1.2km from the existing
café adjacent to the water tower, with no similar existing facilities available in this part of the open
space. This is found to be sufficient distance that the proposals are not replicating existing facilities
currently available in the immediate area. Whilst it is accepted that a café is less essential than public
toilets to the function of the open space, it is nonetheless found that provision of food and drink would
support public enjoyment of the public open space. Furthermore, the proposed café would provide
maintenance and cleaning of the toilets as well as contribute the ongoing viability of this. This is a
further association between the café and public use of the open space.
The educational booth is proposed for use by the Avon Gorge and The Downs Wildlife Project. This is
an organisation set up to protect the wildlife interest of the Avon Gorge and Downs and raise
awareness and understanding about the importance of the area for people and wildlife. This use
would promote access to the open space as well as sharing understanding and knowledge of
important characteristics of the area and therefore contribute to supporting the preservation and
function of the area for open space use. As such, this use would also support the primary activities
and role of the area as public open space.
The impact of the building upon the character of the area will be discussed in greater detail beneath,
however the proposed scale, form and design are not found to harm important characteristics of the
area as open space. Consequently the development would not prejudice user experience of the open
space by means of its position, scale, form or general design. Overall, the proposed uses are found to
be suitably ancillary to the use of The Downs as Important Open Space and would avoid prejudicing
this function. The development is therefore in accordance with the requirements of national and local
planning policy and is acceptable in this regard.
The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that all three of the proposed uses would be linked to the
established use of the open space for sports and recreational purposes. The proposals would
therefore enhance user experience of and access to The Downs. The development is for sports and
recreational provision and it is accepted that the benefits associated with improved user experience of
and access to The Downs would outweigh the loss of a small degree of land adjacent to the existing
toilet block.
It is highlighted that these conclusions remain aligned with the decision made by Bristol City Council
Development Control Committee B in March 2019 when deciding the previous application for what
was in essence the same development. Since March 2019, national and local planning policy in
relation to development of open space has not materially changed. The permission granted in March
2019 expired only a number of weeks prior to determination of the current application. Given that this
planning permission for a similar development could have been implemented until a few weeks ago
and policy has not materially changed since the permission was granted, this permission is a material
consideration in decision making in respect of the current application.
Furthermore, it is noted that since a decision on the previous application, common land consent has
been granted for the development by an Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for
Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (application reference: COM/3246988). Whilst this is not a
planning decision made in accordance with planning policy, the issues considered by the Inspector
share similarities to those being considered by this planning application. It is noted that the Inspector
reached similar conclusions following assessment. Their decision states:
"The replacement toilets, café and education booth would improve facilities and services and
contribute to supporting the function of the area for open space use as a place of public resort for the
citizens and inhabitants of Bristol and would be consistent with the Management Plan aims."
Overall, the Local Planning Authority finds that the proposed development of a small degree of

Page 149

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Important Open Space would be acceptable given that the proposals would enhance access and user
experience of The Downs. The development is therefore ancillary and beneficial to the designation as
Important Open Space and the value of the open space would be preserved. This aligns with the
findings reached in relation to the previous application which has recently expired but is afforded
some weight in decision making. The development accords with relevant national and local planning
policy in relation to open space and is acceptable in this regard.
APPEARANCE, CHRACTER & HERITAGE ASSETS
The Authority is required (under Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990) to pay special attention to the desirability of preserving or enhancing
the character or appearance of the conservation area as well as the setting and significance of Listed
buildings or structures. The case of R (Forge Field Society) v Sevenoaks DC [2014] EWHC 1895
(Admin) ("Forge Field") has made it clear where there is harm to a listed building or a conservation
area the decision maker ''must give that harm considerable importance and weight".
Section 12 of the NPPF (Achieving well-designed places) states that the creation of high quality,
beautiful and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities.
Section 12 outlines that planning policies and decisions should ensure that developments:
will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over the
lifetime of the development;
are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate and effective
landscaping;
are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built environment and
landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging appropriate innovation or change (such as
increased densities);
establish or maintain a strong sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building types
and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to live, work and visit;
optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate amount and mix of
development (including green and other public space) and support local facilities and transport
networks; and
create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a
high standard of amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of
crime, do not undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.
Paragraph 134 of the NPPF states that: "Development that is not well designed should be refused,
especially where it fails to reflect local design policies and government guidance on design, taking into
account any local design guidance and supplementary planning documents such as design guides
and codes."
Section 16 (Conserving and enhancing the historic environment) paragraph 199 of the NPPF requires
that: "When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a designated
heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation (and the more important the
asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to
substantial harm, total loss or less than substantial harm to its significance."

Page 150

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Paragraph 202 of the NPPF requires that: "Where a development proposal will lead to less than
substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed
against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable
use."
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Core Strategy advocates that new development should
deliver high quality urban design that contributes positively to an area's character and identity, whilst
safeguarding the amenity of existing development.
Policy BCS22 (Conservation and the Historic Environment) of the Core Strategy states that new
development will safeguard or enhance heritage assets and the character and setting of areas of
acknowledged importance including:
o
o
o
o
o

Scheduled ancient monuments;
Historic buildings both nationally and locally listed;
Historic parks and gardens both nationally and locally listed;
Conservation areas;
Archaeological remains

Policy DM26 (Local Character & Distinctiveness) of the Site Allocations & Development Management
Policies (SADMP) Local Plan outlines that all development is expected to contribute positively to an
area's character and identity. The policy builds on policy BCS21 (above) by stipulating the
characteristics which development should seek to respond to. General principles include:
i.

Responding appropriately to and incorporating existing land forms, green infrastructure assets
and historic assets and features; and

i.

Respecting, building upon or restoring the local pattern and grain of development, including
the historical development of the area; and

ii.

Responding appropriately to local patterns of movement and the scale, character and function
of streets and public spaces; and

iii.

Retaining, enhancing and creating important views into, out of and through the site; and

iv.

Making appropriate use of landmarks and focal features, and preserving or enhancing the
setting of existing landmarks and focal features; and

v.

Responding appropriately to the height, scale, massing, shape, form and proportion of existing
buildings, building lines and set-backs from the street, skylines and roofscapes; and

vi.

Reflecting locally characteristic architectural styles, rhythms, patterns, features and themes
taking account of their scale and proportion; and

vii.

Reflecting the predominant materials, colours, textures, landscape treatments and boundary
treatments in the area.

The policy states that "development will not be permitted where it would be harmful to local character
and distinctiveness or where it would fail to take the opportunities available to improve the character
and quality of the area and the way it functions."
Policy DM27 (Layout and Form) of the SADMP outlines that the layout, form, pattern and arrangement
of streets, open spaces, development blocks, buildings and landscapes should contribute to the
creation of quality urban design and healthy, safe and sustainable places. It should make efficient use

Page 151

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

of land, provide inclusive access and take account of local climatic conditions.
Policy DM29 (Design of New Buildings) of the SADMP states the design of new buildings should be of
high quality. Proposals for new buildings will be expected to:
i.

Be clearly organised in terms of their form and internal layout and circulation to reflect the
hierarchy of function they will accommodate, the uses they will serve and the context they will
address; and

ii.

Incorporate active frontages and clearly defined main entrances facing the public realm that
emphasise corners and reinforce the most prominent frontages; and

iii.

Respond to the solar orientation of the building to support energy efficient design while
ensuring as far as possible that active rooms face the public realm; and

iv.

Provide appropriate natural surveillance of all external spaces; and

v.

Ensure that existing and proposed development achieves appropriate levels of privacy,
outlook and daylight; and

vi.

Allow for future adaptation or extension to accommodate alternative uses or to respond to the
changing future needs or circumstances of occupiers by means of their internal arrangement,
internal height, detailed design and construction; and

vii.

Provide appropriately for inclusive access and circulation; and

viii.

Incorporate opportunities for green infrastructure such as green roofs, green walls and green
decks that may be accessed and used where appropriate; and

ix.

Incorporate exteriors and elevations that provide visual interest from a range of viewing
distances and are visually organised and well-proportioned; and

x.

Incorporate high quality detail of an appropriate scale and proportion, arranged in a coherent
way that contributes positively to the overall design approach of the building; and

xi.

Employ high quality, durable and sustainable materials of an appropriate texture, colour,
pattern and appearance that contribute positively to the character of the area.

Policy DM31 (Heritage Assets) of the SADMP outlines that where development has an impact upon a
heritage asset, it will be expected to conserve and, where appropriate, enhance the asset or its
setting.
The site is located within The Downs Conservation Area and is also within the setting of Towerhirst
and an adjacent drinking fountain which are both Grade II Listed structures for their historic
significance. The Downs are also designated a Historic Park and Garden of local significance which
represents a heritage asset under Policies BCS22 and DM31.
The important characteristics of the area which have warranted designation as a conservation area
are described within The Downs Conservation Area Enhancement Statement. This document states:
"The Conservation Area is dominated by the Downs, an expansive plateau of open parkland, defined
by the Avon Gorge and Westbury Road to the west and east with the slopes of Clifton and Stoke
Bishop to the south and north. This was bought up mainly by the Wills family and laid out for the
people of Bristol in the Victorian period. It is now maintained by the City of Bristol. It divides into six
distinct areas. The second, the main plateau is short grass land with some low shrubs edged along

Page 152

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

principal roads by avenue trees. This generous open area is enclosed by substantial buildings
predominantly villas and institutional buildings dating from the Victorian and Edwardian period".
General enhancement objectives for the conservation area are stated to include:
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

A traffic management scheme
A study into restrictions on use of main roads at certain times
The effects of Park & Ride
Resisting loss of gardens for car parking where visible from The Downs
Resist conversion of large dwellings to flats where excessive car parking will result
Audit of significant street furniture of historic interest
Landscape management scheme required to ensure maintenance of open space
Groups of significant buildings will require strengthening in terms of character created by
traditional materials and original features

The existing public toilets building and surrounding area are not specifically referenced within the
Enhancement Statement. However the general characteristics of the wider area, the expansive
plateau of open parkland comprising short grass land with some low shrubs edged along principal
roads by avenue trees, apply to the site. The existing building is relatively non-descript but does utilise
stone cladding which is reflective of buildings within the local area. It is positioned sensitively, roughly
equidistant between the Sea Walls viewing point and the grand dwelling of Towerhirst. This area is at
the far north western corner of the open space, before the transition to the residential area of Sneyd
Park. A row of low trees line the clifftop to the west of the site. The trees screen the existing toilet
block in views from the west, including the Avon Gorge and Leigh Woods beyond. The flat roof form of
the existing building with a maximum height of approximately 3m provides a relatively low profile to
the structure. In longer views across the open space, the building does not appear prominently given
the backdrop created by the taller adjacent treeline. Whilst neutral and effective, the existing building
would not however warrant retention or protection.
The assessment relating to the impact of the proposed building to the appearance and character of
the area and to designated heritage assets remains the same as with the previous application. There
have been some changes to the proportions and layout of the building since the previous application.
These are not significant however and do not change the essence of the design proposed. The impact
to the appearance and character of the area and to designated heritage assets is found to be
comparable to the previous application. National and local planning policy in respect of appearance,
character, design and heritage assets has also not been significantly amended since the previous
application. Given the similarities, the recently lapsed planning permission and the conclusions drawn
are a material consideration in the determination of the current application.
The proposed building would be built in a similar position to the existing toilet block. It is recognised
the proposed building would be larger than the existing building in terms of width, depth and overall
footprint. The existing toilet block has a footprint of 42m2 plus 7m2 access ramp and the proposed
building would be 75m2 plus 100m2 decking. As such, the proposed building would be substantially
larger and result in the development of land adjacent to the existing toilet block. This increase would
largely be to the south of the existing building. The building would have a similar rectilinear footprint,
shape and profile created by proposed flat roof form. The total height of the proposed building would
be approximately 20cm taller than the existing toilet block.
In terms of proposed siting, the location of the proposed building on the site of the existing toilet block
is supported. This will minimise the development of open space adjacent to existing structure and limit
the visual impact. Furthermore, the position is roughly equidistant between the Sea Walls viewing
point and Towerhirst, reducing the impact to both, as well as providing sufficient separation to avoid
impact views of the Listed drinking fountain. Similar to the existing toilet block, the position would also
benefit from the screening and backdrop provided by the clifftop trees to the west. This would further

Page 153

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

limit the impact of the building upon the openness of the area in longer views. As such, the proposed
siting is found to be acceptable.
With regards to the proposed scale, it is recognised that this would be significantly larger than the
existing building. This would predominantly be to the south however, away from Towerhirst and
therefore limiting the impact upon the setting of this adjacent Listed building. The increase in height
proposed would be very minor (0.2m) which would work to limit perception of the increased scale. The
majority of the additional mass would be positioned to the south and would benefit from the screening
provided to the rear by the clifftop trees.
In relation to the detailed form and design, the building would utilise a free standing steel frame,
comprising ten steel columns spaced equally within the eastern and western elevations supporting a
flat roof structure. Except for the proposed centrally positioned toilet block, the walls would be glazed.
Whilst it is noted that glazed will not appear completely transparent in all settings and conditions, this
will provide the building a light weight appearance and minimal structural form. This would help to
offset the increased scale of the building in comparison to the existing building. The structural steel
columns will measure 15cm in width and the roof slab will measure 30cm in depth. The equal spacing
of the structural columns will provide a coherent elevational layout. The minimal scale of these solid
features is found to contribute to an overall elegant built form. The roof of the building would include
an upper surface which would be planted with species native to the adjacent Avon Gorge. This would
not be highly visible from ground level however would offset some of the impact of development of
green land. The design includes solar PV panels located to the northern end to meet sustainability
objectives. These will be mounted near flat to ensure the low profile and elegant flat roof form is
retained.
The proposed toilet block would be located off centre to the northern side. This would be finished with
timber cladding. Whilst timber is not a commonplace cladding material utilised on adjacent buildings, it
would provide a natural appearance which would not be at odds with the park land setting. A detailed
specification for the cladding would be secured by condition prior to its installation to ensure the
layout, detail and finish is of a high quality. A glazed infill section is proposed to the upper part of the
toilet block, providing natural light as well as an important visual separation between the structure and
the roof. This acts to emphasise the freestanding nature of the structure.
It is recognised that the design of the building does not seek to mimic the Victorian architecture found
locally. A more traditional architectural approach would likely result in a building of greater bulk and
mass by incorporation of pitched roof forms, greater extent of solid forms and resultantly greater
landscape impact. No objection is held to this approach given the design is found to be coherent and
of a high quality modern approach. The proposed design is reflective of the differing function and role
of the building in relation to the public realm in comparison to adjacent buildings.
Details of proposed materials including the detailed finish of proposed steel work, glazing
manifestations, timber cladding, woven steel mesh bin enclosure and rain water goods will be secured
be condition to ensure these are of high quality.
Taking account of the preceding assessment, the proposed development is found to result in a
negligible impact to the setting and historic significance of Towerhirst. The proposals would result in a
very low degree of harm to the status of The Downs as a Local Historic Park and Garden. The
proposed development would minimise conflict with important characteristics of The Downs
Conservation Area and would result in a low degree of harm to the conservation area. The proposals
involve restoration of the adjacent Listed drinking fountain to working state as well as improved
surfacing (individual paving stones) surrounding the fountain which will highlight this feature of historic
significance within the public realm. Whilst the siting of the building itself does pose a degree of harm
to the setting of the drinking fountain, this is a low degree which would be offset by the enhancement
proposed through restoration and more appropriate traditional hard landscaping. This would balance

Page 154

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

the harm posed by the siting of the building. Further public benefits associated with the proposed
development lie within the upgrade of public toilets, community benefit relating to educational use, a
minimum of 3 full time jobs and more broad economic benefits both relating to construction of the
building as well as the local economy resulting from the cafes trade. The Downs Committee as
applicants may benefit financially which would contribute towards maintenance and enhancements to
the wider open space.
Officers have undertaken the assessment required under the Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 as well as that required by Section 16 of the
NPPF and have given special regard to the requirement to preserve the setting and significance of
heritage assets. There is a low degree of less than substantial harm caused as a result of the
proposals, this has been given considerable importance and weight. However, overall, the
development would preserve and in some cases enhance the status and significance of adjacent
heritage assets. Sufficient public benefits are attributed to the proposed development which would
outweigh the low level of less than substantial harm identified.
This conclusion is largely the same as reached with the previous application which is attributed weight
in decision making given the recent nature and similarities in terms of the development and relevant
legislation and policy. The conclusion also aligns with that of the Inspector appointed by the Secretary
of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs who considered the application for common land
consent (application reference: COM/3246988). In considering conservation of the landscape and
features of historic interest, the Inspector found:
"The building would be larger but that it is not to say it would have a greater impact or be more
intrusive. Situated on the site of the existing toilets at the edge of the common, the building would not
be in a prominent position. It would stand alone and would not interfere with the setting and views of
the Gorge and Clifton Suspension Bridge."
"Constructed of glass and timber the new building would have a lightweight and airy feel. It would be
larger, but the contemporary design is understated and would appear transparent in part. It would be
a discrete coherent development designed to meet specific needs and would not appear as piecemeal
development."
"The present toilet block does nothing to enhance the setting of Towerhirst and a drinking fountain,
both Grade II Listed structures. The proposed new building would be sufficiently distanced from them
to ensure that their setting would not be harmed, and the removal of the existing building would be an
enhancement. The drinking fountain would be restored to working with new paving around it as part of
the scheme."
"I conclude that the replacement building would result in a visual enhancement to the landscape and
restoration of the listed fountain would be an enhancement of a feature of historic interest."
Whilst this is not a planning decision made in accordance with planning policy, the issues considered
by the Inspector share similarities to those being considered by this planning application. The
conclusions of the Inspector in relation to these issues align with and support the assessment of the
Local Planning Authority relating to the previous application and can be applied to the current
application also. The design of the proposed building is found to accord with the objectives of all
relevant national legislation, national and local planning policy. As a result the development is deemed
acceptable in terms of appearance, character, design and heritage subject to safeguarding conditions
which will be set out beneath.
ECOLOGY & BIODIVERSITY
Section 15 of the NPPF (Conserving and enhancing the natural environment) outlines that planning

Page 155

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

policies and decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by:
a) protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, sites of biodiversity or geological value and soils (in a
manner commensurate with their statutory status or identified quality in the development plan);
b) recognising the intrinsic character and beauty of the countryside, and the wider benefits from
natural capital and ecosystem services - including the economic and other benefits of the best and
most versatile agricultural land, and of trees and woodland;
c) maintaining the character of the undeveloped coast, while improving public access to it where
appropriate;
d) minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent
ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures;
e) preventing new and existing development from contributing to, being put at unacceptable risk from,
or being adversely affected by, unacceptable levels of soil, air, water or noise pollution or land
instability. Development should, wherever possible, help to improve local environmental conditions
such as air and water quality, taking into account relevant information such as river basin
management plans; and
f) remediating and mitigating despoiled, degraded, derelict, contaminated and unstable land, where
appropriate.
Policy BCS9 of the Core Strategy states: "The integrity and connectivity of the strategic green
infrastructure network will be maintained, protected and enhanced. Opportunities to extend the
coverage and connectivity of the existing strategic green infrastructure network should be taken.
Individual green assets should be retained wherever possible and integrated into new development.
Loss of green infrastructure will only be acceptable where it is allowed for as part of an adopted
Development Plan Document or is necessary, on balance, to achieve the policy aims of the Core
Strategy. Appropriate mitigation of the lost green infrastructure assets will be required.
Development should incorporate new and/or enhanced green infrastructure of an appropriate type,
standard and size. Where on-site provision of green infrastructure is not possible, contributions will be
sought to make appropriate provision for green infrastructure off site".
In relation to Biological Conservation the policy states: "Internationally important nature conservation
sites are subject to statutory protection.
National and local sites of biological and geological conservation importance will be protected having
regard to the hierarchy of designations and the potential for appropriate mitigation. The extent to
which a development would contribute to the achievement of wider objectives of the Core Strategy will
be carefully considered when assessing their impact on biological and geological conservation.
Where development would have an impact on the Bristol Wildlife Network it should ensure that the
integrity of the network is maintained or strengthened".
Policy DM19 of the SADMP states: "Development which would be likely to have any impact upon
habitat, species or features, which contribute to nature conservation in Bristol will be expected to:
i.
ii.

Be informed by an appropriate survey and assessment of impacts; and
Be designed and sited, in so far as practicably and viably possible, to avoid any harm to

Page 156

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

identified habitats, species and features of importance; and
iii.

Take opportunities to connect any identified on-site habitats, species or features to nearby
corridors in the Wildlife Network.

Where loss of nature conservation value would arise development will be expected to provide
mitigation on-site and where this is not possible provide mitigation off-site.
Development on or adjacent to sites of nature conservation value will be expected to enhance the
site's nature conservation value through the design and placement of any green infrastructure
provided".
In relation to Sites of Nature Conservation Importance (SNCI), the policy states: "Development which
would have a harmful impact on the nature conservation value of a Site of Nature Conservation
Interest will not be permitted".
The site and the wider open space form part of The Downs Site of Nature Conservation Importance.
The Avon Gorge which is situated 3-4m west of the site is designated a Site of Special Scientific
Interest (SSSI) as well as Special Area of Conservation (SAC).
A Preliminary Ecological Appraisal has been prepared and submitted accompanying the application.
This identifies relevant ecological issues and considers the potential impact of development to
relevant features.
The Local Planning Authority has consulted both Natural England and the Council's Ecologist in
relation to the application. Natural England has highlighted that the development could have potential
significant effects on the Avon Gorge Woodlands SAC and the North Somerset and Mendip Bats
SAC. Specifically, the potential for impact to the Avon Gorge Woodlands SAC is identified to result
from recreational impacts stated to include littering and erosion. The potential for impact to the North
Somerset and Mendip Bats SAC is as a result of light spill from the development disturbing bats. The
site is within Band C of the consultation zone indicates the potential importance of habitats in this area
to horseshoe bats associated with the SAC.
The Council's Ecologist has also been consulted in relation to these issues. The requirements of the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017 (as amended) with regards to Habitats
Regulations Assessment (HRA) have been reviewed and it has been established that whist this
proposal is located close to the Avon Gorge Woodlands SAC and SSSI, it is found that the proposed
development will not cause a significant effect on the habitat and conditions of the SAC. This is due to
the relatively small scale demolition and construction works proposed, as well as details which were
sought via condition associated with the previous consent. These included submission of a Site
Specific Construction Environmental Management Plan which would include details of best practice
pollution prevention and dust control guidelines to be adhered to during construction to prevent
adverse impacts to the Avon Gorge Woodlands SAC. Details of a lighting scheme for the site
including estimated predicted light spill levels to be prepared by a suitably qualified Lighting Engineer
were also required to be submitted prior to any development commencing. Via this measure, the
Council's Ecologist is satisfied that light spill onto the woodland habitats to the west can be preserved
below 0.5 lux as required by Natural England. Furthermore, the proposed opening hours of the site
are 08:00 to 19:00 Monday to Saturday and 10:00 to 16:00 on Sundays and Bank Holidays. This will
only result in a few hours of illumination following nightfall in winter. The Local Planning Authority will
be require that all lighting is turned off outside these hours to limit impact to ecology as well as the
character of the area, energy consumption and neighbouring amenity. Subject to these measures, the
Local Planning Authority is satisfied that significant effects to ecology can be prevented. This will
ensure that the development accords with policy requirements.

Page 157

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

In relation to biodiversity the supplied Preliminary Ecological Appraisal estimates that the
development can deliver a net gain for biodiversity of approximately 20%. This would be as a result of
the inclusion of a planted living roof utilising native Avon Gorge species as well as an area of 200m² of
grassland managed as flower-rich grassland meadow planted adjacent to the development. Further
ecological mitigation is suggested in the form of locally sourced native flowering shrubs and native
trees planted on the proposed decking adjacent to the development as well as the provision of bird,
bat, and invertebrate boxes at appropriate locations, and ensuring permeability for hedgehogs at the
bases of any new perimeter fencing. These recommendations have been reviewed by the Council's
Ecologist and they are satisfied that the development can deliver net gains for biodiversity as required
by the NPPF subject to inclusion of these measures. Given the lack of a clear and precise strategy for
deployment and inclusion of the ecological mitigation and enhancement measures, this will be sought
via condition as well as an updated calculation to ensure the selected measures achieve a net gain.
Subject to these measures, the development would avoid harmfully impacting upon habitat, species or
features, which contribute to nature conservation in Bristol. The development is therefore found to
accord with the objectives of national and local planning policy and resultantly the development is
acceptable in this regard.
TREES & GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE
Section 12, paragraph 131 of the NPPF outlines that trees make an important contribution to the
character and quality of urban environments, and can also help mitigate and adapt to climate change.
Planning policies and decisions should ensure that new streets are tree-lined, that opportunities are
taken to incorporate trees elsewhere in developments (such as parks and community orchards), that
appropriate measures are in place to secure the long-term maintenance of newly-planted trees, and
that existing trees are retained wherever possible. Applicants and local planning authorities should
work with highways officers and tree officers to ensure that the right trees are planted in the right
places, and solutions are found that are compatible with highways standards and the needs of
different users.
Policy BCS9 (Green Infrastructure) of the Bristol Cores Strategy outlines that the integrity and
connectivity of the strategic green infrastructure network will be maintained, protected and enhanced.
Opportunities to extend the coverage and connectivity of the existing strategic green infrastructure
network should be taken. Individual green assets should be retained wherever possible and integrated
into new development. Loss of green infrastructure will only be acceptable where it is allowed for as
part of an adopted Development Plan Document or is necessary, on balance, to achieve the policy
aims of the Core Strategy. Appropriate mitigation of the lost green infrastructure assets will be
required. Development should incorporate new and/or enhanced green infrastructure of an
appropriate type, standard and size. Where on-site provision of green infrastructure is not possible,
contributions will be sought to make appropriate provision for green infrastructure off site.
Policy DM17 (Development Involving Existing Green Infrastructure) of the Site Allocations and
Development Management Policies Local Plan (SADMP) outlines that development should integrate
important existing trees. Development which would result in the loss of Ancient Woodland, Aged trees
or Veteran trees will not be permitted. It is suggested that where tree loss or damage is essential to
allow for appropriate development, replacement trees of an appropriate species should be provided in
accordance with the standard set out within Policy DM17 known as the Bristol Tree Replacement
Standard (BTRS).
In relation to green infrastructure provision, it is recognised that the development would result in
development of some previously undeveloped open, grassland. The development has however
incorporated a green, planted roof covering the majority of the building. This is proposed to be planted
with species native to the adjacent Avon Gorge. It is noted that the existing building at the site does
not offer such a feature. As such, whilst the development involves the loss of a degree of existing

Page 158

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

green infrastructure, this would be mitigated at roof level to offer an enhancement upon existing green
infrastructure levels. Details of proposed planting will be secured by condition attached to any
eventual consent to ensure planted materials are appropriate to the context and are maintained
through to establishment.
The site is located adjacent to a row of trees that grow beyond the adjacent clifftop wall which runs to
the west of the site. These are relatively small specimens, most likely due to the limited rooting
environment created by the cliff face and adjacent wall, noted to be of low to moderate quality
however offering some landscape value.
An arboricultural report including tree survey, impact assessment, method statement and protection
plan has been submitted accompanying the application. This finds that the trees will require will
require both above and below ground protection. Above ground, minor pruning works are
recommended as well as installation of temporary ground protection during construction. This will be
subject to a watching brief maintained by the Project Arboriculturalist. It is anticipated that the existing
boundary wall will have prevented tree root penetration below ground towards the development site.
This means that it is anticipated that all trees will be retained following development and the
development will not result in any tree loss. The recommendations and measures have been reviewed
and are accepted by the Local Authority Arboricultural officer. It has also been specified that a post
construction tree survey will be undertaken and submitted to the Local Authority, 1 year following
substantial completion of the building. This will ensure any unlikely impact to trees is identified and
can be mitigated following development. These details would be secured by condition attached to any
eventual permission. Subject to these measures, the development would avoid harmfully impacting
upon green infrastructure assets including trees. The development is therefore found to accord with
the objectives of national and local planning policy and resultantly the development is acceptable in
this regard.
NEIGHBOURING AMENITY
Section 12 (Achieving well-designed places) of the NPPF outlines that: "The creation of high quality,
beautiful and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what the planning and development
process should achieve. Good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better
places in which to live and work and helps make development acceptable to communities."
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should create places that are
safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of
amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.
Policy BCS21 (Quality Urban Design) of the Core Strategy outlines that all new development within
Bristol will be expected to strive to achieve high standards of urban design. With regards to amenity it
is outlined, that new development is expected to safeguard the amenity of existing development.
Policy BCS23 (Pollution) of the Core Strategy outlines that development should be sited and designed
in a way as to avoid adversely impacting upon environmental amenity or biodiversity of the
surrounding area by reason of fumes, dust, noise, vibration, smell, light or other forms of air, land,
water pollution, or creating exposure to contaminated land. Further to this, in locating and designing
development, account should also be taken of the impact of existing sources of noise or other
pollution on the new development and the impact of the new development on the viability of existing
uses by reason of its sensitivity to noise or other pollution.
Policy DM35 (Noise Mitigation) of the SADMP outlines that development which would have an
unacceptable impact on environmental amenity or biodiversity by reason of noise will be expected to
provide an appropriate scheme of mitigation. In assessing such a scheme of mitigation, account will

Page 159

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

be taken of:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

The location, design and layout of the proposed development; and
Existing levels of background noise; and
Measures to reduce or contain generated noise; and
Hours of operation and servicing.

Development will not be permitted if mitigation cannot be provided to an appropriate standard with an
acceptable design, particularly in proximity to sensitive existing uses or sites.
The assessment relating to the impact of the proposed development to neighbouring amenity and
living conditions remains consistent with the previous application. There have been some changes to
the proportions and layout of the building since the previous application. These are not significant
however and do not change the essence of the proposed use or parameters of development and
likely impacts experienced by neighbours. These will be the same as previously proposed and
deemed acceptable under the previous application. National and local planning policy in respect of
safeguarding the amenity of existing development has also not been significantly amended since the
previous application. Given the similarities, the recently lapsed planning permission and the
conclusions drawn are a material consideration in the determination of the current application.
In relation to neighbouring residential properties, the proposed building would be in closest proximity
of Towerhirst which is sited approximately 35m north of the site. Seawalls, a post war flatted
development is located approximately 60m from the site, beyond Towerhirst. The next closest
property is 27 Sea Walls Road, separated by some 90m of the site. Given the scale of the proposed
building and the aforementioned separations, no harmful loss of light, overshadowing, impact to
outlook or loss of privacy would result to any adjacent residential property.
In relation to noise and potential disturbance, it is noted that given the surrounding layout, the only
property which would stand to experience any potential change in conditions would be Towerhirst.
The garden of this property extends to within 15m of the site. There is however a substantial wall
between the garden and the neighbouring property. It is also understood that the garden of this
property is tiered with other parts located at lower level further from the site. This neighbouring site
shares its boundary with the public open space and therefore some level of noise and disturbance
resulting from this public/private relationship is inevitable. In closest proximity of the neighbouring
property would be the educational booth and public toilets. The public toilets would be sited similarly
to the existing facilities and it is unlikely these would cause any more noise or disturbance than the
present facilities. High levels of noise would also not be anticipated to be associated with the
educational booth given the proposed use and scale of this facility.
Some noise and activity would be generated by patrons relating to the proposed café and its outdoor
seating area. This facility would be sited at the southern end of the proposed building, thus furthest
from Towerhirst. Under normal use this would only relate to noise from conversation and general
human activity which could be commonly expected at any point of a public open space.
The opening hours for the café are proposed to be restricted to Monday to Saturday 08.00 to 19.00
and 10.00 to 16.00 on Sundays. These are found to be reasonable to safeguard against noise
creating activity at quieter times of day. Restrictions also secured via conditions will also be applied to
hours of collection for waste to prevent noise relating to this servicing at quieter times of day. It is
noted that no plant or extraction equipment is proposed for the café and therefore noise emissions
relating to such equipment would not be an issue. A condition has been recommended by the
Pollution Control officer to prevent installation of such equipment without the prior approval of the
Local Authority. Further conditions are also suggested to ensure that any noise generated by plant or
equipment which is installed at any point shall be at least 5 dB below the background level at any time
at residential premises. These were applied to the previous planning permission and are

Page 160

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

recommended to be reapplied to the current application.
Information submitted with the planning application with regard to how the café, toilets and
educational booth will be managed by the occupiers is basic in nature at this point as an operator for
the café has not been identified. As such, a condition securing a detailed site management plan will
be attached to any eventual consent. This will set out details of various operations of the café, public
toilets and education booth, including waste management, security, servicing and deliveries,
communications and complaints procedures, out of hours procedures, health and safety and cleaning
and maintenance.
The conclusions reached above also align with those of the Inspector appointed by the Secretary of
State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs who considered the application for common land
consent (application reference: COM/3246988). In considering the interests of the neighbourhood, the
Inspector found:
"Objectors state that the locality is valued for peace, beauty, birdsong and dark night skies and
consider that the presence of the café would result in nuisance. The previous Inspector noted the
quietness of this area. My visit was on a warm sunny Sunday afternoon. I observed a steady flow of
traffic and cars parked alongside the road in several areas, particularly close to the viewing platform
for the Gorge. Traffic noise was apparent in the background hum of this green urban lung. An ice
cream van parked close to the toilets was busy with a queue of customers. The locality had the feeling
of a popular, well-used urban greenspace. Some objectors to this application acknowledge that the
locality and the Seawalls promenade are particularly busy at weekends. Some refer to the traffic,
including cars, coaches and commercial vehicles parked as a "ring of steel" and an intrusive volume
of existing traffic."
"I have no doubt that the proposed café with external tables on the proposed decking area would
receive custom and attract some additional people to this area. But like the previous Inspector I do not
think that it can be concluded that more people would necessarily be detrimental, and I note that the
size of the café is limited, and the external seating area would only provide for a limited number of
tables and chairs."
"A verdant residential suburb to the north of the common includes the designated Sneyd Park
Conservation Area (CA). On my visit I found that those dwellings immediately north of this part of the
common are in the main some distance from the site of the application, and largely screened from it
by boundary screening, trees and mature woodland. I also note that the CA excludes the row of
dwellings closest to the common. The café and external seating area would face away from this area.
I very much doubt that there would be any discernible visual or audible impact arising from the café
within this area generally."
"The education booth would be the closest part of the development to Towerhirst. Undoubtedly, the
ambience and appearance would change. But with an internal area of 7m² plus a restricted
undercover outdoor decked area, the capacity and uses would be limited. There is nothing to say that
the area could not presently be used by the Avon Gorge and Downs Wildlife Project and other
individuals or groups of people for open air lectures, picnics and the like."
"From the level of use and traffic I observed, and the number of cars parked in the locality I think it
unlikely that the proposal would generate a significant level of traffic, activity or noise that would
materially change the existing character and amenities of the neighbourhood."
"I conclude that with the environmental controls afforded by the planning permission, the proposal
would not be likely to adversely affect the interests of neighbouring residents and occupants. Overall
the proposal would positively benefit the neighbourhood and the future use and enjoyment of the
common by commoners, the public and others."

Page 161

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Whilst this is not a planning decision made in accordance with planning policy, the issues considered
by the Inspector share similarities to those being considered by this planning application. The
conclusions of the Inspector in relation to the interests of the neighbourhood align with and support
the assessment of the Local Planning Authority relating to safeguarding existing amenity. The findings
are in alignment with the previous application and can be applied to the current application also. The
proposed use and building are found to safegaurd acceptable standards of amenity for all relevant
neighbouring occupiers and the area at large. The development therefore accords with the objectives
of all relevant national legislation, national and local planning policy. As a result the development is
deemed acceptable subject to safeguarding conditions which will be set out beneath.
TRANSPORT, HIGHWAYS & ACCESS
Section 9 (Promoting Sustainable Transport) of the NPPF outlines that significant development should
be focused on locations which are or can be made sustainable, through limiting the need to travel and
offering a genuine choice of transport modes. This can help to reduce congestion and emissions, and
improve air quality and public health. However, opportunities to maximise sustainable transport
solutions will vary between urban and rural areas, and this should be taken into account in both planmaking and decision-making.
In relation to sustainable transport, the NPPF states that development should:
a)

give priority first to pedestrian and cycle movements, both within the scheme and with
neighbouring areas; and second - so far as possible - to facilitating access to high quality
public transport, with layouts that maximise the catchment area for bus or other public
transport services, and appropriate facilities that encourage public transport use;

b)

address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in relation to all modes of
transport;

c)

create places that are safe, secure and attractive - which minimise the scope for conflicts
between pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street clutter, and respond to
local character and design standards;

d)

allow for the efficient delivery of goods, and access by service and emergency vehicles; and

e)

be designed to enable charging of plug-in and other ultra-low emission vehicles in safe,
accessible and convenient locations.

Policy BCS10 (Transport & Access Improvements) of the Core Strategy states that development
proposals should be located where sustainable travel patterns can be achieved, with more intensive,
higher density mixed use development at accessible centres and along or close to main public
transport routes. Proposals should minimise the need to travel, especially by private car, and
maximise opportunities for the use of walking, cycling and public transport.
Developments should be designed and located to ensure the provision of safe streets and reduce as
far as possible the negative impacts of vehicles such as excessive volumes, fumes and noise.
Proposals should create places and streets where traffic and other activities are integrated and where
buildings, spaces and the needs of people shape the area.
The following hierarchy for transport user priorities is set out:
a)
b)

The pedestrian;
The cyclist;

Page 162

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

c)
d)
e)
f)

Public transport;
Access for commercial vehicles;
Short stay visitors by car;
The private car.

Policy DM23 (Transport Development Management) of the SADMP outlines that new development
should not give rise to unacceptable traffic conditions and will be expected to provide safe access to
the highway network. The policy also outlines that new development should be accessible by
sustainable transport methods such as walking, cycling and public transport. Furthermore, the policy
sets standards for parking provision. These can be found at Appendix 2 of the SADMP document. The
parking standards are maximum levels for car parking and minimum levels for cycle parking.
Policy DM32 (Recycling & Refuse Provision in New Development) of the SADMP outlines that all new
development should provide bin and recycling storage facilities fit for the nature of development, with
adequate capacity for the proposed development, in a location which is safe and accessible for all
users and does not harm the visual amenity of the area or neighbouring amenity.
In relation to transport, highways and access issues which result from the policy listed above, to all
intents and purposes the development will be the same as the previous application. The proposed use
and layout are in essence the same and the relevant national and local policy relating to transport and
highways issues are broadly the same as when the previous application was granted permission by
Committee in March 2019. As such, the impact of development and the acceptability of this are
comparable to the previous application. The previous permission which has only recently lapsed is a
material consideration in the assessment of the current application. The assessment of officers is
therefore similar to the previous application which is as follows.
The site is located at the far north western corner of The Downs open space which the proposed uses
are designed to serve. By virtue of the lack of development bordering the site to the south, east and
west, the site is recognisably not best served by public transport. There are however bus stops
located at Rockleaze and Downleaze between 600-800m or 8-10 minutes' walk (dependent on
inbound or outbound) east of the site. These are presently served by the route 4 service running
between the city centre and Cribbs Causeway via Shirehampton. This would provide a reasonable
means of public transport access to the site.
Given the position within a public open space where people are likely to attend for sports and
recreational purposes, the distances users are likely willing to walk or cycle to reach their destination
are likely greater. As such, it is not foreseen that the scale of distances involved to reach the site
would discourage walking or cycling as in other contexts. As such, the development can be
considered to promote such active and sustainable means of transit. Within this context, the 1.3km
walk from other bus stops at the top of Whiteladies Road or even from Clifton Down Railway Station
(approx. 2km) would not be unreasonable for some. It is consequently concluded that the site would
be accessible by public transport and sustainable means.
It is noted that the parking standards do not require the provision of any car parking or cycle parking
within cafes under 250m2. It is recognised some users will inevitably access the site via cars however
there is found to be sufficient parking on Circular Road that this would not cause a significant
highways issue. Transport Development Management has confirmed highways officers are satisfied
that existing parking and highways restrictions are sufficient to manage access to the development by
car. Any illegal parking which is presently an issue on The Downs and may also be attributed to the
proposed development can be dealt with through other highways legislation. Issues relating to
highways enforcement should be reported to the relevant team for resolution.
There is existing publicly accessible visitor cycle parking in the form of Sheffield stands available at
the Sea Walls viewing point. A staff cycle parking stand is proposed for x2 bikes within the

Page 163

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

development.
As highlighted above, the implications of the Equalities Act 2010 have been considered both
procedurally and in relation to the proposed development. The development would include level
access from the surrounding public realm and would be required to accord with all necessary aspects
of Part M of Building Regulations. It is noted that there is an existing on street disabled parking bay
adjacent to the site on Circular Road at Sea Walls. This is deemed to accord with policy requirements
in relation to equal access.
It is noted that highways officers have suggested that a new footpath is installed to provide more
direct access to the building from the north east. However this is not part of the current application
proposals. It is accepted that there may be desire to access the site more directly from this direction.
However the Local Planning Authority is conscious of minimising subdivision and
compartmentalisation of the open space. It is not found that it would be a significant inconvenience for
users to follow the established footpaths. Desire lines have not emerged relating to access the
existing public toilet block. Mud and lack of traction will likely deter access across the grass during wet
weather. Nevertheless, a further footpath could be explored and constructed following this route in
future should this be necessary. The absence of this from the current application would not warrant
the refusal of planning permission. The Local Planning Authority is satisfied that the current proposals
will provide suitable means of access to the site.
Highways officers have also recommended resurfacing of the footpath which provides access to the
site. This is deemed reasonable given the current condition and increased use which route would be
subject to. Resurfacing would be required to install paving around the drinking fountain. As such, a
condition will be applied to any eventual consent requiring submission of resurfacing proposals and
installation of a dropped kerb adjacent to the highway on Circular Road.
In relation to waste storage and management, a bin store is proposed to the rear of the building. This
would be sited to have the lowest possible public perception. The bin store is deemed to be of
sufficient scale of accommodate bins required to serve the development. It is outlined that bins will be
collected by private contract which will include waste contractors manoeuvring bins from store to
collection vehicle. This will take place every second day. Transport Development Management has
reviewed the details provided in the supplied Waste Management Strategy and deem these
acceptable, subject to resurfacing of the access path and installation of a dropped kerb. This would be
secured via condition in the event of permission being granted. Subject to this measure, the proposals
would accommodate acceptable facilities for storage of refuse and recycling.
Subject to conditions, the proposed development is therefore found compatible with national and local
policy objectives for sustainable development through encouraging active and low carbon travel. The
development would also avoid any detrimental impact upon the safe and free flow of the surrounding
highway network. On this basis the proposed development is therefore acceptable in terms of
transport and access.
SITE MANAGEMENT & CRIME PREVENTION
Paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that planning policies and decisions should create places that are
safe, inclusive and accessible and which promote health and well-being, with a high standard of
amenity for existing and future users; and where crime and disorder, and the fear of crime, do not
undermine the quality of life or community cohesion and resilience.
Policy DM10 (Food and Drink Uses and the Evening Economy) of the SADMP states that food and
drink uses will be acceptable provided that they would not harm the character of the area, residential
amenity and/or public safety, either individually or cumulatively; and that proposals resulting in a
harmful concentration will not be permitted.

Page 164

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Policy DM28 (Public Realm) of the SADMP states that: "development will be expected to "reduce
crime and fear of crime by creating a well-surveilled public realm that is well managed and cared for".
As concluded within the preceding sections, the proposed café is not found to harm the character of
the area or harm residential amenity. A harmful concentration of such uses would also not be created
in this instance. There are however some implications for public safety and crime prevention. Due to
the isolated nature of the site and public accessibility of the open space, this area is understood to
attract crime. It is noted that the proposed café would offer benefits over the existing public toilet block
in terms of increased public surveillance over this part of the open space. The existing public toilets
are in a poor state of repair and the entrance to the males toilets are located at the rear of the
building, screened from the public realm. The proposed building would offer a significant upgrade and
modernisation of facilities in comparison to the existing toilet block. Entrances would be moved to the
front of the building and the glazed construction would provide less screening than the existing
building. Through good urban design, the proposals are found to reduce opportunities for crime and
provide increased public surveillance and a better managed and cared for public realm.
Avon and Somerset Police have been consulted on the development and the local policing team
responsible for patrol of the area have raised no specific concerns. The Crime Prevention officer has
however recommended that, similar to the previous application, a 'Site Security Strategy' is submitted
prior to first use of the building. This will include details of: Access control for the building; CCTV
proposals; Lighting proposals; Out of hour's security strategy; and Details relating to management of
cash. It is recommended that CCTV is used to provide formal surveillance and the officer advises that
this is monitored by an approved alarm receiving centre (ARC). The system should be capable of
providing 'identification' quality images as defined in the Home Office document 28/09. Subject to this
measure, the development would not be directly associated with increased crime or detriment to
public safety.
It is noted that the Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural
Affairs who considered the application for common land consent (application reference:
COM/3246988) found that:
"The replacement toilets together with improved management and supervision would be an
improvement and of benefit to people informally exercising, strolling and recreating in the locality, as
well as people visiting to take in the views of the Gorge and Clifton Suspension Bridge. They would
make the facilities more attractive and usable for the many different user groups. Some objectors are
worried about access to toilets becoming restricted, but the applicant advises that facilities would be
available at all times. Overall, the replacement toilets would result in an improvement to safety and
amenity which would benefit young and old, the able and less able, and be consistent with aims of a
2012-2017 Management Plan to ensure that anti-social behaviour is controlled, and its impact
reduced. These would be positive benefits for the neighbourhood".
Overall, the proposals accord with national and local policy in respect of good urban design which
reduces opportunities for crime as well as the fear of crime. Conditions will be applied to any eventual
consent to ensure the proposals fully accord with requirements in this regard.
SUSTAINABILITY & CLIMATE CHANGE
Section 14 of the NPPF states "The planning system should support the transition to a low carbon
future in a changing climate, taking full account of flood risk and coastal change. It should help to:
shape places in ways that contribute to radical reductions in greenhouse gas emissions, minimise
vulnerability and improve resilience; encourage the reuse of existing resources, including the
conversion of existing buildings; and support renewable and low carbon energy and associated
infrastructure".

Page 165

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Paragraph 150 of the NPPF outlines that "new development should be planned for in ways that: can
help to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, such as through its location, orientation and design".
Core Strategy Policy BCS13 states that "Development should contribute to both mitigating and
adapting to climate change, and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions. Development
should mitigate climate change through measures including:
o

High standards of energy efficiency including optimal levels of thermal insulation, passive
ventilation and cooling, passive solar design, and the efficient use of natural resources in new
buildings.

o

The use of decentralised, renewable and low-carbon energy supply systems.

o

Patterns of development which encourage walking, cycling and the use of public transport
instead of journeys by private car.

Development should adapt to climate change through measures including:
o

Site layouts and approaches to design and construction which provide resilience to climate
change.

o

Measures to conserve water supplies and minimise the risk and impact of flooding.

o

The use of green infrastructure to minimise and mitigate the heating of the urban environment.

o

Avoiding responses to climate impacts which lead to increases in energy use and carbon
dioxide emissions.

These measures should be integrated into the design of new development. New development should
demonstrate through Sustainability Statements how it would contribute to mitigating and adapting to
climate change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions by means of the above
measures.
Core Strategy Policy BCS14 provides further objectives for how development will be expected to
reduce carbon emissions through use of sustainable energy sources. It is outlined that development
should include measures to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from energy use in accordance with the
energy hierarchy. Development is also required to reduce carbon dioxide emissions from residual
energy use by way of onsite renewable energy generation in buildings by at least 20%. New
development will be expected to demonstrate that the heating and cooling systems have been
selected following the heat hierarchy.
Further guidance on Core Strategy policy requirements and the preparation of Sustainability and
Energy Statements is available within the Climate Change and Sustainability Practice Note (2020).
The applicant has supplied a Sustainability Statement in support of the proposed development. This
outlines a range of measures the development would take to achieve high levels of energy efficiency
and reduce energy consumption. These include specification of thermal elements and air tightness
above and beyond the building regulations requirements. In turn, this will decrease the overall heating
demand of the development. Due to the location of the site the heating fuel will be electricity.
Incorporating an air source heat pump and a heat recovery ventilation system will reduce the
electricity demand and generate heat via renewable energy, in turn reducing CO2 emissions. The
building has been designed with a large overhanging roof to create solar shading. This design feature
mitigates the risk of overheating which would otherwise be likely in the summer months due to excess

Page 166

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

solar gain.
The sustainability statement includes an energy table which indicates these measures would make a
10% reduction in carbon emissions beyond Building Regulations Part L levels. The energy table also
indicates a further 29% reduction in carbon emissions (beyond the improved Part L level) can be
achieved via on site renewable energy generation, specifically via installation of an air source heat
pump and solar photovoltaic panels. The solar panels are proposed for installation to the flat roof and
will be installed flat to prevent visibility. These are shown on the proposed drawings. Further detail
would be sought via condition regarding the exact positions and specifications proposed prior to the
installation of air source heat pump and solar panels. A condition would also be applied to any
eventual permission ensuring full compliance with the supplied a sustainability statement and energy
statement. Subject to this, the proposed development would therefore make an acceptable
contribution to policy objectives of sustainability and climate change.
DRAINAGE & FLOOD RISK
Policy BCS16 (Flood Risk and Water Management) of the Core Strategy states that development in
Bristol will follow a sequential approach to flood risk management, giving priority to the development
of sites with the lowest risk of flooding. The development of sites with a sequentially greater risk of
flooding will be considered where essential for regeneration or where necessary to meet the
development requirements of the city.
Development in areas at risk of flooding will be expected to:
i.
ii.

be resilient to flooding through design and layout, and/or
incorporate sensitively designed mitigation measures, which may take the form of on-site flood
defence works and/or a contribution towards or a commitment to undertake such off-site
measures as may be necessary, in order to ensure that the development remains safe from
flooding over its lifetime.

All development will also be expected to incorporate water management measures to reduce surface
water run-off and ensure that it does not increase flood risks elsewhere. This should include the use
of sustainable drainage systems (SUDS).
Policy DM33 (Pollution Control, Air Quality and Water Quality) of the SADMP states that Development
which has the potential, either individually or cumulatively, for an unacceptable impact on
environmental amenity, biodiversity or water quality by reason of pollution as set out in the Core
Strategy but is considered desirable for reasons of economic or wider social need will be expected to
provide an appropriate scheme of mitigation.
The policy proceeds to outline that "Development adjacent to underground or surface water bodies
covered by the Water Framework Directive and Severn River Basin Management Plan should
contribute towards those water bodies maintaining or achieving Good Ecological Status. This may
take the form of on-site measures or a financial contribution to off-site measures."
"In terms of water quality, the River Frome, Brislington Brook, Malago, River Trym and Colliter's Brook
do not currently achieve Good Ecological Status due to impacts from flood protection / land drainage
schemes and urbanisation. To comply with the Water Framework Directive water bodies should reach
good ecological potential by 2027. Measures will therefore be sought from development adjacent to
waterways covered by the Water Framework Directive, where feasible and viable, either through
measures in the Severn River Basin Management Plan or other good practice such as naturalised
river habitats, deculverting and appropriate vegetation management plans. The River Avon is at good
ecological status and this should not be allowed to deteriorate through development."

Page 167

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

The site is not located within a flood zone and is not at risk of flooding. The proposed development is
located within surface drainage discharge zone where the priority is to use infiltration techniques
where possible, or reduce the discharge rate and provide water quality improvements. The proposed
development of undeveloped green land would likely result in increased discharge rates. It is noted
that the development includes proposals for a large green roof which would mitigate some of the
effects in terms of increased discharge rates. Wessex Water has confirmed proposals to discharge
surface water via the main sewer as acceptable. Measures to reduce surface water run of into the
existing combined sewer, to improve water quality and reduce flood risk are however encouraged.
The applicant is referred to local flood risk and drainage standing advice. The application does not
detail proposals to meet these objectives. As such, a condition will be applied to any eventual consent
requiring a detailed sustainable urban drainage strategy prior to commencement. Subject to this
measure, the development would avoid causing any significant increase in flood risk locally.
COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY
Some new developments granted planning permission will be liable to pay Community Infrastructure
Levy (CIL) to Bristol City Council.
CIL is payable where development comprises 100m2 or more of new build floorspace or results in the
creation of one or more dwellings.
The proposed development does not qualify to pay CIL.
CONCLUSION
The proposed development has been assessed against all relevant national and local planning policy
as well as relevant adopted supplementary guidance. The proposed development of open space is
found to be acceptable in this instance on the basis the proposed use would be for sports and
recreational purposes and ancillary to the designation as Important Open Space. The development is
found to pose a low degree of harm to the setting of adjacent heritage assets however sufficient public
benefit is associated with the development to outweigh this. The design of the building presents an
acceptable response to the context and would preserve the significance of the conservation area.
Following assessment and subject to safeguarding conditions, it has been confirmed that the
proposed development would avoid detrimental impact to ecology, biodiversity, trees, green
infrastructure, neighbouring amenity and living conditions, surrounding highways, public safety,
climate change and flood risk. The development is therefore found to be in accordance with relevant
national and local planning policy. There are no material considerations which would warrant the
refusal of planning permission. It is therefore recommended permission is granted subject to
conditions.

EQUALITIES ASSESSMENT
During the determination of this application due regard has been given to the impact of this scheme in
relation to the Equalities Act 2010 in terms of its impact upon key equalities protected characteristics.
These characteristics are age, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership,
pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and sexual orientation. There is no indication or
evidence (including from consultation with relevant groups) that different groups have or would have
different needs, experiences, issues and priorities in relation this particular proposed development.
Overall, it is considered that this application would not have any significant adverse impact upon
different groups or implications for the Equality Act 2010.

Page 168

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

RECOMMENDED

GRANT subject to condition(s)

Time limit for commencement of development
1.

Full Planning Permission
The development hereby permitted shall begin before the expiration of three years from the
date of this permission.
Reason: As required by Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, as amended
by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Pre commencement condition(s)
2.

Construction Management Plan
No development shall take place, including any demolition works, until a construction
management plan or construction method statement has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The approved plan/statement shall be adhered to
throughout the demolition/construction period. The plan/statement shall provide for:
o
o
o

o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o

24 hour emergency contact number;
Hours of operation;
Parking of vehicle of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties
during construction);
Routes for construction traffic;
Locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant, waste and construction materials;
Method of preventing mud being carried onto the highway;
Measures to protect vulnerable road users (cyclists and pedestrians)
Any necessary temporary traffic management measures;
Arrangements for turning vehicles;
Arrangements to receive abnormal loads or unusually large vehicles;
Methods of communicating the Construction Management Plan to staff, visitors and
neighbouring residents and businesses.

Reason: In the interests of safe operation of the adopted highway in the lead into development
both during the demolition and construction phase of the development.
3.

Site Specific Construction Environmental Management Plan
No development shall take place until a site specific Construction Environmental Management
Plan has been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Council. The plan must
demonstrate the adoption and use of the best practicable means to reduce the effects of noise,
vibration, dust and site lighting. The plan should include, but not be limited to:
*
*
*

Procedures for maintaining good public relations including complaint management,
public consultation and liaison
Arrangements for liaison with the Council's Pollution Control Team
All works and ancillary operations which are audible at the site boundary, or at such
other place as may be agreed with the Local Planning Authority, shall be carried out
only between the following hours:

Page 169

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

08 00 Hours and 18 00 Hours on Mondays to Fridays
08 00 and 13 00 Hours on Saturdays and;
at no time on Sundays and Bank Holidays.
*
*

*
*
*

*

Deliveries to and removal of plant, equipment, machinery and waste from the site must
only take place within the permitted hours detailed above.
Mitigation measures as defined in BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2 : 2009 Noise and Vibration
Control on Construction and Open Sites shall be used to minimise noise disturbance
from construction works.
Procedures for emergency deviation of the agreed working hours.
Bristol City Council encourages all contractors to be 'Considerate Contractors' when
working in the city by being aware of the needs of neighbours and the environment.
Control measures for dust and other air-borne pollutants. This must also take into
account the need to protect any local resident who may have a particular susceptibility
to air-borne pollutants.
Measures for controlling the use of site lighting whether required for safe working or for
security purposes.

Reason: In the interests of the amenities of surrounding occupiers during the construction of
the development.
4.

Highway works - General arrangement plan
No development shall take place until general arrangement plan(s) to a scale of 1:200 showing
the following works to the adopted highway has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
o
o

Resurfacing of footpath to access development;
Installation of a dropped kerb on Circular Road for waste collection and deliveries;

Where applicable indicating proposals for:
o
o
o
o
o

Existing levels of the finished highway tying into building threshold levels
Alterations to waiting restrictions or other Traffic Regulation Orders to enable the works
Signing, street furniture, street trees and pits
Structures on or adjacent to the highway
Extent of any stopping up, diversion or dedication of new highway (including all public
rights of way shown on the definitive map and statement)

No development shall take place over the route of any public right of way prior to the
confirmation of a Town & Country Planning Act 1990 path diversion/stopping up order.
Prior to occupation these works shall be completed to the satisfaction of the Highway Authority
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In the interests of public safety and to ensure that all road works associated with the
proposed development are: planned; approved in good time (including any statutory
processes); undertaken to a standard approved by the Local Planning Authority and are
completed before occupation.
5.

Sustainable Drainage System (SuDS) Strategy
The development hereby approved shall not commence until a Sustainable Drainage Strategy
and associated detailed design, management and maintenance plan of surface water drainage

Page 170

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

for the site using SuDS methods has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This shall demonstrate use of infiltration techniques where possible, or
demonstrate a reduction in the discharge rate and provide water quality improvements. The
approved drainage system shall be implemented in accordance with the approved Sustainable
Drainage Strategy prior to the use of the building commencing and maintained thereafter for
the lifetime of the development.
Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding by ensuring the provision of a satisfactory
means of surface water disposal is incorporated into the design and the build and that the
principles of sustainable drainage are incorporated into this proposal and maintained for the
lifetime of the proposal.
6.

Submission of lighting strategy
Prior to the commencement of development a detailed lighting scheme and predicted light spill
levels prepared by a suitably qualified Lighting Engineer shall be submitted and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The report must include details of all internal and
external lighting (including any decorative lighting and security lighting within external
amenity/access areas), lighting switches, timing and management controls as well as
associated light spill plans demonstrating that the development will not result in light spill
above 0.5 lux onto the adjacent woodland habitat to west of the site which is a designated
Special Area of Conservation unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Artificial lighting to the development must also conform to requirements to meet the
Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations for Environmental Zone - E2
contained within Table 1 of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance Notes for the Reduction
of Obtrusive Lighting, GN01, dated 2005.
Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of adjoining residential occupiers, the appearance
and character of the area as well as local ecology.

7.

Vegetation Clearance
No clearance of vegetation or structures suitable for nesting birds shall take place between 1st
March and 30th September inclusive in any year without the prior written approval of the Local
Planning Authority. If works are proposed within this period, the Authority will require evidence
provided by a suitably qualified ecologist that no breeding birds would be adversely affected
including by disturbance before giving any approval under this condition. Where checks for
nesting birds by a qualified ecological consultant are required they shall be undertaken no
more than 48 hours prior to the removal of vegetation or the demolition of, or works to
buildings.
Reason: To ensure that wild birds, building or using their nests are protected.

8.

Further details: Listed drinking fountain restoration
Prior to commencement of development a detailed method statement and phasing strategy of
the proposed restoration works for the historic drinking fountain, including large scale details
and samples (where necessary) as well as details of the future management and maintenance
of the fountain shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The restoration works shall be completed in accordance with the agreed strategy, prior to first
use of the building hereby approved unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority .

Page 171

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Reason: To ensure the proposed works do not result in harm to the historic fabric of the Listed
drinking fountain and deliver the public benefit associated with the development.
9.

Further details: Materials
Prior to building operations proceeding above slab level further details of external building
materials including manufacturer, specification, product information and samples (if
necessary), demonstrating appearance, colour and texture of the following elements, shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
a) Exposed steel frame
b) Timber cladding
c) Timber toilet doors
d) Glazing including windows, doors and manifestations if required.
e) Roof fascia trim
f) All external hard surfaces including timber decking, resurfaced access footpath and paving
at listed fountain.
g) Steel mesh fencing
h) Bin and recycling stores
i) Cycle parking
The development shall then be completed in full accordance with the approved materials
unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order to ensure the finished appearance of the building is of a high quality and
responds appropriately to the character and appearance of the local area in accordance with
Policies BCS21, DM26, DM28 and DM29.

10.

Further details: Education Booth Blinds
Prior to installation of the external blinds proposed for installation within the roof fabric
surrounding the educational booth, detailed specifications demonstrating proposed
appearance, material, colour and method of fixing at ground level shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the relevant parts of the work are
commenced. The development shall then be completed in accordance with the approved
details prior to the first commencement of the use hereby approved and maintained thereafter
for the lifetime of the development as such unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: In order that the external appearance of the building is of a high quality and would be
appropriate to the setting.

11.

Further details: Green Roof Specification
Prior to installation of the green roof hereby approved, a detailed planting specification
comprising locally appropriate species as well as a maintenance schedule through to
establishment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The development shall then be completed in accordance with the approved details prior to the
first commencement of the use hereby approved and maintained thereafter for the lifetime of
the development unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. If the roof
planting fails, it shall be replaced in full to a specification as agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and maintained to establishment.

Page 172

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Reason: To ensure the proposed planting is compatible with local biodiversity, will support
local ecosystems and provide a satisfactory appearance appropriate to the surroundings.
12.

Ecological Mitigation & Enhancement Strategy
Prior to the building being constructed above slab level, an Ecological Mitigation &
Enhancement Strategy (EMES) shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. This will accord with enhancement proposals outlined within the approved
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal (S:7020/J001613 by Betts Ecology, dated February 2022)
and shall include details of a scheme of ecological enhancement measures including proposed
green roof, flower-rich grassland planting, details of any further on site landscaping, bird, bat,
and invertebrate boxes at appropriate locations and permeability for hedgehogs to be
incorporated within the development, together with an updated calculation demonstrating net
gains for biodiversity within the development. The location, specification, height and orientation
of these ecological enhancement features must be shown on a site plan.
The development shall then be carried out in full accordance with the approved details or any
amendments subsequently agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In accordance with paragraph 174 of the National Planning Policy Framework (2021)
which requires that planning decisions enhance the natural and local environment by
minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity. Furthermore, the Natural
Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (Section 40) obliges the Local Planning
Authority '… in exercising its functions, have regard, so far as is consistent with the proper
exercise of those functions, to the purpose of conserving biodiversity'. It is noted that a
hedgehog is a Priority Species in the Bristol Biodiversity Action Plan.

13.

Further details: Air source heat pump
Prior to the installation of the air source heat pump system hereby approved, further details
including the exact location, manufacturers technical specification and predicted noise
emission levels including details of acoustic mitigation (if required) must be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Noise emissions resulting from the heat
pump equipment must be at least 5 dB below the background level as determined by BS4142:
2014 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial sound at the nearest noise
sensitive premises.
The approved air source heat pump system and any acoustic mitigation shall then be installed
in full accordance with the approved details and fully operational prior to first use of the
building and thereafter retained as such unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and preserves an acceptable standard of amenity for neighbouring occupiers.

14.

Details of Photovoltaics (PV)
1) Prior to commencement, details of the proposed PV system including location, dimensions,
design/ technical specification together with calculation of annual energy generation
(kWh/annum) and associated reduction in residual CO2 emissions shall be provided within the
Energy Statement.
2) Prior to occupation the following information shall be provided:

Page 173

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

- Evidence of the PV system as installed including exact location, technical specification and
projected annual energy yield (kWh/year) e.g. a copy of the MCS installer's certificate.
- A calculation showing that the projected annual yield of the installed system is sufficient to
reduce residual CO2 emissions by the percentage shown in the approved Energy Statement.
Reason: To ensure that the development contributes to mitigating and adapting to climate
change and to meeting targets to reduce carbon dioxide emissions.
Pre occupation condition(s)
15.

Site Management Plan
Prior to first use of the café, toilets and educational facility hereby approved, a detailed site
management plan shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. This shall include detailed management proposals for each use including proposed
operating arrangements for each use including waste management, security, servicing and
deliveries, communications and complaints procedures, out of hours operational details,
management of all external outdoor areas, health and safety information and cleaning and
maintenance proposals. The uses shall then operate in direct accordance with the details
indicated within the site management plan in perpetuity, unless otherwise agreed in writing by
the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To ensure the development protects the amenity of the area, neighbouring residents
and public safety.

16.

Site Security Strategy
Prior to first use of the building hereby approved, a detailed security strategy for the site shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. This shall outline
detailed security measures for the site hereby approved including:
o
o
o
o
o

Access control for the building
CCTV proposals
Lighting proposals
Out of hour's security strategy
Details relating to management of cash

The proposed CCTV system shall be monitored by an approved alarm receiving centre (ARC)
and the system must be capable of providing 'identification' quality images as defined in the
Home Office document 28/09.
The development shall then operate in accordance with the approved security strategy in
perpetuity unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard public safety and minimise the likelihood of crime.
17.

No Installation of Plant and Equipment
No equipment for the extraction and dispersal of cooking smells/fumes shall be installed until
details including detailed plans, method of construction, any odour control measures and
predicted noise levels have been submitted to and been approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Such equipment shall then be installed directly in accordance with the
approved details prior to the first commencement of the use hereby approved and permanently
retained thereafter unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Page 174

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the local area including appearance, character and
neighbouring living conditions as well as to prevent airborne odours.
18.

Implementation/Installation of Refuse Storage and Recycling Facilities – Shown on Approved
Plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or use commenced until the refuse
store and area/facilities allocated for storing of recyclable materials, as shown on the approved
plans have been completed in accordance with the approved plans.
Thereafter, all refuse and recyclable materials associated with the development shall either be
stored within this dedicated store/area, as shown on the approved plans, or internally within
the building(s) that form part of the application site. No refuse or recycling material shall be
stored or placed for collection on the adopted highway (including the footway), except on the
day of collection.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the occupiers of adjoining premises; protect the general
environment; prevent any obstruction to pedestrian movement and to ensure that there are
adequate facilities for the storage and recycling of recoverable materials.

19.

Completion and Maintenance of Cycle Provision - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the cycle
parking provision shown on the approved plans has been completed, and thereafter, be kept
free of obstruction and available for the parking of cycles only.
Reason: To ensure the provision and availability of adequate cycle parking.

20.

Completion of Pedestrians/Cyclists Access - Shown on approved plans
No building or use hereby permitted shall be occupied or the use commenced until the means
of access for pedestrians and/or cyclists have been constructed in accordance with the
approved plans and shall thereafter be retained for access purposes only.
Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Post occupation management
21.

Energy and Sustainability in accordance
The development hereby approved shall incorporate the energy efficiency measures,
renewable energy, sustainable design principles and climate change adaptation measures into
the design and construction of the development in full accordance with the energy and
sustainability statement (titled Sustainability Statement and Energy Strategy (Iteration 2), Chris
Goodsall Architect, 26th February 2019) prior to first occupation or use commenced. A total
10% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions beyond Part L 2013 Building Regulations in line
with the energy hierarchy shall be achieved, and a 29% reduction in carbon dioxide emissions
below residual emissions through renewable technologies (air source heat pump and solar
photovoltaic panels) shall be achieved.
Reason: To ensure the development incorporates measures to minimise the effects of, and
can adapt to a changing climate.

Page 175

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

22.

In accordance with Arboricultural Report
The proposed development shall be implemented in accordance with all findings and
recommendations (including arboricultural watching brief) as outlined within the supplied
Arboricultural Impact Assessment (Arboricultural Impact Assessment, Arboricultural Method
Statement and Tree Protection Plan, Hillside Trees Ltd, February 2019). The project
arboricultural consultant must be present to oversee works within root protection areas in
accordance with the arboricultural supervision recommendations in the arboricultural method
statement. Copies of written site notes and/or reports detailing the results of arboricultural site
supervision shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority following the operations detailed
within the arboricultural method statement. In accordance with the Tree Protection Plan, a
BS5837:2012 tree survey shall be undertaken 1 year following substantial completion of the
building.
Reason: To protect green infrastructure and the character and appearance of the area in line
with Policy BCS9 of the Core Strategy and Policy DM17 of the Site Allocations & Development
Management Policies Local Plan.

23.

Opening Hours
All patrons, customers and members of the public must vacate the building and external
seating areas outside the hours of 08:00 to 19:00 Monday to Saturday and 10:00 to 16:00 on
Sundays and Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

24.

Seating area extent
The outdoor seating area hereby permitted shall only take place on the decking area and
locations identified on the approved site layout plan (DC2-PD20 Rev - B). All tables, chairs and
associated furniture and receptacles will furthermore be removed from the area and stored
internally outside of the stated opening hours. No outdoor furniture shall extend beyond the
decking area onto the adjacent open space at any point.
Reason: To ensure that pedestrian and bicycle movement would not be obstructed and to
safeguard safety and security as well as residential and visual amenity.

25.

Hours of Waste Collections
Activities relating to the collection of refuse and recyclables and the tipping of empty bottles
into external receptacles shall only take place between 08:00 and 19:00 Monday to Saturday
and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of neighbouring occupiers

26.

Development in accordance with Waste Management Strategy
The use hereby approved shall be managed and serviced in full accordance with all measures
and proposals included within the supplied Waste Management Strategy (Waste Management
Strategy by Chris Goodsall Architects dated 14th February 2019) unless otherwise agreed in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of the area including that of neighbouring occupiers as well
as manage highways impacts relating to waste management.

Page 176

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

27.

Deliveries and servicing
Activities relating to deliveries and servicing of the site shall only take place between 08.00am
and 19:00pm Monday to Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.
Reason: In order to safeguard the amenities of future and adjoining occupiers, as well as that
of the area as a whole.

28.

Restriction of noise from plant and equipment
The rating level of any noise generated by plant and equipment as part of the development
shall be at least 5 dB below the background level as measured at nearest noise sensitive
premises in accordance with BS4142: 2014 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and
commercial sound.
Reason: To safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area generally.

29.

Restriction on use of roof
The flat roof of the building hereby approved shall not be used as a roof terrace, roof garden,
balcony or for any other form of amenity area without further specific consent by the Local
Planning Authority.
Reason: To safeguard to the special characteristics of the surrounding conservation area as
well as neighbouring amenity.

List of approved plans
30.

List of approved plans and drawings
The development shall conform in all aspects with the plans and details shown in the
application as listed below, unless variations are agreed by the Local Planning Authority in
order to discharge other conditions attached to this decision.
DC2-BD61 REV B Proposed Section A-A, received 14 March 2022
Preliminary Ecological Appraisal, received 9 March 2022
DC2-PD20 REV B Proposed plan and roof plan, received 14 March 2022
DC2-BD70 REV A Proposed elevations, received 4 January 2022
DC2-ED01 REV B Location and block plan, received 4 January 2022
DC2-ED10 REV B Existing site plan, received 4 January 2022
DC2-ED70 REV A Existing WCs and elevations, received 4 January 2022
DC2-PD10 REV F Proposed site plan, received 14 March 2022
Site analysis, received 4 January 2022
Design and Access and Heritage statement, received 4 January 2022
Arboricultural Assessment, received 4 January 2022
Sustainability statement, received 4 January 2022
Waste management strategy, received 4 January 2022
DC2-PD13 Proposed block plan, received 4 January 2022
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

Page 177

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

Advices
1

Construction site noise: Due to the proximity of existing noise sensitive development and the
potential for disturbance arising from contractors' operations, the developers' attention is
drawn to Section 60 and 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974, to BS 5528: Parts 1 and 2:
2009 Noise and Vibration Control on Construction and Open Sites code of practice for basic
information and procedures for noise and vibration control" and the code of practice adopted
by Bristol City Council with regard to "Construction Noise Control". Information in this respect
can be obtained from Pollution Control, City Hall, Bristol City Council, PO Box 3176, Bristol
BS3 9FS.

2

Bats and bat roosts: Anyone who kills, injures or disturbs bats, obstructs access to bat roosts
or damages or disturbs bat roosts, even when unoccupied by bats, is guilty of an offence
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 and
the Conservation (Natural Habitats, &c.) Regulations Act. Prior to commencing work you
should ensure that no bats or bat roosts would be affected. If it is suspected that a bat or bat
roost is likely to be affected by the proposed works, you should consult English Nature
(Taunton office 01823 283211).

3

Nesting birds: Anyone who takes, damages or destroys the nest of any wild bird whilst that
nest is in use or being built is guilty of an offence under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
and prior to commencing work you should ensure that no nesting birds will be affected.

4

Application for listed building consent potentially needed: The applicant is advised that this
permission does not act as listed building consent and you are accordingly advised of the
potential need to submit a separate listed building consent application in respect of the works
shown on the drawings hereby approved (restoration of the drinking fountain).

5

BS Standard - tree work: Any works should be completed in accordance with British Standard
3998: Recommendations for tree work, you are advised that the work should be undertaken by
a competent and suitably qualified tree contractor.

6

Tree Protection: You are advised to refer to BS5837 : 2012 Trees in relation to construction
for detailed information on types of tree protection, protection zones and other relevant
matters.

7

Minor Works on the Public Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway.
You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted highway you must enter into
a highway agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the council.
You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in undertaking the approval and
inspection of the works. Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management
Team at transportDM@bristol.gov.uk
NB: Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured and the
Highway Authority's technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be
considered and approved.

8

Works on the Public Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of work on the adopted highway.

Page 178

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

You are advised that before undertaking work on the adopted highway you must enter into a
highway agreement under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 with the council, which would
specify the works and the terms and conditions under which they are to be carried out.
Contact the Highway Authority's Transport Development Management Team at
transportDM@bristol.gov.uk allowing sufficient time for the preparation and signing of the
Agreement. You will be required to pay fees to cover the council's costs in undertaking the
following actions:
I.
II.
III.
IV.

Drafting the Agreement
A Monitoring Fee equivalent to 15% of the planning application fee
Approving the highway details
Inspecting the highway works

NB: Planning permission is not permission to work in the highway. A Highway Agreement
under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 must be completed, the bond secured and the
Highway Authority's technical approval and inspection fees paid before any drawings will be
considered and approved.
9

Excavation Works on the Adopted Highway
The development hereby approved includes the carrying out of excavation works on the
adopted highway. You are advised that before undertaking any work on the adopted highway
you will require a Section 171 (Excavation) Licence from the Highway Authority which is
available at www.bristol.gov.uk/highwaylicences

10

Wessex Water requirements: It will be necessary to comply with Wessex Water's main
drainage requirements and advice and further information can be obtained from
http://www.wessexwater.co.uk.

11

Are existing public sewers affected by the proposals?
According to our records the proposed site will be over a 3400mm tunnel sewer. Whilst this
sewer is approximately 10 metres deep, the applicant will need to submit details to our
Buildover Team so that we can assess what is required when building over this critical asset.
In the circumstances it is recommended that further details are submitted to the LPA prior to
planning decision showing details of the proposed foundations including depth and type.
Wessex Water can then assess the feasibility of building over this critical sewer without
disruption of normal services.

12

Network Rail
Network Rail has no objection in principle to the above proposal but due to the proposal being
next to Network Rail land and our infrastructure and to ensure that no part of the development
adversely impacts the safety, operation and
integrity of the operational railway we have included asset protection comments which the
applicant is strongly recommended to action should the proposal be granted planning
permission. The local authority should include these requirements as planning conditions if
these matters have not been addressed in the supporting documentation submitted with this
application.
This structure is within the zone of influence of Clifton Down Tunnel, as the application does
not contain any foundation plans and any foundation would most likely require piling into rock,

Page 179

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

therefore, our Structures Engineers require foundation plans which will need to be approved
by Network Rail's AssetProtectionWestern@NetworkRail.co.uk
TUNNELS
Network Rail's Engineer is to approve details of any development works within 15m, measure
horizontally, from the outside face of the tunnel extrados with special reference to:
The type and method of construction of foundations
Any increase/decrease of loading on the tunnel both temporary and permanent.
Certified proof that the proposals shall have no detrimental effect upon the tunnel will be
necessary.
Any proposal must not interfere with Network Rail's operational railway not jeopardise the
structural integrity of the tunnel. The above details should be submitted to the Council and only
approved in conjunction with Network Rail.
Network Rail will not accept any liability for any settlement, disturbance or damage caused to
any development by failure of the tunnel structures nor for any noise or vibration arising from
the normal use and/or maintenance of the tunnel. No right of support is given or can be
claimed from Network Rails tunnels or railway land.
13

Network Rail
SAFETY
Any works on this land will need to be undertaken following engagement with Asset Protection
to determine the interface with Network Rail assets, buried or otherwise and by entering into a
Basis Asset Protection Agreement, if required, with a minimum of 3months notice before works
start. assetprotectionwestern@networkrail.co.uk
PILING
Where vibro-compaction/displacement piling plant is to be used in development, details of the
use of such machinery and a method statement should be submitted for the approval of
Network Rail's Asset Protection Engineer prior to the commencement of works and the works
shall only be carried out in accordance with the approved method statement.
EXCAVATIONS/EARTHWORKS
All excavations / earthworks carried out in the vicinity of Network Rail's property / structures
must be designed and executed such that no interference with the integrity of that property /
structure can occur. If temporary compounds are to be located adjacent to the operational
railway, these should be included in a method statement for approval by Network Rail. Prior to
commencement of works, full details of excavations and earthworks to be carried out near the
railway undertaker's boundary fence should be submitted for approval of the Local Planning
Authority acting in consultation with the railway undertaker and the works shall only be carried
out in accordance with the approved details.
Where development may affect the railway, consultation with the Asset Protection Engineer
should be undertaken.

Page 180

Item no. 3
Development Control Committee B – 6 April 2022
Application No. 21/06762/F : Public Conveniences Circular Road Sneyd Park Bristol BS9 1ZZ

DRAINAGE
Soakaways / attenuation ponds / septic tanks etc, as a means of storm/surface water disposal
must not be constructed near/within 5 metres of Network Rail's boundary or at any point which
could adversely affect the stability of Network Rail's property/infrastructure. Storm/surface
water must not be discharged onto Network Rail's property or into Network Rail's culverts or
drains. Network Rail's drainage system(s) are not to be compromised by any work(s). Suitable
drainage or other works must be provided and maintained by the Developer to prevent surface
water flows or run-off onto Network Rail's property / infrastructure.
Proper provision must be made to accept and continue drainage discharging from Network
Rail's property. (The Land Drainage Act) is to be complied with. Suitable foul drainage must be
provided separate from Network Rail's existing drainage. Once water enters a pipe it becomes
a controlled source and as such no water should be discharged in the direction of the railway.
Full details of the drainage plans are to be submitted for acceptance to the Network Rail Asset
Protection Engineer. No works are to commence on site on any drainage plans without the
acceptance of the Network Rail Asset Protection Engineers: Network Rail has various
drainage standards that can be provided Free of Charge should the applicant/developer
engage with Network Rail's Asset Protection Engineers.
14

Application for advertisement consent needed: The Applicant is reminded of the need to
obtain separate consent under the Town and Country Planning (Control of Advertisements)
Regulations 1992 for any advertisements requiring express consent which you may wish to
display on these premises.

commdelgranted
V1.0211

Page 181

Supporting Documents
3.

Public Conveniences, Circular Road
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Proposed Site Layout Plan
Proposed Floor and Roof Plans
Proposed Elevations
Site Photos
Copy of Common Land Consent Application Ref: COM/3246988
Inspector Decision 11th November 2020

Page 182

To existing manhole

Proposed
wildflower area
200m2
Local species only
Approximate location of
existing manhole and sewer

Bristol Downs

Location of existing WCs
down
ld
Fo
by
Ba ge
chan

Proposed Cafe, WC and Booth

Page 183

Ramped access (1:20)
Proposed paved area
Existing listed fountain to be restored
to working use as part of the proposal
Cliff face

Revisions
F: Wildflower area added 11/3/2022
E: Updated to suit revised plan 08/12/2021
D: Roof terrace removed 05/02/2019
C: Revised post meeting 22/10/2018
Rev. B: Ramp added 03/09/2018
A: Location of building revised 20/08/2018

www.cgaarchitects.co.uk

Seawalls Cafe

•

T: 0117 329 1414

•

Chris Goodsall Architects

M: 079799 23535

•

Site Plan as Proposed

•

Scale: 1:250 @ A3

•

Jan' 2018

•

Drawing: DC2-PD10 Rev F

19.43 m

Extensive roof planted with
local native species

6.99 m

125m2 planted roof

PV Array

Roof Plan

Waste/Recycling Bins

Listed Fountain
(+0.015)

(+0.070)

Page 184

(+0.070)
(+0.245)

Tarmac

15.90 m

Tarmac

D11

Existing
Pavement

(+0.00)

(+0.00)

+(0.000)
A

BINS

(+0.00)
Bicycle hoop
W01

W02

(+0.250)

Paved Area

W03

RWP

RWP
AGDWP
Store
1.4m2

W04

D12

Back of
house
6m2

Decking

D08

CCTV Camera

D17

FLOOR
GLASS

D14

Unisex
Unisex
WC
WC
2 m2
1.7m2

Unisex
WC
1.7m2

Accessible
WC
3.6 m2

Fold down
Baby
change

5.34 m

Sliding Doors

5.70 m

Café
and
+(0.045) servery
0.250
45m2

AGDWP
Area
Furniture to be
stored in store

W06

D15

D02

CCTV Cameras

D03

D04

D06

B

D16

B

D01

Existing grass retained

CCTV Cameras

External
decking
area
104m2

W05

RWP

Existing grass retained

RWP

(+0.250)

Roof line above

(+0.050)

(+0.050)
A

Waste/Recycling Bins

Revisions:
A: 04-11-19 Scheme reduced
B: 11-3-22: Green roof re-instated to full area of roof

Existing grass retained

Ground Floor Plan
1

2

3

4

www.cgaarchitects.co.uk

Seawalls Cafe

5

Chris Goodsall Architects

m 1

•

T: 0117 329 1414

•

M: 079799 23535

•

Proposed Plans

•

Scale: 1:100 @ A3

•

Jan' 2018

•

Drawing: DC2-PD20 Rev - B

Example of woven stainless steel mesh
to be used to enclose bin store
Stainless Steel decorative
mesh to secure enclosure to
BOH

Extensive roof planted with
local native species

Mesh gate on metal frame

3.23 m

Full height
Sliding doors to
curtain wall

Page 185

Front Elevation

Toilet doors to be timber clad

Side Elevation

Defibrillator

Full height Sliding folding
doors to curtain wall

Rear Elevation
1

2

3

4

5

www.cgaarchitects.co.uk

Seawalls Cafe

Side Elevation
m 1

Revisions
A: 30-10-19 Updated for reduced scheme

•

T: 0117 329 1414

•

M: 079799 23535

•

Proposed Elevations

•

Scale: 1:100 @ A3

•

Apr' 2018

•

Drawing: DC2-BD70 Rev.-A

Page 186

Existing toilet block

Seawalls viewing point
Listed drinking fountain

Existing toilet block

Page 187

Listed drinking fountain

Towerhirst

Page 188

Existing toilet block

Towerhirst

Existing toilet block
Page 189

Page 190

Page 191

Application Decision
Site Visit held on 20 September 2020
by Helen Heward BSc Hons MRTPI
An Inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
Decision date: 11 November 2020

Application Ref: COM/3246988
Durdham Down, Bristol

Register Unit No: CL5
Commons Registration Authority: Bristol City Council
• The application received on 27 February 2020 is made under Section 38 of the Commons
Act 2006 (‘the 2006 Act’) for consent to carry out restricted works on common land.
• The application is made by Jonathon Baker, on behalf of The Downs Committee, c/o
Democratic Services, City Hall, Bristol, BS1 5TR.
• The works comprise:
 The demolition of existing public conveniences;
 The erection of a building to comprise café, public conveniences and education booth
with hard surfacing provision for outside seating;
 Temporary fencing enclosing a construction area of 687m²;
 The total area of the permanent building and surfacing to be 205m².

Decision
1. Consent is granted.
Preliminary Matters
2. I carried out an unaccompanied site visit on 20 September 2020.
3. A previous application, COM/3221451, for the same scheme of works was
refused in September 2020. This application has been submitted to address
concerns raised in that decision. There is nothing in the Commons Act 2006 to
prevent an applicant making another application.
4. In the documents before me, there are references to a total area of building
and surfacing of both 200m² and 205m². The difference is not significant. The
previous Inspector referred to 205m². I too have considered this larger area
so that I have considered the greatest potential implications.
5. The Applicant confirmed that Drawing “DC2-ED04 Rev-“ is the application map.
6. I have reached my decision on the basis of the evidence presented in the
current application and from my site visit observations of the site and locality.
The application includes a copy of the planning permission1 for the proposal
with all of the conditions attached; information about the costs and financing of
the building and the likely costs and profits of the operation of the café. Other
evidence that I have had regard to includes the provisions of The Clifton and
Durdham Downs (Bristol) Act 1861 (’the 1861 Act’) and the Clifton and

1

Bristol City Council Planning Permission : 18/04727/F

www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate/services-information

Page 192

Application Reference: COM/3246988

Durdham Downs Bylaws (effective 11 April 2003) (‘the Bylaws’). I have also
had regard to representations made in relation to this application.
7. Over 50 representations have been received. Objectors include the Open
Spaces Society and the Sneyd Park Resident’s Association (SPRA).
Representations in support include letters from the British Zoological Society
and the Avon Wildlife Trust.
8. Many objectors complain about the application process, including the
advertisement of the application and notification of interested persons. These
include that residents of houses and flats of an area close by and the SPRA
were not notified and that information at a public meeting on 27 January did
not amount to notice that an application was being considered.
9. Some objectors state that they have been unable to view the application
documents due to the Covid-19 situation. Under the Commons Act 2006 the
applicant is responsible for advertising the application and making the
documents available for public inspection. The application was advertised in
the Bristol Post on 7 February 2020. The applicant advises that the documents
were lodged with Bristol City Council at City Hall in February 2020 and over a
month before lockdown and has provided a letter confirming the publicity and
notifications undertaken.
Description of the site
10. The application site is in the south-west corner of an area of land registered on
the Commons Register (‘CR’) as Durdham Down. The common is owned by
The City Council of Bristol and managed by a joint committee (the Downs
Committee). The site includes a public toilet block, accessed via a hardsurfaced path from the adjacent highway (Seawalls).
11. The total area of the common is 85.793 hectares. The application site is in a
corner, in an area of peripheral grass and woodland which appears to be mainly
used for informal recreation. There are several sports pitches on a more
central area close by.
12. The site is also adjacent to the top of the Avon Gorge, a Site of Special
Scientific Interest (‘SSSI’). There is a relatively large hard surfaced area for
road-side parking, and an extensive paved viewpoint which affords spectacular
views of the historic Clifton Suspension Bridge and the Gorge in general.
The Application
13. The application is for the demolition of the toilet block and replacement with a
new larger building to house toilets, café and education booth together with an
external decking area on which seating would be placed. The total area of
buildings/development would cover 205m².
14. The application also proposes temporary Heras-type safety fencing to enclose
an area of 687m² for the construction period of approximately 24 weeks.
Main Issues
15. I am required by section 39 of the 2006 Act to have regard to the following in
determining this application:-

Page2 193

Application Reference: COM/3246988

a. the interests of persons having rights in relation to, or occupying, the land
(and in particular persons exercising rights of common over it);
b. the interests of the neighbourhood;
c. the public interest;2 and
d. any other matter considered to be relevant.
16. Section 39(3) provides that consent may be given under Section 38(1) in
relation to all or part of the proposed works, and subject to such modifications
and conditions relating to the proposed works as are thought to be fit.
17. In determining this application, I have had regard to the latest edition of
Defra’s Common Land Consents Policy3 (‘the 2015 Policy’) which has been
published for the guidance of both the Planning Inspectorate and applicants.
However, every application will be considered on its merits and a determination
will depart from the policy if it appears appropriate to do so. In such cases, the
decision will explain why it has departed from the policy.
Reasons
a) The interests of those occupying or having rights over the land
18. The CR indicates that there are several commoners with rights to graze
significant numbers of sheep between them. There is no dispute that these
rights are exercised infrequently, and symbolically, at five yearly intervals.
19. A very small area of common in a peripheral location would be affected. No
objections have been made by any party benefitting from rights of common on,
over or across the land and the evidence indicates that the rights are not
generally exercised. The proposed works would have a negligible effect on the
grazing rights.
b) The interests of the neighbourhood
20. The 2015 Policy indicates that issues to be considered include whether or not
the works would result in the loss of existing use; whether or not the outcome
intended by the proposed works would add something that will positively
benefit the neighbourhood and whether or not there would be an interference
with the future use and enjoyment of the common by commoners, the public or
others.
21. There is a general expectation of some positive benefits on the
neighbourhood. Nevertheless there is no obligation for this to be the case and
the interests of the neighbourhood either positive or negative would need to be
put in the overall balance. There is no official definition of neighbourhood, as
well as local inhabitants it could include all likely to use the common.
22. The existing toilet building is roughly 50 years old. It is a relatively small flat
roof building. It is outdated, rundown and has been subject to some vandalism
and misuse. It is open 24 hours a day and used by people who are in the
locality for many reasons including informal recreation, coming to take in the

2
Section 39(2) of the 2006 Act provides that the public interest includes the public interest in; nature
conservation; the conservation of the landscape; the protection of public rights of access to any area of land; and
the protection of archaeological remains and features of historic interest.
3
Common Land Consents Policy (Defra November 2015)

Page3 194

Application Reference: COM/3246988

view or for sports. The toilets have been subject to some antisocial behaviour,
particularly during hours of darkness.
23. The proposed development would incorporate replacement toilets. Toilets
would remain available 24 hours a day and free of charge. The facility would
be staffed from 08.00 to 19.00 Monday to Saturday, and 10.00 to 16.00 on
Sundays and Bank Holidays. At other times they would be monitored by infrared CCTV. There would be no loss of existing use.
24. On the day of my site visit there were many people in the area, some admiring
the view and some relaxing on the grass, others playing sport, games and
taking exercise. I saw several people use the existing toilets in a relatively
short time. The access to the existing men’s toilet is at the rear. Bounded by
a wall and overhung by tree canopies, this access felt somewhat unsafe.
25. The availability of other facilities on Stoke Road and elsewhere might be
accessible to some but would not provide a convenient amenity for the needs
of many users of the southern end of the common, particularly the less able.
26. There are changing facilities available for organised sports, but it would seem
reasonable to presume that people playing sports on pitches at the southern
end of the common would still make use of both the existing and the proposed
replacement toilets.
27. Letters in support of the application from individuals, walking groups, and the
Ramblers Association attest to the need for facilities for many different groups
using the common and locality, including the elderly and children. They attest
to the poor quality of the existing toilets.
28. The replacement toilets together with improved management and supervision
would be an improvement and of benefit to people informally exercising,
strolling and recreating in the locality, as well as people visiting to take in the
views of the Gorge and Clifton Suspension Bridge. They would make the
facilities more attractive and usable for the many different user groups. Some
objectors are worried about access to toilets becoming restricted, but the
applicant advises that facilities would be available at all times. Overall, the
replacement toilets would result in an improvement to safety and amenity
which would benefit young and old, the able and less able, and be consistent
with aims of a 2012-2017 Management Plan to ensure that anti-social
behaviour is controlled, and its impact reduced. These would be positive
benefits for the neighbourhood.
29. Objectors state that the locality is valued for peace, beauty, birdsong and dark
night skies and consider that the presence of the café would result in nuisance.
The previous Inspector noted the quietness of this area. My visit was on a
warm sunny Sunday afternoon. I observed a steady flow of traffic and cars
parked alongside the road in several areas, particularly close to the viewing
platform for the Gorge. Traffic noise was apparent in the background hum of
this green urban lung. An ice cream van parked close to the toilets was busy
with a queue of customers. The locality had the feeling of a popular, well-used
urban greenspace. Some objectors to this application acknowledge that the
locality and the Seawalls promenade are particularly busy at weekends. Some
refer to the traffic, including cars, coaches and commercial vehicles parked as a
“ring of steel” and an intrusive volume of existing traffic.

Page4 195

Application Reference: COM/3246988

30. I have no doubt that the proposed café with external tables on the proposed
decking area would receive custom and attract some additional people to this
area. But like the previous Inspector I do not think that it can be concluded
that more people would necessarily be detrimental, and I note that the size of
the café is limited, and the external seating area would only provide for a
limited number of tables and chairs.
31. A verdant residential suburb to the north of the common includes the
designated Sneyd Park Conservation Area (CA). On my visit I found that those
dwellings immediately north of this part of the common are in the main some
distance from the site of the application, and largely screened from it by
boundary screening, trees and mature woodland. I also note that the CA
excludes the row of dwellings closest to the common. The café and external
seating area would face away from this area. I very much doubt that there
would be any discernible visual or audible impact arising from the café within
this area generally.
32. One property, Towerhirst, has a number of windows at first floor level and
above offering views toward the site. These windows would enable occupants
to take advantage of an outlook over this corner of the common. In winter and
periods of low daylight, the building would be at its most noticeable when lights
are on. In summer there could be people sat the tables on the far side of the
building, but they would largely be screened from Towerhirst by the building.
33. The education booth would provide a covered space for teaching and educating
during bad weather. The 2012-2017 Management Plan aims include providing
the maximum opportunities for education and enjoyment of The Downs, and to
ensure that they are well managed and well resourced. The education booth is
designed to provide a base for the Avon Gorge and Downs Wildlife Project
(AGDWP). This is an organisation set up to protect the wildlife interest of the
Avon Gorge and Downs and raise awareness and understanding about the
importance of the area for people and wildlife.
34. The booth would be used to facilitate the operation of the wildlife project and
its various events, promote access, understanding and knowledge of important
characteristics of the area. It would also provide for an interpretation space
about the wildlife of the Avon Gorge and Downs. Information about the
activities of the AGDWP includes that each year they teach approximately 1500
primary age school children, some coming to the Downs for education sessions
in the spring and summer. They also run a programme of public events during
the year including talks, family events and walks, many of which start at
Seawalls.
35. A number of star-gazing evenings on the Downs have also been held since the
Downs became a Dark Skies Discovery Site. Such events can attract up to 100
people. The application includes details of many other existing types of events
held in the locality, including coach trip visits to the viewing area for the Clifton
Suspension bridge.
36. The education booth would be the closest part of the development to
Towerhirst. Undoubtedly, the ambience and appearance would change. But
with an internal area of 7m² plus a restricted undercover outdoor decked area,
the capacity and uses would be limited. There is nothing to say that the area
could not presently be used by the Avon Gorge and Downs Wildlife Project and
other individuals or groups of people for open air lectures, picnics and the like.

Page5 196

Application Reference: COM/3246988

37. Moreover, the planning permission includes a number of conditions to protect
the amenities of residents and the locality, including requiring that all patrons,
customers and members of the public vacate the building outside of the hours
08:00 to 19:00 Monday to Saturday and 10:00 to 16:00 on Sundays and Bank
Holidays.
38. A condition about lighting has been imposed to safeguard the amenities of
adjoining residential occupiers, the appearance and character of the area as
well as local ecology. It requires that prior to the commencement of
development a detailed lighting scheme and predicted light levels by a suitably
qualified lighting engineer shall be submitted and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The report should include details of all internal and
external lighting (including any decorative lighting and security lighting within
external amenity/access areas) and associated light spill plans unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
39. Artificial lighting to the development must conform to requirements to meet the
Obtrusive Light Limitations for Exterior Lighting Installations for Environmental
Zone - E2 contained within Table 1 of the Institute of Light Engineers Guidance
Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Lighting, GN01, dated 2005. Zone E2
relates to areas of rural low district brightness such as sparsely inhabited rural
areas, villages or relatively dark outer suburban locations.
40. A planning condition to safeguard the amenity of nearby premises and the area
generally restricts the rating level of any noise generated by plant and
equipment to at least 5dB below the background level as determined by
BS4142: 2014 Methods for rating and assessing industrial and commercial
sound.
41. From the level of use and traffic I observed, and the number of cars parked in
the locality I think it unlikely that the proposal would generate a significant
level of traffic, activity or noise that would materially change the existing
character and amenities of the neighbourhood.
42. The applicant agrees that there has been a particular litter problem this year
post the Covid-19 lockdown. Objectors acknowledge that some litter is from
“fast food debris”. I find no reason to doubt that the café could not manage its
own litter and waste production.
43. The Inspector who determined the previous application was concerned that
there was insufficient information about the viability of the proposal to give
certainty about aspects of the scheme which could affect the likely impacts
upon the neighbourhood.
44. A 2020 cost assessment included in this application indicates a construction
cost of £373,662 confirms that Bristol City Council holds £375,000 on reserve
for the Downs Committee. This indicates sufficient funding to demolish the
existing toilets and construct the new building.
45. The applicant advises that the existing toilets cost circa £12,500 per year to
clean and maintain, additonal costs from vandalism etc can take them to in
excess of £20,000.
46. It is intended that the venture should be self-funding, including the
management, maintenance and upkeep of the new toilets. Any surplus would
contribute to the costs incurred in the general management of the common, in

Page6 197

Application Reference: COM/3246988

the face of government funding cuts which have resulted in lower contributions
from the local authority for that purpose.
47. The Stoke Road café building is owned by the Downs Committee. Centrally
located within the common it offers a broadly comparable model for the
proposed café and the accounts of that café have been used as a guide for
projections for the proposed café. These accounts demonstrate that following
two years of breaking even and making a small loss the Stoke Road café made
a healthy profit in 2019. The business plan for the proposed café assumes a
slightly smaller turnover to that achieved at the Stoke Road café in 2019, and
slightly higher consumable costs.
48. The two cafés might share some similar customer groups but are over 1Km
apart. The Stoke Road café benefits from a more central and busy location and
the proposed café would benefit from being close to the Zoo and existing
parking and the viewing platform for the Clifton Suspension Bridge and Gorge.
There are other cafés too, including on Whiteladies Road, but that is not to say
that there is no need or demand for the proposed café.
49. There is little evidence to doubt the applicant’s assessment of the financial
soundness and viability of the proposal, nor to say that a café operating in the
proposed building would not be able to achieve a similar result or that low
winter turnover would threaten viability.
50. The building design indicates that it would be a sustainable structure with
energy conservation. There is little evidence to say that the management of
the toilets would unduly add to the costs of the enterprise, that the business
could not finance an operation requiring staff on hand for up to 11 hours a day
on most days of the week and the monitoring of a CCTV.
51. The replacement toilets, café and education booth would improve facilities and
services and contribute to supporting the function of the area for open space
use as a place of public resort for the citizens and inhabitants of Bristol and
would be consistent with the Management Plan aims.
52. The applicant has demonstrated the financial arrangements and assumptions.
There is no substantive evidence to the contrary. I am satisfied that the
evidence in this application allays concern that a similar situation to the one
that exists at present; or that a dilapidated structure which is not attractive
and may be the target for vandals would be likely to arise.
53. I conclude that with the environmental controls afforded by the planning
permission, the proposal would not be likely to adversely affect the interests of
neighbouring residents and occupants. Overall the proposal would positively
benefit the neighbourhood and the future use and enjoyment of the common
by commoners, the public and others.
Loss of existing use or interference with future use and enjoyment of the
common
54. One objection is that the Downs should not have a commercial enterprise on it.
The applicant advises that the café is to be run as a social enterprise. In any
event, there are no express provisions in the 1861 Act which prohibit the
operation of a commercial enterprise. The Act provides for Bylaws to be made,
and Paragraph 6 of the current Bylaws states that ‘No person shall on the
Downs, without the consent of the Downs Committee, sell or offer or expose for

Page7 198

Application Reference: COM/3246988

sale, or let to hire, or offer or expose for letting to hire, any commodity or
article.’ This would appear to provide for the running of a commercial premises
or business with the consent of the Downs Committee.
55. There is no evidence that rights holders exercise their rights over the area of
the common affected by the application except symbolically on rare occasions.
The amount that the increase in the built footprint of the building would reduce
the area available for possible grazing in the future would be tiny in relation to
the overall area. The temporary loss of potential grazing of the fenced off
construction site for health and safety reasons would also be insignificant.
56. The proposed building would be open to the public during operational hours
and toilets would be available at all times. The public would have access to the
site at all times, and to the building for a large part of each day. Temporary
fencing would interfere with public access during the construction period of
approximately 24 weeks.
57. There would be no loss of toilet use and the facilities would be improved. Given
my findings on the viability of the proposal I find no reason to conclude that
the future use and enjoyment of this part of the common would be adversely
affected.
The public interest
Nature conservation
58. The building would have a green roof although the application does not claim
the building to have any particularly special benefits for nature conservation
in itself. The proposed works would reduce very slightly the area of grassland
on the common, but the affected area is down to grass and subject to a
relatively high level of use by people accessing the toilets and there is no
evidence that it is important for the purposes of nature conservation. The
planning permission includes a number of conditions designed to ensure that
nature conservation interests are adequately protected, including control of
lighting. The applicant would need to discharge and comply with the
requirements of these conditions.
59. Comments have been made in relation to the proximity of the site to the Avon
Gorge Site of Special Scientific Interest. Natural England made no adverse
comments. The Avon Wildlife Trust consider that the education booth, with
information about the wildlife and ecology of the Downs and Gorge, including
the varied habitats and unique species, will encourage people to experience
and appreciate nature.
60. There would be no direct adverse implications in respect of nature conservation
and the proposal would indirectly benefit a wide range of nature conservation
interests on the common and in the locality.
Conservation of the landscape and features of historic interest
61. As with the previous application many objectors object to effects of the
proposed building on the surrounding landscape. The building would be larger
but that it is not to say it would have a greater impact or be more intrusive.
62. Situated on the site of the existing toilets at the edge of the common, the
building would not be in a prominent position. It would stand alone and would

Page8 199

Application Reference: COM/3246988

not interfere with the setting and views of the Gorge and Clifton Suspension
Bridge.
63. The existing toilet block building is utilitarian in design and not attractive.
Adaptations for accessibility including a ramp and rails add more detracting
elements, when seen from the front. It has a negative effect upon the visual
amenity of the neighbourhood.
64. Constructed of glass and timber the new building would have a lightweight and
airy feel. It would be larger, but the contemporary design is understated and
would appear transparent in part. It would be a discrete coherent development
designed to meet specific needs and would not appear as piecemeal
development.
65. Its use would change the ambience and the appearance of this corner of the
common, but I have already found that the planning permission would mitigate
impacts, including limiting lighting to a level appropriate to sparsely inhabited
rural areas, villages or relatively dark outer suburban locations.
66. The present toilet block does nothing to enhance the setting of Towerhirst and
a drinking fountain, both Grade II Listed structures. The proposed new
building would be sufficiently distanced from them to ensure that their setting
would not be harmed, and the removal of the existing building would be an
enhancement. The drinking fountain would be restored to working with new
paving around it as part of the scheme.
67. I conclude that the replacement building would result in a visual enhancement
to the landscape and restoration of the listed fountain would be an
enhancement of a feature of historic interest.
Public Access
68. Public access to the application site would not be prevented by the proposed
works except at certain times of the day and, temporarily, during the
construction period.
Archaeological remains
69. There is no evidence to suggest harm to archaeological remains.
Other matters
70. There is little evidence to say that the proposal would have a material adverse
effect upon the trade of existing businesses.
71. The application does not propose car parking. Any such proposal would be for
consideration if and when it was proposed. When considering the planning
application the Council found there to be sufficient parking on Circular Road
that this would not cause a significant highways issue. There is no clear
evidence that the proposed building would attract large numbers of extra
vehicles but, if problems arose, the local authority and the Police have powers
to deal with unauthorised or illegal parking.
72. Matters relating to structural stability, flooding and drainage would be subject
to other statutory controls. There is some concern that granting consent would
set a precedent, but each application must be considered on its own merits and
with regard to the legislation.

Page9 200

Application Reference: COM/3246988

Conclusions and decision
73. The 2006 Act, together with earlier legislation, enables government to
safeguard commons for current and future generations to use and enjoy; to
ensure that the special qualities of common land, including its open and
unenclosed nature are properly protected; and to improve the contribution of
common land to enhancing biodiversity and conserving wildlife.
74. The consent process, in respect of applications under Section 38 of the 2006
Act, seeks to ensure that any use of common land is consistent with its
registered status, and that works take place on common land only when they
maintain or improve the condition of the common, or where they confer some
wider public benefit, and are either temporary in duration, or have no
significant or lasting impact.
75. I conclude that the proposal would not be likely to adversely affect the interests
of neighbouring residents and occupants, would positively benefit the
neighbourhood and the future use and enjoyment of the common by
commoners, the public and others and would not harm the future use and
enjoyment of this part of the common. There would be no direct adverse
implications in respect of nature conservation and the proposal would indirectly
benefit a wide range of nature conservation interests. The replacement
building would result in a visual enhancement to the landscape and restoration
of the listed fountain would be an enhancement of a feature of historic interest.
76. Having regard to the criteria set out in paragraphs 15 to 17 above, and all the
written representations, I conclude that consent for the works applied for
should be granted.

Helen Heward

Inspector

10 201
Page

DURDHAM DOWN

Changing
Rooms

Stoke
Road
Cafe

Water tower
WCs

WCs &
New Cafe

Avon Gorge
SSSI

CLIFTON DOWN

BCC
Compound

Zoo
parking

Observatory
Cafe & venue

100

200

Seawalls Cafe

300

400

•

500

m 1

Location Plan with other uses

•

1:10,000 Scale at A3

Page 202

•

Feb' 2020

•

Drawing: DC2-ED04 Rev --

